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Public Comment Information

The Springfield Public Schools Board of Directors desires to hear from the community they
serve and sets aside 20 minutes for oral public comment during their regular business
meetings.

Members of the community are invited to provide public comment, in-person, virtually, or via
written submissions.

Oral Comments — In-person, or virtually:

To sign up to speak to the school board during their regularly scheduled business meeting
please send your request to public.comment@springfield.k12.or.us. Clearly label the subject
line as: “Oral Public Comment Request” and include full name, address, phone number, agenda
item or topic. Submissions will be collected the Thursday before the meeting date, once public
meeting notice has been made, and will remain open until 12:00 pm on the day of the meeting.

Oral public comment is limited to 3 minutes per person and is scheduled for 20 minutes on the
agenda. Due to time limitations not all speakers may be selected to provide oral comment
during the board meeting.

Written Comment:

To submit written public comment, send your materials to
public.comment@springfield.k12.or.us by 12:00 pm the day of the meeting. Clearly label the
subject line as “Written Public Comment”. All written comments submitted by the 12:00 pm
deadline on the day of the meeting will be provided to the board for their review and posted to
the district website by 4:00 pm on the day of the board meeting.
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Informacion sobre los Comentarios Publicos

La Junta Directiva de las Escuelas Publicas de Springfield desea escuchar a la comunidad a la que sirve y
reserva 20 minutos para comentarios orales del publico durante sus reuniones regulares de negocios.
Hay tres maneras de hacer comentarios publicos en las reuniones regulares de la junta.

Se invita a los miembros de la comunidad a hacer comentarios publlcos en persona,
virtualmente o a través de presentaciones escritas.

Comentarios Orales - En persona, o virtualmente:

Para inscribirse para hablar con el consejo escolar durante su reunién de negocios programada
regularmente, por favor envie su solicitud a public.comment@springfield.k12.or.us. Etiquete
claramente la linea de asunto como: "Solicitud de Comentario Ptblico Oral". Por favor, incluya
su nombre completo, direccion, numero de teléfono, punto del orden del dia o tema. Las
solicitudes serdn recaudadas entre el jueves anterior a la fecha de la reunion y el mediodia del

dia de la reunion.

Los comentarios orales del publico estdn limitados a 3 minutos por persona y estdn
programados para 20 minutos en el orden del dia. Debido a las limitaciones de tiempo, no todos
los oradores pueden ser seleccionados para hacer comentarios orales durante la reunién de la

junta.
Comentarios por Escrito:

Para presentar comentarios publicos por escrito, envie sus materiales a
public.comment@springfield.k12.or.us antes del mediodia del dia de la reunién. Por favor,
etiquete claramente la linea de asunto como "Comentario Publico por Escrito". Todos los
comentarios escritos presentados antes de la fecha limite se proporcionaran a la junta para su
revision y se publicaran en el sitio web del distrito antes de las 4:00 p.m. del dia de la reunion
de la junta.

Si tiene alguna pregunta o necesita asistencia favor de comunicarse al (541) 726-3486
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
December 12, 2022
Administration Building Board Room
640 A Street
Springfield, OR 97477

En espafiol
7:00 pm In Person Board Meeting
Streaming Meeting URL.:
http://www.vimeo.com/SpringfieldPS

AGENDA TAB
1.  Call Meeting to Order and Flag Salute Board Chair Naomi Raven
A. Pledge of Allegiance Chair Raven
B. Land Acknowledgement Chair Raven
2. Approval of the Agenda Chair Raven

3. Presentations
A. Student Board Representative Communication Chair Raven

4, Public Comments (Three (3) minutes each; maximum time 20 minutes. Speakers may not yield their time to other speakers.
e \Written public comment may be submitted by email to : public.comment@springfield.k12.or.us. Clearly label
the subject line as: “Public Comment Business Meeting — December 12, 2022. The deadline for receiving written
public comment for the Board to review prior to the start of the meeting is noon on Monday, December 12, 2022.
Written public comment submitted by noon on Monday, December 12, 2022 will be posted to the district website
by 4:00pm on the day of the Board Meeting.

5. Action Items
A. Approve Consent Agenda

1. November 14, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes 1
2. Financial Statement Brett Yancey 2
3. Personnel Action, Resolution #22-23.019 Dustin Reese 3
4. Out of State Trip Springfield HS Cheer, Res. #22-23.020 Mindy LeRoux 4

B. Accept Annual Comprehensive Financial Report & 2021-2022 Joan Bolls 5

Audit, Resolution #22-23.021
6. Reports and Information
A. Student Investment Act (SIA) Annual Report Whitney McKinley/Brian Megert/
Nicole Nakayama

B. High School Success Act Annual Report Mindy LeRoux

C. Superintendent Communication Todd Hamilton

D. Board Communication Chair Raven

+ Board Committee Reports

7. Next Meeting: January 5, 2023 Budget Committee Work Session 6:00pm
January 9, 2023 Business Meeting 7:00pm

8. Adjournment Chair Raven

Springfield Public Schools is an equal opportunity educator and employer.
Persons having questions about or requests for special needs and accommodation at Board Meetings should contact the Office of the
Superintendent; 640 A Street, Springfield, OR 97477; Phone: (541) 726-3201. Contact should be made 72 hours in advance of the event.


http://www.vimeo.com/SpringfieldPS
mailto:public.comment@springfield.k12.or.us

@ ESCUELAS PUBLICAS DE

SPRINGFIELD

Cada Estudiante Cuenta, Cada Dia

CONSEJO DE EDUCACION
12 de diciembre del 2022
Sala del Consejo de Administracion
640 A Street
Springfield, OR 97477

En espafiol

7:00 pm Reunion del Consejo
Junta Transmitida a través de:
http://www.vimeo.com/SpringfieldPS

AGENDA TAB

1. Llamado al orden y saludo a la bandera Presidenta del Consejo Naomi Raven

A. Juramento de Lealtad Presidenta Raven

B. Reconocimiento de la Tierra Presidenta Raven
2. Aprobacion de Agenda Presidenta Raven
3. Presentacion

A. Comunicacion del Representante de la Junta Estudiantil Presidenta Raven
4, Comentarios publicos: (Tres (3) minutos cada uno; tiempo méximo de 20 minutos. Los ponentes no podran ceder su tiempo a otros ponentes).

e L_os comentarios publicos por escrito se pueden enviar por correo electronico a: public.comment@springfield.k12.or.us.
Etiquete claramente la linea de asunto como: “Reunién de negocios de comentarios publicos: — 12 de diciembre del 2022.
La fecha limite para recibir comentarios publicos por escrito para que la Junta los revise antes del inicio de la reunion es el
mediodia del lunes 12 de diciembre del 2022. Comentario publico escrito presentado antes del mediodia del lunes, 12 de
diciembre del 2022 se publicara en el sitio web del distrito a las 4:00 p. m. del dia de la reunién de la Junta.

5. Medidas a Tomar
A. Aprobar la Agenda de Consentimiento

1. 14 de noviember del 2022 Minutos de Reunion del Consejo 1
2. Informe Financiero Brett Yancey 2
3. Accidn de Personal, Resolucién #22-23.019 Dustin Reese 3
4. Viaje fuera del estado Springfield HS Cheer, Res. #22-23.020 Mindy LeRoux 4

B. Aceptar Informe Financiero Integral Anual y 2021-2022 Joan Bolls 5

Auditoria, Resolucion #22-23.021
6. Reportes e Informacién
A. Informe Anual de la Ley de Inversion Estudiantil (SIA) Whitney McKinley/Brian Megert/
Nicole Nakayama

B. Informe Anual de la Ley de Exito en la Escuela Secundaria Mindy LeRoux

C. Comunicacién del Superintendente Todd Hamilton

D. Comunicacion del Consejo Presidenta Raven

« Informes de los Comités de la Junta

7. Proximas Reuniones: 5 de enero del 2023 Sesion de Trabajo del Comité de Presupuesto 6:00pm
9 de enero del 2023 Reunién de negocios 7:00pm

8. Aplazamiento Presidenta Raven

Las Escuelas Publicas de Springfield es un educador y empleador con igualdad de oportunidades.
Las Personas que tengan preguntas o soliciten necesidades especiales, acomodaciones o servicios de traduccion en las reunions de la Junta Directiva deben
ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Superintendente; 640 A Street, Springfield, OR 97477; Teléfono: (541) 726-3201. El Aviso debe hacerse con 72
horas de anticipacion al evento.


http://www.vimeo.com/SpringfieldPS
mailto:public.comment@springfield.k12.or.us

SPRINGFIELD PUBLIC SCHOOLS SCHOOL BOARD MEETING
SPRINGFIELD, OR 97477 MONDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2022

EXECUTIVE SESSIONS MINUTES

The Springfield School District No. 19 Board of Education met in Executive Session (non-public)
pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) to consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a public
body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed.

Board Chair Naomi Raven called the meeting to order at 6:06 pm.

Board Members attending the meeting included Board Chair Naomi Raven, Board Vice Chair Todd
Mann, Director Jonathan Light and Director Kelly Mason. Director Emilio Hernandez was excused due
to a family emergency.

Others attending the meeting included Superintendent Todd Hamilton, Assistant Superintendent David
Collins, Human Resources Director Dustin Reese and Judy Bowden. Chief Operations Officer Brett
Yancey and Attorney Rebekah Jacobson attended virtually.

The meeting adjourned at 6:44pm.
BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES

A Business Meeting of the Springfield School District No. 19 Board of Education was held on November
14, 2022.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE AND LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Board Chair Naomi Raven called the Springfield Board of Education meeting to order at 7:03 pm and led
the Pledge of Allegiance. Following the Pledge of Allegiance, Director Light read the following Land
Acknowledgement:

We acknowledge that we are in the traditional homeland of the Kalapuya people, specifically the
community that was known as Chifin, the area that we now call Springfield.

Kalapuya people, who have lived in this region since ""Time Immemorial", were illegally dispossessed of
their land and forcibly removed to what are now the Grand Ronde and Siletz reservations over several
years, but most notably in treaties between 1851 and 1855.

The Kalapuya are now members of the Confederated Tribes of the Grand Ronde and the Confederated
Tribes of Siletz Indians, and members of the Kalapuya still live, work, study, and thrive in this area, and
continue to make important contributions here in Springfield, across the land we now refer to as Oregon,
and around the globe.

This information is shared out of a responsibility to honor the heritage and the humanity of all people and
to promote unity within our school district.

Attendance
Board Members attending the meeting included Board Chair Naomi Raven, Board Vice Chair Todd
Mann, Director Jonathan Light and Director Kelly Mason.

November 15, 2022
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Director Emilio Hernandez was excused due to a family emergency.

District staff and community members identified included Superintendent Todd Hamilton, David Collins,
Melissa Locke, Dustin Reese, Brett Yancy, Brian Megert, Taylor Madden, Pat Best, Judy Bowden,
Whitney McKinley, Michael Wargo, Kenny Weigandt, Ame Beard, Kimberlee Pelster, Lesa Haley, José
da Silva, Marilyn Williams, Megan Knight, Jamie Strand, Dave Strand, Alana Strand, Mae Brockmann,
Giselle Garcia, Ariel Jorkan, Andy Price, Karri Thiele, Brooklyn Ramierez, Desiree Antoun, Jonathan
Gault, Ariana Lagarda Pacheco.

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Chair Raven asked for a motion to approve the November 14, 2022 agenda as presented.

MOTION: Director Mann moved, seconded by Director Mason, to approve the November 14, 2022
agenda as presented.

Chair Raven called for a roll call vote. Chair Raven asked each Board member to indicate if they
supported the motion in favor of approving the November 14, 2022 agenda as presented:
Director Light — Yes, Director Mann — Yes, Director Mason — Yes and Director Raven — Yes.

Motion passed, 4:0.

3. PRESENTATIONS

A. Student Board Representative Communication
A3: Mae Brockmann shared the following highlights about activities and events which took place at A3
in the last month:

e Student leaders participated in a training called Sources of Strength which is an upstream suicide
prevention program

e Family Art Nights continued with classes offered for middle school students through adults.
Next art night will take place on December 9+, 5:00-8:00pm

e Fall dance for all grades took place on October 26+

e Fall student led conferences took place October 27+ and 28-

e After school academic support group took place on October 27+ and will continue every Tuesday
after school. This is available to all A3 students.

e Students focused on Anti-Bullying Week by watching a community movie at the Wildish.

¢ In recognition of World Mental Health Day, they held an all school assembly at the Wildish to
introduce all A3 support staff. The assembly also included a presentation by HOOT.

e Students enjoyed showing their school spirit week by dressing up each day.

e School Safety presentation on November 8 by SRO Officer Newton which discussed student
safety in the downtown corridor and where to find additional resources in their school and the
community.

e There will be a turkey giveaway on November 21+

Gateways High School: Susan Rogers shared the following highlights:
e Spirit Week was October 31+ thru November 2~
e Many parents attended the student led conferences which took place November 3+ and 4~
e An awards assembly was held the week of November 14+ where students were celebrated for
outstanding academics, attendance, hardest working students, most positive students, most

November 15, 2022
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improved students, students who went above and beyond and students who demonstrated great
time management.

All school Canned Food Drive and food basket donations were collected during the month of
October.

Psychology and Geology are two new classes that will be offered during night school

Weekly visits from Hoots which provide a broad range of free, confidential services to students
including mental health supports, assistance with food stamps and homelessness.

Springfield High School: Giselle Garcia-Rosales shared the following highlights:

Latinx Family Coordinator, Elena Espinosa received an award from LCC for 20 years of service
educating Latinx students in Lane County

Annual Latinx Family Night was held at SHS with 400 in attendance

The Source of Strength class focused on opportunities for students to give back to the community
through donations of food and clothing

SHS Acting Ensemble celebrated their 35+ installment in November.

The theater production of Cinderella Waltz would be running November 17-19 beginning at
7:00pm

Senior Night for all fall sports, celebrating seniors and their successful seasons. Boys Cross
Country Team had their best finish in recent years at the state meet.

Auto Tech Program received new equipment provided by ESSER funds

Thurston High School: Brooklyn Ramirez shared the following highlights:

Our Multicultural Club, Black Student Union, Women Empowerment Club and Gender Sexuality
Alliance are thriving this year

Fall sports celebrated their seniors and they were also recognized at the Fall Sports Pep Rally
The Excellent Eight Awards has returned. This program recognizes eight excellent students
every month

The CN Political Science class students participated in a mock election

Academic support time continues to be available to students during advisory time. Students have
the opportunity to connect with their teachers for help getting their grades up. In addition to this
time, the Academic Success Center also offers tutoring.

Mental health and resilience continue to be a focus at the school and an area for ongoing need.
First Homecoming dance since 2019. It was very successful with over 900 students in
attendance.

In October, they hosted a Halloween Carnival open to the community with 15 THS clubs helping
to run the event.

Upcoming dates and events at THS:

Canned Food Drive — November 14-18
Fall Play, Peter and the Starcatcher — November 17-19 at 7:30pm

Football Semi-Final Game — November 18 at 7:00pm, Willamette
University

Robotics League Meet 1 — November 19 at 10:00am
Holiday Craft Fair — November 25-26

Club Rush — December 2 at 11:00am

Tree of Joy — December 5-9

November 15, 2022
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4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Chair Raven read the following statement concerning public comment:

This is the portion of our agenda for public comment. The board provides three ways for community
members to share public comment: written public comment, in person oral public comment and virtual
public comment. Written public comment is received via email. Public comment received via email for
this evening has been reviewed by the Board and has also been posted on the District’s website. The
deadline for submitting a request for oral public comment was today at noon. Those who requested an
opportunity to speak this evening were notified by the board secretary about their request.

We encourage groups with a common purpose to designate a spokesperson. If your comments will be
covered by a group spokesperson, please indicate so when your name is called. I want to remind those
members of the public who have indicated a desire to make comments that our policy provides for a
limitation of three (3) minutes per person.

The Board will not hear comments regarding any school personnel. We ask those speaking to refrain
from using names and titles of school personnel. Any complaints regarding a particular employee must
be processed through the procedure set forth in Board policy KL, which requires that complaints be
submitted in writing to the Superintendent. This procedure must be followed before there is any Board
involvement with such issues. A compliment involving a staff member should be sent to the
superintendent, who will forward it to the employee, their supervisor and the Board.

Speakers are reminded that their public comments will be limited to three (3) minutes.

Willamette Leadership Academy sophomore, Alana Strand discussed her many reasons for choosing to
attend the academy. She felt that it was a safer environment to be in, to learn and thrive in. She thanked
the Board for supporting WLA.

4. ACTION ITEMS

A. Approve Consent Agenda

1. October 10, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes

October 24, 2022 Work Session Minutes
Financial Report
Personnel Action, Resolution #22-23.013
Budget Calendar Approval, Resolution #22-23.014
Alternative Education Program Approval, Resolution #22-23.015

AN R

MOTION: Director Mason moved, Director Mann seconded the motion to approve the Consent Agenda.

Chair Raven called for a roll call vote. Ms. Raven asked each Board member to indicate if they supported
the motion in favor of approving the Consent Agenda: Director Light — Yes, Director Mann — Yes,
Director Mason — Yes and Director Raven — Yes.

Motion passed, 4:0.

B. Adopt OSBA 2022-2023 Legislative Priorities and Principles, Resolution #22-23.016
Prior to December 15, 2022, school boards across the state must take official action on Oregon School
Boards Association Board and/or Legislative Policy Committee positions. School boards must submit
their votes online, using the information provided to Board secretaries and superintendents.

November 15, 2022
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Superintendent Hamilton recommended that the Springfield Board of Directors adopt the proposed 2022-
2023 Oregon School Boards Association’s Legislative priorities and Principles as recommended by the
Legislative Policy Committee.

It is further recommended that the Board direct the Superintendent or designee to submit this vote online
to OSBA no later than midnight on December 15, 2022.

MOTION: Director Light moved, Director Mason seconded the motion to adopt the proposed 2022-
2023 Oregon School Boards Association’s Legislative priorities and Principles as recommended by the
Legislative Policy Committee and that the Superintendent or designee to submit this vote online to OSBA
no later than midnight on December 15, 2022.

Chair Raven asked if there was any discussion.

Chair Raven had attended one of the round table discussions at a recent OSBA conference and
appreciated the way the legislative priorities were divided into budget, workforce and infrastructure. She
noted that it was an opportunity for new introductions, explanations and information to be presented to
the thirty-three new legislators, to ensure that they knew what education means in Oregon and for the
need for Board members to be advocates for the students.

Chair Raven called for a roll call vote. Ms. Raven asked each Board member to indicate if they supported
the motion in favor of adopting the proposed 2022-2023 Oregon School Boards Association’s Legislative
Priorities and Principles as recommended by the Legislative Policy Committee and to direct the
Superintendent or designee to submit this vote online to OSBA no later than midnight on

December 15, 2022: Director Light —Yes, Director Mann —Yes, Director Mason — Yes

and Director Raven — Yes.

Motion passed, 4:0.

C. Approve English Language Arts Curriculum Adoption, Resolution #22-23.017
In accordance with Board Policy IIAA, Textbook Selection and Adoption, the title(s) listed below are
presented to the Board for approval for the (K-12) Language Arts programs.

These titles provide Language Arts components correlated to the Oregon State Language Arts Standards
and reflect the recommendation of the Springfield Public Schools Language Arts Adoption Committee(s).

Whitney McKinley recommended that the Board of Directors approve the request of:
K-5: Wonders from McGraw Hill, 2020

For basal use in the Elementary Language Arts Program.
6-8: AmplifyELA from Amplify, 2019

For basal use in the Middle School Language Arts Program.
9-12: StudySync from McGraw Hill, 2021

For basal use in the High School Language Arts Program.

November 15, 2022
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MOTION: Director Mann moved, Director Mason seconded the motion to approve the request of the
materials presented for basal use in the Elementary, Middle School and High School Language Arts
Programs.

Chair Raven asked if there was any discussion.

Board members expressed the following thoughts and concerns regarding the Language Arts adoption:

e Appreciation for the amount of information that was shared with the Board and having all
questions answered by staff during the Board presentations

e Appreciation for multiple supplemental materials that teachers could use as needed in their
instruction

e Appreciation for the process the District uses for choosing textbook materials for adoption

e Appreciation for the extended amount of time and meetings staff spent to bring these materials
forward for adoption

e Reservations were expressed by one Board member regarding the one-size-fits-all curriculum and
the cost of the curriculum.

e Desire to see additional subjects for curriculum adoptions brought to the Board for review in the
near future.

Chair Raven called for a roll call vote. Ms. Raven asked each Board member to indicate if they supported
the motion to adopt the materials presented for basal use in the Elementary, Middle School and High
School Language Arts Programs: Director Light — No, Director Mann — Yes, Director Mason — Yes and
Director Raven — Yes.

Motion passed, 3:1.

D. Approve OSAA Cooperative Sponsorship, Resolution #22-23.018
Full member schools, located in the same geographic area, may apply for cooperative sponsorship for an
OSAA activity when a school has difficulty sponsoring the activity by itself.

For the 2022-2023 academic year, the following program is applying for cooperative sponsorship: Girls
Swimming — Thurston High School and Mohawk High School.

Support for this application will make activities available for students that would not be available in their
resident school because of a lack of numbers if joint sponsorship did not occur. This agreement would be
valid until 2024-2025.

David Collins recommended that the Board of Directors support the OSAA Cooperative Sponsorship
Application for girls Swimming between Thurston High School and Mohawk High School.

MOTION: Director Light moved, Director Mason seconded the motion to support the OSAA
Cooperative Sponsorship Application for girls Swimming between Thurston High School and Mohawk
High School.

Chair Raven called for discussion.

Director Light noted that those collaborative agreements discussed were great and that he supported any
that came through. He stated it was important to lend support to other districts.

November 15, 2022
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Chair Raven called for a roll call vote. Ms. Raven asked each Board member to indicate if they were in
favor of the motion to approve the OSAA Cooperative Sponsorship Application for girls Swimming
between Thurston High School and Mohawk High School: Director Light — Yes, Director Mann — Yes,
Director Mason — Yes and Director Raven — Yes.

Motion passed, 4:0.

6. INFORMATION/REPORTS

A. Springfield Public School Summer Learning Program
David Collins, assistant superintendent and Melissa Locke, grants coordinator for the instruction
department shared a presentation regarding the Summer Learning Program for the 2022 summer. Mr.
Collins stated that there were summer learning K-8 funds provided by the state to the school districts
and high school specific funds. There were also matching ESSER funds to support extended learning
opportunities.

Please see below for more information about the Summer Learning Program.

November 15, 2022
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total number of students in grades PK-12+ that

participated in summer learning in SPS!
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K-8 Programs



< 1156

students attended across 10
sites.

K-8th Grade Academic + Enrichment

During this 16-day long camp (4 days/week for

4 weeks) students engaged in the following activities:
Collaborative, content-based learning with a licensed teacher
Social-emotional community building infused into the day
Recreation (including art, cooking, music, PE, crafting, and theater)
taught by PE and music specialists or community partners.
Academic skill practice

Breakfast, lunch, and snack

Some transportation provided.
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<+ 424

students attended across the

K-8th Grade Academic + Enrichment four middle schools.

During this 2-day camp, incoming 6th grade students engaged in
activities to help them transition to middle school by developing:

% Familiarity with their new middle school, including campus, staff,
and expectations.

Connections and friendships with peers.

Breakfast, lunch, and snack.

Some transportation provided.

* % %
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Partners

Willamalane

Lane Arts Council

Food for Lane County
OSU Extension

Healthy Moves

Rose Children's Theater
Springfield Library
Connected Lane County
ARC of Lane County
Lane ESD

UO SAIL

Decision Education Foundation
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High School Programs



148

credits earned by 210 student

L L -

HS Academic + Enrichment

0
|

These high interest, choice based camps in August d =z
enabled students to earn .5 credit for participation. In ~~ a8
partnership with the UO SAIL program and Decision | : '
Education Foundation, we offered a Strong Start transition
camp designed to orient incoming 9th graders to high
school; engaging, hands-on camps including video
production, robotics, culinary, and mechanics/electronics
(in partnership with LCC Diesel Mechanics and Pape
Kenworth); and a visual/ performing arts camp at A3.



HS Academic + Enrichment 1 8 5

For four weeks in July, students who had credits earned by 198 students
fallen behind in the credits needed for
graduation were invited to retake those

courses to earn credit. This opportunity o
was hosted at SHS and THS. o

Students could attend either of the

two-week long course sessions in the : : :
.- : increase in graduation rate as a result of 29
AM, PM, or both, providing multiple

opportunities for credit attainment, with students meeting graduation requirements

the potential of earning up to 2 credits thanks to this opportunity!
during the summer.
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Thank you for supporting
summer learning opportunities in SPS!



Program Summary

# of students, by program

91 W

Preschool 7 KITS

SPARK K-8 | 1156 HS Credit Recovery | 266
HS Acad/Enrich | 210 HS Student Workers | 7
MS Summer Experience | 424 HS Strong Start | 123
Willamalane Day Camps | TBD Willamalane 1 Pass | 3382
ARC Esteam | 12 Connected Lane County | 14

SAIL students 3



B. Willamalane Park and Recreation District Summer Program
Executive Director, Michael Wargo and Community Engagement Director Kenny Weigandt shared a
presentation that highlighted their summer projects which would not have happened at the level provided
without the partnership of the Springfield School District.

Please see below for additional information from their presentation.

November 15, 2022
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Springfield Public Schools Highlights

e Camp Summary
o 125 Camps over 10 weeks
o 1,048 Unique Participants
o 728 SPS students participated at no cost
o 3,125 Camp Spaces Filled

e 1PASS Summary
o 3,382 SPS students received a 1PASS at no cost
o 1PASSes were used 50,735 in 2022







Camp
Summary

Youth Camps

Summer 2021 Summer 2022
Camps Offered 34 75
Total Spots Filled 992 1,573
Unique Participants 382 972
Youth Summer Day Camps (Grades 1st-5th)

Summer 2021 Summer 2022
Camps Offered 40 40
Total Spots Filled 1,189 1,200
Unique Participants 208 259
Early Childhood Summer Day Camps (Ages 3-5)

Summer 2021 Summer 2022
Camps Offered 10 10
Total Spots Filled 200 200
Unique Participants 40 43




Early Highlights
Childhood e 100% of all early childhood and youth camp spots were
Youth filled throughout the course of the ten week summer.

Programs o 85% of all early childhood and youth camp spots were
paid for by SPS grant funds for summer of 2022. The
remaining 15% of unsubsidized spots were those
participants who either received DHS subsidy, were not
enrolled in a Springfield public school, or were out of
district participants.

o Summer of 2022 had the first appearance of a mobile
foam machine! This was a big hit with all of our campers
and we are looking into incorporating this into our
summer 2023 offerings.
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Splash! and WP
_ Summer 2021 Summer 2022

Swim Lesson Classes

Aquatics

Swim Lesson Participants
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What is the 1PASS?

o Adventure Children’s Museum

e Amazon Pool

o Bob Keefer Center for Sports and Recreation
o Camp Putt Adventure Golf Park

e« Echo Hollow Pool

e Emerald Lanes

e Eugene Family YMCA

o Eugene Science Center

e Get Air Trampoline Park

e Laurelwood Golf Course

e Museum of Natural and Cultural History
o River Road Park and Recreation District
e Splash! at Lively Park




Total pass sales
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SPS students

: Percentage of Willamalane
SPS Student Scholarships 1PASS holders

Tota 100.00%




Pass distribution by school
(middle and high school)

SPS Student Scholarship by School N“mh‘;ﬁ;;’:spass Pe'ce’r‘]toalgzr‘;f pass
Thurston High School 369 10.91%
Springfield High School 332 9.80%
A3 High School 30 .89%
Brattain Campus 26 76%
Gateways High School 14 37%
Thurston Middle School 223 6.60%
Hamlin Middle School 204 6.04%
Agnes Stewart Middle School 194 5.73%
Briggs Middle School 164 4.86%
Willamette Leadership Academy 7 21%




Pass distribution by school
(elementary and online)

Thurston Elementary 240 7.10%
Yolanda Elementary 193 5.70%
Ridgeview Elementary 174 515%
Mt. Vernon Elementary 170 5.02%
Douglas Garden Elementary 154 4.55%
Centennial Elementary 150 4.44%
Two Rivers Elementary 150 4.44%
Page Elementary 148 4.39%
Riverbend Elementary 140 413%
Maple Elementary 105 310%
Guy Lee Elementary 99 2.92%
Walterville Elementary 68 2.02%
SPS Online 29 87%




Pass usage

Destination

Number of scans

Percentage of total scans

Get Air Trampoline Park 11,593 22.85%
Emerald Lanes Bowling 7926 15.62%
Camp Putt Adventure Golf Park 7,230 14.25%
Amazon Pool 6,289 12.40%
Splash! at Lively Park 5,830 1.49%
Echo Hollow Pool 4,329 8.53%

Adventure Children’s Museum 2,180 4.30%
Eugene Science Center 1,476 291%

Willamalane Park Swim Center 1,287 2.54%
Bob Keefer Center 800 1.58%

Eugene Family YMCA 494 0.97%
Laurelwood Golf Course 557 1.10%

River Road Park and Recreation Pool 447 0.88%
Natural and Cultural History Museum 0.59%




Thank you for being such amazing partners!

' '
-

& Swillamalane

‘u Park and Recreation District




Director Mann asked how the 1PASS revenues were distributed amongst the organizations. Mr. Wargo
said that it was an algorithm based on the number of scans, then organizations received a percentage
based on those scans and passes sold. He said the more scans, the more popular their destination, the
higher their revenue share would be.

Mr. Weigandt stated the businesses took a discount on their admission price. They made some money, but
more so, it was a partnership pass. They did not have much turnover. Knowing that it was good for
business and community, destination businesses continued their partnerships.

Chair Raven was proud of Willamalane for looking deeper and problem solving to make the 1PASS more
accessible to all families. She felt it was wise that they held back a small number of passes for those with
special circumstances.

Director Light said it was a winning program and felt it was a marvelous engagement strategy. He said
this was a needed program and offered the Boards’ help where ever it was needed. He asked if they had
the capacity for the anticipated growth. Mr. Wargo answered, that was the key, they did not want to
oversaturate the 1 PASS program. They would be in close communications with businesses while they
continued to study the numbers in order to create the best sales plan.

Mr. Collins said that ongoing state grant funds dedicated towards learning, coupled with a percentage of
ESSER funds really supported this program.

Mr. Weigandt stated there was an interest at the Legislature about the use of summer funds. He
concluded by sharing that Willamalane has started their preliminary conversations around what their
advocacy efforts would look like this year when they go back to Washington D.C. with United Front.

C. Superintendent Communication
Superintendent Hamilton attended a Lane County School District and Community Partners event, where
their conversations focused on how they were supporting their Youth of Color, Youth with Disabilities,
Youth Navigating Poverty, Foster Care and Homelessness, Youth Learning English, Juvenile Justice
Connected Youth, LGBQ+ Youth, and Migrant and New Arrival Youth. He brought to light various
partners that offered their support: Food for Lane County, The Arc, Lane County Health and Human
Services, Friends of the Children and the Fifteenth Night. The group discussed where their strengths and
weaknesses were in their support of youth in our community. The next meeting will be held in January.
Mr. Hamilton attended the Springfield Education Foundation’s Night of Eleven Thousand Stars and said
it exceeded any other education foundation in their community. He also attended the Springfield High
Latinx Family Night and noted that it was a beautiful evening. The elected officials and administrators of
Team Springfield, including Springfield Utility Board, Springfield Public Schools, the City of Springfield
and Willamalane Parks and Recreation Department gathered together for agency updates and a
discussion on diversity, inclusion and belonging.

D. Board Communication
Chair Raven shared that January 7th and 14th had been identified as the dates for the Board Retreat. More
information would be announced. She felt the Springfield Education Foundation event, Night of Eleven
Thousand Stars was incredible all the way around and loved how it strikes a balance between giving
students what they need and allowing teachers creativity and movement within the profession. Ms. Raven
really enjoyed the keynote speakers at the OSBA conference she recently attended. She went to a
workshop on board retreats and enjoyed the regional meeting for board members and superintendents
from Lane County. She learned a lot about a great program having success in Crook County, about re-
engaging students in high school and particularly students that experience homelessness. Ms. Raven was
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invited to attend a local faith-based community group that is building a temple in the area. She said it was
an incredible event that was a unique opportunity for the community to come together. The Board Chair
Cafe hosted by OSBA was coming up soon and she would be attending. She concluded by reminding
everyone of the next Board meeting, held on December 12, 2022.

Director Light shared that he also had attended the OSBA conference and enjoyed being there as a Board
and learning about their professional development. He mentioned that he had been invited out to
Riverbend to watch the orchestra program. While attending the OSBA conference, Mr. Light had the
opportunity to hear the Willamette High School’s jazz band perform and noted that they were
outstanding. He announced that he had forwarded invitations to the Eugene Symphony Youth Concert, to
all the Board members, announcing the date and time. He encouraged all to attend.

Director Mann shared that while attending the Team Springfield event, Taylor Madden gave a very
powerful and informative equity and inclusion presentation. Vulnerable conversations from the members
of the different agencies were held. The fundraiser, Night of Eleven Thousand Stars was once again the
biggest party in town. $260,000 was raised for the Innovative Educator grants. The Springfield Education
Foundation was looking to make some changes on how donors could be honored, but also how to increase
participation.

Director Mason shared that over the past few months she had been visiting schools to meet staff,
principals and students. She felt the OSBA conference was well put together. Ms. Mason made note of
some of her favorite moments at the conference which included a workshop on trauma informed
education. Her favorite session was about tribal history where she learned about Senate Bill 13 and what
some districts had done to implement that, what went well and what did not. She also attended workshops
on equity, policy making and identifying racism. Ms. Mason truly enjoyed a student led presentation with
a panel of high school students who were in leadership rolls at their schools.

8. NEXT MEETING
The next Board meeting is scheduled for December 12, 2022 as a Business meeting with the start time of
7:00pm

Chair Raven thanked everyone for attending.

9. ADJOURNMENT
With no other business, Chair Raven adjourned the meeting at 8:45 p.m.

(Minutes recorded by Trenay Ryan (LCOG)
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BOARD REPORT December 12, 2022

SPRINGFIELD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
2022-2023 Revenue/Expenditure Forecast
As of November 30, 2022
**Please see attached report*™

REVENUES: Due to the early nature of the school year, projections are
preliminary and will likely change significantly over the course of the year.

Both current year and prior year tax collections are projected for 100%
collection. To date there has been $19.5 milion in current year tax revenue
received, as well as $251372 in prior year tax revenue received, which is
an early indication that prior year tax revenue collections will be stronger
than in the immediate past. This report is based on the information
received through the Lane County Tax and Assessment office.

The district's most significant portion of revenue is the district’s scheduled
Basic School Support payments through the Oregon Department of
Education. The district projects to receive approximately $84.05 million for
the current year based on 2022-23 projected enrollment and the allocation
designated by the Oregon Department of Education. As District enrollment
is below projections for the current year, the current year SSF allocation is
based on the prior year’s enrollment (2021-22).

The district is anticipating receiving approximately $190,000 in County
School Funds. To date the district has not received anticipated funds.

The district is anticipating receiving approximately $1.26 million in
Common School Funds. To date the district has received $624,139.

EXPENDITURES: Due to the early nature of the school year, projections are

preliminary and will likely change significantly over the course of the year.

Projected salary expenditures are based upon staff allocations adopted
during the budgeting process and is estimated using actual and projected
data (per previous year-end estimates). The (conservative) current
projection of 98.6% expenditures for salary related items.

Benefit amounts are based upon projected staffing expenditures and are
directly tied to the salary assumptions and are currently anticipated to be
98.8% expended. This projection will change as the year advances.

The purchased services, supplies and capital outlay expenditure
projections are based upon budgeted expenditures and anticipated to be
expended similar to past trends.

Other objects include the cost for property and liability insurance and is
based upon premiums negotiated after the 2022-2023 adopted budget.
Fund transfers allocated during the 2022-23 budget process include $1.8
million (Co-Curricular Fund), 1.0 million (Instructional Materials Fund),
1,000,000 (Technology Fund) and $434,246 (Debt Service Fund).



Additional Notes: For the 2022-2023 budget year the current estimate of ending
fund balance is $10,216,031. Included in this number is the preliminary un-
audited ending fund balance from the 2021-2022 fiscal year ($19,500,000). As
with previous years, this is an early estimate and accounts for the
reductions/adjustments/assumptions made in the current year operating budget,
as well as the use of reserves as a strategy for adjusting to the unanticipated loss
of enrollment.

Submitted by:

Brett M. Yancey
Chief Operations Officer



REVENUES:
Property taxes - current

Property taxes - prior years

Other local sources

Lane ESD Apportionment

County School Fund
State School Fund
Federal Forest Fees
Common School Fund

Total revenues

Beginning fund balance

Total Beginning fund balance

Total resources

EXPENDITURES:
Personal services
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies & materials
Capital outlay
Other objects
Fund transfers

Total expenditures

Unappropriated
Contingency

Total appropriations
Total resources
Total appropriations

Ending fund balance
Less: contingency

Net fund balance

SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT 19
2022-2023 REVENUE/EXPENDITURE FORECAST

as of
11/30/22
ESTIMATED
ACTUAL from PROJECTED
through 11/30/22 PROJECTED as % of
BUDGET 11/30/22 to year end 2022-2023 BUDGET
29,488,180 19,493,099 9,995,081 29,488,180 100.00%
350,000 251,372 98,628 350,000 100.00%
608,000 644,873 150,000 794,873 130.74%
35,000 0 35,000 35,000 100.00%
300,000 0 190,000 190,000 63.33%
83,073,888 41,826,399 42,220,712 84,047,111 101.17%
400,000 0 400,000 400,000 100.00%
1,054,017 624,139 640,211 1,264,350 119.96%
115,309,085 62,839,882 53,729,631 116,569,514 101.09%
19,103,159 0 19,500,000 19,500,000 102.08%
19,103,159 0 19,500,000 19,500,000 102.08%
134,412,244 62,839,882 73,229,631 136,069,514 101.23%
66,114,967 18,048,257 48,066,710 65,212,554 98.64%
39,131,699 9,412,878 29,718,821 38,661,055 98.80%
9,951,251 2,988,780 6,962,471 9,951,251 100.00%
3,626,802 1,400,696 2,226,106 3,626,802 100.00%
1,603,500 1,080,069 523,431 1,603,500 100.00%
1,191,018 1,142,889 48,129 1,191,018 100.00%
4,234,246 4,234,246 0 4,234,246 100.00%
125,853,483 38,307,816 87,545,667 124,480,426 98.91%
7,558,761 0 0 0 -

1,000,000 0 0 0 0.00%
134,412,244 38,307,816 87,545,667 124,480,426 92.61%

62,839,882 73,229,631 136,069,514

38,307,816 87,545,667 125,853,483

24,532,066 (14,316,036) 10,216,031

0 0

24,532,066 (14,316,036) 10,216,031




RESOLUTION #22-23.019 DATE: DECEMBER 12, 2022

PERSONNEL ACTION

RELEVANT DATA:

Each month the board of Directors is asked to approve personnel action involving licensed
employees. Tonight the Board is being asked to approve the attached new hires and resignation.
If the Board of Directors would like to discuss any of these recommendations in executive
session, in accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(f) Exempt Public Records, the employee should be
identified by the number preceding the name and it will be withdrawn pending further instruction
from the Board. Dustin Reese is available for questions.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board of Directors approve the personnel action for licensed employees as
reflected in this resolution and any addendum presented along with this resolution. Categories
include:

e New Hires

¢ Resignation

SUBMITTED BY: APPROVED BY:

Dustin Reese Todd Hamilton
Director of Human Resources Superintendent



CURRENT

NO NAME OR EMPLOYEE ID STATUS FTE EFFECTIVE DATE NOTES
NEW HIRES

1 |FASSBENDER, TYLER TEMPORARY FT 12/05/2022 TEMPORARY TEACHER

2 |GEROULD, JENNIFER TEMPORARY FT 11/22/2022 TEMPORARY TEACHER

3 |GRAVES, CALE TEMPORARY FT 11/16/2022 TEMPORARY TEAC HER

4 |O’REILLY, MATTHEW TEMPORARY FT 11/28/2022 TEMPORARY TEACHER
TEMPORARY TEACHER

5 |ROSETA, RIHANA TEMPORARY FT 11/21/2022 FROM CLASSIFIED
TEMPORARY TEACHER

6 |ZERINGUE, AUGUSTIN TEMPORARY FT 11/17/2022 FROM CLASSIFIED

RESIGNATIONS
7 384607 CONTRACT TEACHER| FT 11/30/2022 RESIGNED




RESOLUTION #22-23.020 DATE: DECEMBER 12, 2022
OUT-OF-STATE TRIP REQUEST

SPRINGFIELD HIGH SCHOOL’S
CHEER

RELEVANT DATA:
The objective of our trip is to allow SHS Cheer team to engage in a highly
competitive and learning experience that will advance the individual student-
athletes and team. This experience will encourage our cheer student-athletes to
be leaders in the school and to connect the value of working hard in all aspects of
their student and athletic lives to achieve high level outcomes.
RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended the Board of Directors approve SHS Cheer team’s request to
travel to Anaheim, California to participate in the USA Spirit Nationals. Dates of
travel will be February 23-28, 2023.

Four (4) school days will be missed.

The Cheer team has fundraised all monies needed to cover the cost of this trip,
including the cost to cover subs for district employee volunteer chaperones.

There is no cost to the district for this trip.

Courtney Minyard and Mindy LeRoux will be available to answer questions.

SUBMITTED BY: RECOMMENDED BY:

David Collins Todd Hamilton
Assistant Superintendent Superintendent



Springfield School District Cabinet Mtng Date/Decision: __11/29/22 aprvd
Board Mtng Date/Decision:

OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST

School: SHS Contact: Audrea Shelley/Jordan Fink Date: 10/21/22
Club/Organization Going on Trip: SHS Cheer # of Students (M/F): 0/9
Number of Faculty Chaperones: 5 Number of Parent/Other Chaperones: 0

Names of Chaperones:
School Staff: Courtney Minyard, Jordan Fink, Donia McCarthy, Brooke DeLange, Melissa Gore

Parents/Others:
Destination: ~ Anaheim, CA Dates of Trip: Feb 23-28, 2023
Estimated Total Cost: $16,244.98 Cost to the Program/Building*:  $0

(Includes substitute teacher cost.)
Amount Fundraised to Date: ~ $20,000

Fundraising Activities: UO concessions, selling butter braids & cookie dough and hosting cheer competitions
Lodging: Marriott Anaheim — 700 West Convention Way, Anaheim, CA 92802
Food: Food is budgeted per diem each day

Method of travel:  Air to LAX, shuttle to hotel. Walk to convention center, public transportation

(Note: District vehicles are not available for out-of-state travel)

# of School Days Missed: 4
(If more than two school days will be missed, please attach additional rationale to justify absences)

Special insurance, if applicable: (Company)

Type of Coverage Cost per Person
Applicable forms on file: (please check)

X Parent Permission Form X Medical Release Form X Student Fundraising Agreement

Approved: X Denied: Principal: Courtney Minyaed Date: 11/17/22

Approved: X Denied: Director: Mindy LeRoux Date: 11/18/22

IMPORTANT NOTE

Out of State Trip request forms must be submitted and approved at least 90 days prior to date of
proposed trip before any commitment can be made to parents, students, etc. Any changes to this trip

request must be covered and resubmitted to the Board in an Addendum.

*All costs must be paid by the program or building. The District assumes no costs for trips.



SHS Cheer
USA Spirit Nationals
Anaheim, CA
February 23-28, 2023

PURPOSE OF THE TRIP

What are the objectives of the trip and how are the experiences provided related to class or
school program?

The purpose of this trip is to allow our student-athletes the opportunity to engage in a highly
competitive and learning experience that will advance the individual

student-athletes and team. It is a return to normal following COVID protocols, providing
opportunities that have not been afforded to them since before COVID. The lessons student-
athletes learn outside of the classroom as part of a team are valuable to learn: growth mindset, goal
setting, work ethic, leadership, teamwork and persistence. This experience will encourage our
cheer student-athletes to be leaders in the school and to connect the value of working hard in all
aspects of their student and athletic lives to achieve high level outcomes.

How will the activities on the trip provide opportunities for students to obtain new skills,
insights, knowledge, or appreciation? How will the trip provide opportunities for students to
use those skills they have already acquired?

During this trip, the cheer team will be demonstrating all the skills they have developed as SHS
athletes throughout our season in our game day routine. Additionally, they will be representing our
school and student body as leaders and student-athletes. The routine they will demonstrate will
consist of the expected band dance, chant, cheer and our school fight song. All of these elements
are founded in athleticisms, teamwork, leadership and demonstrate not only athleticism but a core
value of SHS school spirit: persistence, teamwork, work ethic, setting and reaching goals.
Nationals gives our student-athletes the opportunity to experience other schools and programs from
multiple states and regions throughout the US, the diverse experiences these athletes and teams
bring to Nationals, will be modeled in their choreography, style, skills, and sportsmanship. The
experience will elevate our student-athletes' athletic goal setting and program goals to strive to be
better leaders and skilled cheerleaders and student-athletes; this is an experience they can't get
anywhere else.

How will the experience motivate students for further learning?

At Nationals our team will be competing in the game day division, which will prepare our student-
athletes to potentially cheer at the collegiate level and will give them the opportunity to be seen by
college level coaches and programs and possibly access college scholarships. Our goal is to
prepare our student-athletes for success after high school both academically and athletically and
this is valuable experience that prepares them for college and helps them understand college
expectations and process.

Does the trip make best use of available time and money?

The SHS cheerleading program is year-round. We are careful and intentional in regards to student-
athletes missing academic instruction time. We are very conservative in regards to student-athletes



missing school. We will ensure our student-athletes are set up for success by getting all school
work ahead of time for the classes they will be missing and we will set aside study table time to
support them in their academics on the trip. The student-athletes will communicate with all of their
teachers and make plans for make-up work and asynchronous learning. We have been fundraising
for the past three years in preparation for Nationals, however with COVID this opportunity had to
be postponed several times. The money has been raised and we have been careful in designing the
itinerary to support students academically while being fiscally responsible with the expenditures on
the trip.

What effect does the trip have on other classes or programs?

his trip is an out of class time opportunity that will require student-athletes to not be in classes for
four school days. The consideration for loss of instruction time was not taken lightly and the out of
class time will be managed by the coaches to assure that minimal learning time is lost. The
experiences gained from this opportunity will be beneficial to them as a student and athlete and
encourage them to be stronger leaders, work harder and achieve more as individuals and as a
program team. The skills and knowledge could not be gained in an alternative setting.

All cheerleader grades and attendance will be checked weekly and tutoring support will be
provided through the end of the semester. Student-Athletes will be held to the standard of passing a
minimum of five classes and be OSAA and SPS academically eligible to participate in
competition. All cheerleaders will do grade and attendance checks weekly prior to Nationals.
Following the return from Nationals student-athletes will do a grade check the Friday and Monday
after return to assure student-athletes completed all makeup and asynchronous assignments.

What arrangements for transportation and other factors pertaining to supervision of
students have been considered to ensure maximum safety?

We will be flying to LAX, California and riding using a public transportation shuttle approved by
the school and district. All nine SHS Varsity Cheerleader student-athletes will attend, there will be
four adults accompanying them which ensures a 2-1 student to adult ratio. We will assure that
student-athletes and chaperones will stay together and travel in one large group. Student safety is
our first priority.

Has all monies required to cover the cost of this trip been fundraised?
Yes. All monies have been raised for this trip.



RATIONALE*
*Rationale must be included if students will miss two or more school days.

We have six seniors on the SHS Cheerleading team this year, these student-athletes set a
goal about this opportunity during their Freshman year alongside several other student-
athletes that graduated prior to getting this opportunity due to COVID. They, along with
their prior teammates, have fundraised for the past four years with hopes of being able to
go to Nationals and arrive at their goal. They have shown a high level of commitment,
work ethic and persistence through COVID and due to COVID they have not yet had the
opportunity to experience Nationals. These student-athletes work hard every week to be
the best student-athletes they can be, and this program has finally arrived at meeting
every step of their goal, minus actually going to Nationals which they committed to four
years ago. These are nine, hard-working student-athletes and I believe they deserve this
opportunity.

Due to our intentionality to minimize instruction time loss, this decision is not made
lightly. We plan to travel on Thursday and return on Tuesday to miss as little of school as
possible while minimizing expenses. Many of our SHS Cheerleaders come from
low-income households and would never individually be afforded the chance to
experience this type of experience that they can with their team, now. They all continue
to work hard and support each other, not only in fundraising but also as their teammates
balance academics, games, practice, and even jobs.



SHS Cheer
USA Spirit Nationals
Anaheim, CA
February 23-28, 2023

ITINERARY

Departure Date & Time: February 23,2023  5:00 AM

Return Date & Time: February 28, 2023 5:00 AM

February 23« (Thursday):

5:00 am: Meet at Eugene Airport. Flying out at 6:15 am.

6:00 am: Breakfast at the airport

11 :00 am: Arrive in Anaheim, CA. Take ground transportation to hotel and check in
12:00-2:00 pm: Walk to Lunch

2:00 -6:00 pm: Asynchronous Study Table (Hotel Conference Room)

6:00 pm: Dinner

8:00 pm: Back at hotel rooms

10:00 pm: Lights Out

February 24th (Friday)-COMPETITION DAY 1 (Training Day & Routine Run Through)

6:00 am: Wake up and fitness

6:30- 7:30 am : Breakfast and Get Ready

8:00 am-11:00 pm: Anaheim Convention Center. Schedule to be released at a later
date.

(1.5 hours of Asynchronous Study Table will be assigned to each student- athlete with
coach tutor during the hours of attendance at competition)

11:30 pm: Back at hotel rooms

12:00 am: Lights Out

February 25th(Saturday)-COMPETITION Day 2 (Performance Day)

6:00 am: Wake up and fitness

6:30- 7:30 am : Breakfast and Get Ready

8:00 am-5 pm: Anaheim Convention Center. Schedule to be released at a later date
6:00-8:00 pm: Dinner

8:00 pm: Back at hotel rooms

10:00 pm: Lights Out

February 25th (Sunday)-Competition Day 3

6:00 am: Wake up and fitness

7:00 pm: Breakfast and Get Ready

8:00 am-2:00 pm: Anaheim Convention Center. Schedule to be released at a later date
2:00-3:00 pm: Walk to Disney District- Late Lunch

3:00- 10:00 pm: Park Activities



o We will be together as a group and assign breakout groups/activities. (there will
always be one adult per 2 girls in each group)

February 27th (Monday)-Team Building and Park Adventure

e 7:00- 8:00 am: Wake up & Breakfast

*  9:00-11:00 am: Asynchronous Study Table (Hotel Conference Room)
e 11:00 am: Walk to Parks together & Assign Break Out Groups

* 1:00 pm: Lunch together (set team goals for the 2023 season)

e 6:30 pm: Dinner together

* 11 :00 pm Fireworks Display (team sits together)

e 12:00 am: Back at hotel rooms

e 12:30 am: Lights Out

February 28th (Tuesday)-Travel home

* 5:00 am: Leave hotel via bus service to go to airport
e 8:40 am: Flight departs

e 1:30 pm: Arrive at Eugene Airport



RESOLUTION: #22-23.021 DECEMBER 12, 2022

2021-2022 ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT

RELEVANT DATA:

Oregon State law requires an annual audit of all financial transactions of the School
District for all operating funds, including grant funds and trust funds. The independent
accounting firm of Pauly, Rogers and Co., PC conducted the 2021-2022 fiscal year-end
audit and a copy of this document was made available to the School Board prior to
tonight’s meeting. A copy of the report is published on the District website, as well as
available tonight. In addition to the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) is
the management letters for the District addressed to the School Board. This year a district
finance committee was presented with the document and a comprehensive explanation of
the detail. Included on the committee are two (2) Board members and two (2) budget
committee members. Joan Bolls be available for a brief presentation and any questions
you may have.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board of Directors accept the audited financial reports for

2021-2022 as presented by the firm of Pauly, Rogers and Co., PC.

SUBMITTED BY: RECOMMENDED BY:

Brett M. Yancey Todd Hamilton
Chief Operations Officer Superintendent



PAULY, ROGERS AND Co., P.C.

12700 SW 72" Ave. ¢ Tigard, OR 97223
(503) 620-2632 ¢ (503) 684-7523 FAX
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

y TERTIFIED PUBLIC ACTCOUNTANTS N

December 1, 2022

To the Board of Directors
Springfield School District

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Springfield School District for the year ended June 30, 2022. Professional
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that we communicate to
you the following information related to our audit.

Purpose of the Audit

Our audit was conducted using sampling, inquiries and analytical work to opine on the fair presentation of the
basic financial statements and compliance with:

e generally accepted accounting principles and auditing standards

e the Oregon Municipal Audit Law and the related administrative rules
o federal, state and other agency rules and regulations related to expenditures of federal awards

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express
opinions about whether the basic financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of
the basic financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. Our engagement letter
details our nonaudit services we provide; these services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing
Standards.

In planning and performing our audit, we considered internal control over financial reporting in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not
to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. We also considered internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of the basic
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions is not an
objective of our audit. Also in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, we examined, on a test basis, evidence
about compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB’s Compliance Supplement
applicable to each of the major federal programs for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance with
those requirements. While our audit provided a reasonable basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal
determination on compliance with those requirements.

Our responsibility for the supplementary information accompanying the basic financial statements, as described
by professional standards, is to evaluate the presentation of the supplementary information in relation to the basic
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Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C.

financial statements as a whole and to report on whether the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic
financial statements; therefore, our audit involved judgment about the number of transactions examined and the
areas to be tested.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of the District and its environment, including internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements and to design the nature,
timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are
attributable to the District or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the District. We also
communicated any internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under professional
standards.

Results of Audit

1.  Audit opinion letter - an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements has been issued. This means
we have given a “clean” opinion with no reservations.

2. State minimum standards — We found one exception or issue requiring comment.

3. Federal Awards - We found no issues of non-compliance and no questioned costs. We have responsibility to
review these programs and give our opinion on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and tests of
the internal control system, compliance with laws and regulations, and general and specific requirements
mandated by the various awards.

4.  Management letter — No separate management letter was issued

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used are described in Note 1 to the basic financial statements. No new accounting policies
were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2022. We noted no transactions
entered into during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the basic financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the basic financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the basic financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most significant estimates in the financial statements are the actuarial estimate of the District’s
portion of the statewide Net Pension Liability (or Asset) and Other Post Employment Benefits. Other sensitive
estimate(s) affecting the basic financial statements were Management’s estimate of Capital Asset Depreciation,
which is based on useful lives of assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these
estimates in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements or determined that their effects are immaterial. In addition,
none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material,
either individually or in the aggregate, taken as a whole. There were immaterial uncorrected misstatements noted
during the audit which were discussed with management. The uncorrected misstatements or the matters
underlying them could potentially cause future period financial statements to be materially misstated, even if, in
our judgment, such uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements under audit.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the basic financial statements or the
auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the basic financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards with management each year prior to our retention as the auditors. However, these discussions occurred
in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Required Supplementary Information

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that supplements the basic
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We did not audit the required supplementary information and do no express an opinion or provide any assurance
on it.
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Supplementary Information

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information, which accompany the basic financial statements
but are not required supplementary information. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine
that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in
relation to our audit of the basic financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information
to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Other Information

We were not engaged to report on the other information, which accompanies the basic financial statements but is
not required supplementary information. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide

any assurance on it.

Other Matters — Future Accounting and Auditing Issues

In order to keep you aware of new auditing standards issued by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and accounting statements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), we
have prepared the following summary of the more significant upcoming issues:

GASB 96 — SUBSCRIPTION-BASED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ARRANGEMENTS

The effective date for this Statement is for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods
thereafter. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement (1)
defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible
asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures
regarding a SBITA.

GASB 97 — CERTAIN COMPONENT UNIT CRITERIA, AND ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
REPORTING FOR INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 457 DEFERRED COMPENSATION
PLANS — AN AMENDMENT OF GASB 14 & 84, AND A SUPERSESSION OF GASB 32

The requirements of this Statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the duties that a
governing board typically performs from treating the absence of a governing board the same as the
appointment of a voting majority of a governing board in determining whether they are financially
accountable for defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or other employee
benefit plans and (2) limit the applicability of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement 84 to
defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet
the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3 of Statement 74, respectively, are effective
immediately. The requirements of this Statement that are related to the accounting and financial reporting for
Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021.

The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a
governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would
perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined
contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension
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plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial
statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial
reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that
meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans.

GASB 99 — OMNIBUS 2022

The requirements of this Statement that are effective as follows:

e The requirements related to extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP distributions,
disclosures of nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging governments,
clarification of certain provisions in Statement 34, as amended, and terminology updates related to
Statement 53 and Statement 63 are effective upon issuance.

e The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter.

e The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative
instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2023, and all reporting periods thereafter.

The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to
improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified
during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial
reporting for financial guarantees.

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

wre

Kenneth Allen, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
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December 1, 2022

Board of Directors

Springfield Public Schools District No. 19
Springfield, Lane County, Oregon 97477

In accordance with the provision of Oregon Revised Statutes Section 297.405 to 297.555 and 297.990,
known as Municipal Audit Law, there is submitted herewith the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
(ACFR) of Springfield School District No. 19, Lane County, Oregon for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

This report was prepared by the District’s Financial Services Department. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the District. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the
District’s management has established an internal control framework that is designed to protect assets
from loss, theft or misuse, as well as to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the
District’s financial statements. The District’s internal control framework has been designed to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. Internal
control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting
objectives because of its inherent limitations. However, these inherent limitations are known features
of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process
safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk. Because the cost of a control should not exceed
the benefits to be derived, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance, that
the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

We believe that the report and its data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is
presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the
District as measured by the financial activity of its various funds and that all disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain maximum understanding of the District’s financial affairs have been included.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it.

THE DISTRICT

Springfield School District No. 19 is in the Eugene/Springfield metropolitan area, and covers
approximately 185 square miles within Lane County. The City of Springfield is located at the southern
end of the Willamette Valley, midway between the Cascade Mountain Range and the Pacific Ocean.
With the exception of a small northwestern corner, the City lies entirely within the District boundaries.

The District is an independent entity, with a Board of Directors composed of five elected members. For
the 2021-22 school year, the District budgeted 675.41 Full-time Equivalent (FTE) teachers, counselors
and librarians and 614.08 FTE classified staff members (educational assistants, office and support staff,
nutrition services staff, custodians and various maintenance and technical workers). Administrative staff
includes a Superintendent, an Assistant Superintendent, a Chief Operations Officer, 6.0 FTE Department
Directors, 32.5 FTE principals and vice-principals, and 26.80 FTE supervisors and exempt employees.



During the 2021-2022 school year, the District served 9,619 K-12 students in twelve (12) elementary
schools, four (4) middle schools, two (2) comprehensive high schools, and two (2) alternative high
schools, as well as students participating in alternative education programs. One (1) charter school
served an additional 207 middle and high school students. The District operates a
transportation/maintenance center, a print shop/warehouse and administration facilities at locations
other than school sites. The District also owns Brattain House in the City of Springfield’s Historic
Washburne District.

There are various governmental agencies and special service districts, which provide services within the
District’s boundaries. Two of these entities could potentially be considered component units of the
District. There is one charter school operating within the District boundaries - Willamette Leadership
Academy. The District is not financially accountable for the charter school and the nature and
significance of its financial relationship with the District is such that its exclusion would not cause the
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Therefore, the District does not consider the
charter school to be a component unit of the District. Additionally, the Springfield Education Foundation
provides financial support to the District but is not a component unit of the District.

Economic CONDITIONS

Local Economy

Springfield is the ninth largest city in the state of Oregon. The economy of Springfield (population
approximately 62,256) is closely linked with that of the adjacent community of Eugene and other
economic activities within Lane County.

Some of the key business sectors in the local economy include technology, medical technology, specialty
food and beverage products and value added wood products.

As of June 30, 2022 local unemployment was at 3.9% (seasonally adjusted), which is slightly higher than
the State average of 3.5% (seasonally adjusted) and the national average of 3.6%. The Lane county
unemployment rate was at 6.1% (seasonally adjusted) in June of 2021 and has steadily declined in the
current fiscal year to a near record low.

In Oregon, with gains in taxable income and economic growth, the State has seen an unexpected
increase in revenue during the 2021-23 biennium. Employment and industrial production have
continued to grow along with personal income and spending. High inflation rates have fueled concerns
of a looming recession. The Federal reserve has been raising rates in an attempt to cool the economy
and slow inflation. Employment, income and spending in Oregon have continued to grow but at a
slower pace than previously projected. So, although the near-term forecast calls for additional revenue,
there is a more pessimistic outlook going forward.

Affordable housing continues to be a challenge in Lane County. The current estimate is that Oregon has
underbuilt housing by about 6 years’ worth of new construction. To address the shortfall, there will
need to be changes made to the supply side of the housing industry including addressing availability of
land, availability of buildable lots and the cost and timelines of permitting new projects. The workforce
shortage also needs to be addressed.



Enrollment Growth

District enrollment decreased during the 2021-22 year (9,746 in 2020-21 and 9,619 in 2021-22). The
District has experienced a drop in enrollment for the past three fiscal years due to impacts of the COVID-
19 pandemic. The drop is slightly lower than the State average. Statewide, Oregon saw a decline in
enrollment of 1.4% in 2021-22 as compared to a 3.7% decline in 2020-21. Any long-term enrollment
impacts due to the pandemic are not known at this time.

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES

The District’s Internal Control Document provides the framework for its financial accounting system. In
addition, Board policy related to fiscal management and financial reporting assures that there is
accountability within the system. Administrative regulations related to investment of District assets
assures that the following objectives are met; 1) to preserve the capital of the District through
diversification in the types of securities purchased and in the number of institutions, 2) to provide
sufficient liquidity to meet the District’s reasonably anticipated cash requirement, and 3) to attain a
market rate of return on the investment portfolio.

On an annual basis, the Board and Budget Committee meet to address upcoming budget issues for the
following year. As part of its duties, the group is responsible for setting a targeted ending fund balance
for the District. The group bases its recommendation on known budget factors as well as projections of
future economic conditions.

Financial Condition of the District

All obligations were met during 2021-2022 and the District does not face any judgments for past actions.
The most recent rating by Moody’s is “Al.” For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District’s General
Fund ending fund balance was 17.8% of annual operating revenues. The Board of Directors has set a
targeted minimum floor for ending fund balance of 4% of annual operating revenues.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

State Statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The District’s Board
of Directors selected the accounting firm of Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. They have completed their audit
of the District’s financial statements, and their opinion is included in the financial section of this report.
The auditors’ reports on internal control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations are
located in the Single Audit Section.

Government Finance Officers Association Award

For the eighteenth consecutive year, the District applied for and received a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association. The Award is
valid for one year.

In order to be awarded the certificate, the District must publish an easily readable and efficiently

organized Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. Such a report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.



We believe that this award represents the District’s continuing efforts to achieve excellence in the
performance of public service and financial reporting. We also believe that the District’s current Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report meets the program requirements and are therefore submitting it to the
Government Finance Officers Association to determine its eligibility.
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 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANIS ™

December 1, 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Education
Springfield School District
Springfield, Oregon

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Springfield School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Springfield School District, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the general fund and grants and contracts
fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Springfield School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Change in Accounting Principle
The District adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 87- Leases during the fiscal year under audit. Our opinions are not modified with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Springfield School District’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statement.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Springfield School District’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.



e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
the Springfield School District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis, and required
supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CRF) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as listed
in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the other information, as listed in
the table of contents, and the introductory, statistical, and the compliance and other reports sections, as listed in the table of contents, but does not
include the basic financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider whether a material
inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to
describe it in our report.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 1, 2022 on our consideration of the internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report dated December 1, 2022, on
our consideration of compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as
specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of

that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance.
/ M_'"

Kenneth Allen, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO.,, P.C.
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SPRINGFIELD ScHooOL DIsTRICT No. 19
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The discussion and analysis presents the highlights of financial activities and financial position for the
Springfield School District No. 19 (District). The discussion and analysis is designed to:

1) Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues;

2) Provide an overview of the District’s financial activities;

3) Identify changes in the District’s financial position;

4) ldentify any material deviations from the adopted financial plan (budget); and,

5) Identify specific issues related to individual funds and the economic factors affecting the
District.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) is designed to focus on current year activities,
resulting changes and currently known facts. Please read it in conjunction with the Transmittal Letter
(Introductory Section, page i) and the District’s financial statements (Financial Section, beginning on page
17).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

0 In the government-wide statements, the liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of the
District exceeded its assets and deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2022 by $50.40
million. Of this amount, $56.63 million represents the District’s net investment in capital
assets, $.59 million is restricted for debt service, $4.33 million is restricted for other purposes
and the balance, $(111.95) million, is an unrestricted deficit.

0 The District’s total net position increased by $14.93 million.

0 The District’s governmental funds report a combined ending fund balance of $30.66 million,
an increase of $2.49 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 16.05 percent
of this total amount, $4.92 million is restricted, 61.88 percent, $18.97 million is unassigned

and the remainder is nonspendable, committed or assigned.

0 Atthe end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $19.47 million,
or about 17.60% of total General Fund expenditures.

0 The District’s total long-term debt increased by $91.47 million during the 2021-2022 fiscal
year.

REPORT LAYOUT

The District’s annual financial report consists of several sections. Taken together they provide a
comprehensive financial look at the District. The components of the report include the following:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis. This section of the report provides financial highlights, overview
and economic factors affecting the District.
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Basic Financial Statements. Includes three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business. These statements include:

0 The Statement of Net Position. The statement of net position presents information on all of
the assets and liabilities of the District as of the date on the statement. Net position is what
remains after the liabilities have been paid or otherwise satisfied. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the District is improving or deteriorating.

0 The Statement of Activities. The statement of activities presents information showing how
the net position of the District changed over the most recent fiscal year by tracking revenues,
expenses and other transactions that increase or reduce net position. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes). In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are
shown in one category, governmental activities. The District’s basic functions are shown here,
including instruction services, support services, community services, and facilities services.
These activities are primarily financed through property taxes, Oregon’s State School Fund
and other intergovernmental revenues.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 and 19 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the
District’s funds, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds — not the District as a whole. A fundis a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. Springfield School District No. 19, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

0 Governmental Funds. The governmental funds are used to account for essentially the
same function reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing
requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the
government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented
for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the District’s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental funds Balance Sheet and the governmental funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and government-wide financial statements.
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The District maintains four individual major governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental funds Balance Sheet and the governmental
funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General
Fund, Grants and Contracts Fund, Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief
Fund (ESSER), and Debt Service Fund all of which are considered to be major funds. Data
from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 and 24 of this report.

There is budgetary comparison information for the General Fund, Grants and Contracts Fund and
ESSER Fund that can be found on pages 27, 28 and 29 of this report.

O Proprietary funds. The District maintains one proprietary fund type. Internal service funds
are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
District’s various functions. The District uses two internal service funds - one to account
for printing and publishing services and one to account for the District’s self-insured
health insurance plans. Because these services predominately benefit governmental
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 through 32 of this
report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because
the resources of those funds are not available to support the District’s own programs. The accounting
method used for fiduciary funds is the same as that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 33 and 34 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 35 through 88 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information. This Management’s Discussion and Analysis, is
considered required supplementary information.

Required supplementary information concerning contributions and funding progress for the District’s
Voluntary Early Retirement, Other Post Employment Benefit plans, and PERS Pension and Other Post
Employment Benefit Plans is presented on pages 90 through 103. Other supplemental information
including combining statements and detail budget reports is presented on pages 105 through 130.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, liabilities exceeded assets by $50.40 million at June 30, 2022. Capital
assets, which consist of the District’s land, buildings and improvements, vehicles and equipment,
represent the largest portion of the District’s total assets, 72.38 percent. Cash and investments represent
18.43 percent of total District assets. The remaining assets consist mainly of, a net other post employment
benefit asset related to the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), grants and property
taxes receivable, prepaid items, a lease receivable, a lease asset and accrued interest and inventories.

The District has six deferred outflows. One is related to its refunded debt, two are related to PERS; a
pension liability and an asset for other post-employment benefits, two are related to the District’s
Voluntary Early Retirement plan; a pension liability and a liability for other post-employment benefits, and
one is related to the District’s implicit medical benefit.

The District’s largest liability, 72.31 percent, is for the repayment of long term debt. A liability for the
District’s proportionate share of net pension liability for the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System
represents 19.75 percent of total liabilities. Other liabilities, representing 7.94 percent of the District’s
total liabilities, consist of payables on accounts, retainage payable, deposits payable, accrued salaries and
benefits, accrued insurance claims, unearned revenue, a lease payable, and liabilities related to pension
and other post-employment benefits for the District’s Voluntary Early retirement plan and a liability for
other post-employment benefits related to the District’s implicit medical benefits.

The District has five deferred inflows. One is for the net unamortized premium for refunded debt, one is
for a lease receivable, and two are related to PERS; a pension liability and an asset for other post-
employment benefits, and the other is related to other post-employment benefits for the District’s implicit
medical benefit.

A large portion of the District’s net deficit, -112.34 percent, reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, vehicles and equipment), net of any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to students and other District
residents. Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources (generally property taxes), since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Assets restricted for repayment of
debt and for other restricted purposes represents -1.17 percent of the District’s net Deficit.
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Net Position at June 30, 2022

Govt Activities 2022 Govt Activities 2021 Variance from 2021
Current assets S 51,425,343 S 48,158,516 S 3,266,827
OPEB Asset 1,970,880 1,879,149 91,731
Capital assets 140,854,028 135,902,805 4,951,223
Other noncurrent assets 364,105 - 364,105
Total assets 194,614,356 185,940,470 8,673,886
Deferred outflows of resources 139,769,128 47,138,317 92,630,811
Current liabilities 19,553,055 18,146,917 1,406,138
Lease Liability 17,000 - 17,000
Long Term Debt 236,086,922 144,638,641 91,448,281
Pension & OPEB Obligations 70,843,681 125,956,149 (55,112,468)
Total liabilities 326,500,658 288,741,707 37,758,951
Deferred inflows of resources 58,287,212 9,668,101 48,619,111
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 56,625,445 46,955,284 9,670,161
Restricted for: -
Debt service 591,727 1,106,502 (514,775)
Other purposes 4,329,069 2,866,982 1,462,087
Unrestricted (111,950,627) (116,259,789) 4,309,162
Total net position S (50,404,386) S (65,331,021) S 14,926,635

During the current fiscal year, the District’s net position increased by $14.92 million.

Current assets

increased by $3.27 million. This increase was almost entirely due to an increase in year-end receivable
balances of $3.21 million. The District implemented GASB 87 in the 2021-22 and booked a non-current
asset of $.35 million for a long term cell tower lease. Capital assets increased by $4.95 million.

There was a large increase in deferred outflows of $92.63. Most of the increase was due to the lump
sum payment to PERS on the unfunded liability.

Current liabilities increased by $1.41 million during the year. Accrued payroll and benefits decreased by
$1.36 million. Although accrued salary increased by $.32, accrued benefits decreased because of the
decrease in the PERS rate in 2021-22. Year-end accounts payable increased by $1.86 million. There
was more year end activity related to summer school purchases and restoration of the Walterville
facility which increased year end accounts payable. There was an increase of $.63 million in deferred
revenue due to increased grant and federal relief funds received in 2021-22.

Long term debt increased by $91.45 million during the 2021-22 year. The District issued $106.96 million
in PERS pension bonds in order to pay off its projected unfunded actuarial liability. The District also
refunded a portion of its 2015 general obligation bonds and issued refunding bonds in the amount of
$23.53 million. The District issued .68 million in LTGO notes for the purchase of school buses. The
payoff of refunded debt and payments on existing debt totaled $33.82 million.
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Deferred inflows of resources increased by $48.62 million. Most of this was related to a change in the
deferred inflow related to the pension liability for PERS, $45.85 million. Additionally, the District has a
new deferred inflow of $1.66 million related to the unamortized portion of refunded debt and a $.35

million deferred inflow related to a cell tower lease.

Changes in Net Position for the year ended June 30, 2022

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General Revenues:
Property taxes
State school fund - general support
Other state and local sources
Federal sources
Earnings on investments
Other

Total revenues and transfers
Expenses:
Instructional services
Support services
Nutrition and community services

Interest on long-term debt

Total expenses
Changes in net position
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Governmental Governmental Variance from Fiscal
Activities 2022 Activities 2021 2021

S 2,992,164 $ 1,788,368 S 1,203,796

29,036,543 20,689,913 8,346,630

3,525,772 1,395,682 2,130,090

36,328,851 35,420,064 908,787

83,013,601 84,731,490 (1,717,889)

2,919,404 3,703,605 (784,201)

411,037 355,329 55,708

1,330,496 713,788 616,708

3,202,588 602,297 2,600,291

162,760,456 149,400,536 13,359,920

81,629,174 87,043,130 5,413,956

54,047,935 55,730,521 1,682,586

5,288,975 4,682,496 (606,479)

6,867,737 5,345,035 (1,522,702)

147,833,821 152,801,182 4,967,361

14,926,635 (3,400,646) 18,327,281

(65,331,021) (61,930,375) (3,400,646)

S (50,404,386) $ (65,331,021) $ 14,926,635

Governmental activities: The key elements of the change in the District’s net position for the year ended

June 30, 2022 are as follows:

e Total program revenues increased by $11.67 million from the prior fiscal year. The largest portion
of this increase was in the area of operating grants and contributions which totaled $8.35 million.
The District received an additional $3.19 million in Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief (ESSER ) funding. This funding is meant to provide educational agencies with emergency
funding to address the impact of Covid-19 on elementary and secondary schools. Additionally,
the District received an increase of $4.44 million in Student Investment Account (SIA) funding.
This non-competitive grant is from the State of Oregon as part of the Student Success Act and is
for funding to assist with meeting student needs in the areas of mental and behavioral health,
increasing academic achievement and reducing academic disparities for students that have

historically been underserved.
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State school fund revenue decreased by $1.72 million in 2021-22. Biennial revenue is split 49% in
the first year and 51% in the second year, and this was the first year of the biennium. Overall,
State funding was up by about 3.3% for the biennium, and the allocation for 21-22 was about the
same as the allocation for 2020-21. Because funding is based on the higher of the current or
previous weighted enrollment numbers, Springfield’s enrollment decline was higher than the
State average for funding purposes, so the District’s share of the State School Fund decreased.
Property tax revenues increased by $.91 million in 2021-22. This increase was due to increases in
property values.

Investment earnings increased by about $.62 million in 2021-22. Investment rates continued to
be low, but the District had more funds to invest in 2021-22.

Other income increased by $2.60 million. $1.79 was from a gain on asset impairment from the
flooding at Walterville Elementary School.

Total expenses decreased by $4.97 million in 2021-22. Staffing levels did not change significantly
between 2020-21 and 2021-22 but salaries increased by $4.89 million due to bargained salary
increases and increases in extra duty pay including expanded summer school programs related to
Covid relief funding. Benefit costs decreased by $1.42 million in 2021-22. PERS costs decreased
by $4.22 million due to lower rates and the impact of the PERS bonds, but insurance costs
increased by $2.46 million. The District is self-funded for insurance and had some large claims in
2021-22.

There was a $9.08 million decrease in expenses due to changes in expenses related to pension
and other post-employment benefits from 2020-21 to 2021-22.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
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General and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds: The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on
relatively short-term cash flow and funding for future basic services. Such information is useful in
assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balances may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of a fiscal year. AtJune
30, 2022, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $30.66 million,
an increase of $2.49 million in comparison with the prior year. Aproximately 61.88 percent of combined
fund balances, $18.97 million, constitutes unassigned fund balances, which are available for spending at
the District’s discretion. Approximately 16.05 percent of combined fund balances, $4.92 million are
restricted for spending by legal restrictions. The remaining 22.07 percent, $6.77 million are nonspendable,
committed or assigned.

General Fund: The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. As of June 30, 2022,
unassigned fund balance was $19.47 million. Fund balance increased by $2.32 million in 2021-22.
Revenues decreased by $1.91 million in 2021-22. State School Fund revenue decreased by $1.66.
Revenue is split 49% in the first year of the biennium and 51% in the second year. This was the first year
of the biennium, and as noted above, the funding level in 2021-22 was about the same as the funding
level in 2020-21, so the amount per student increased. The District had a decrease in enrollment in 2021-
22, so State School Fund revenue decreased. Current year property tax collections increased by $.90
million due to increases in property values. Investment earnings were down by $.43 million due to
decreases in earnings rates. Expenditures increased by $1.21 million in 2021-22. Salaries increases were
almost entirely offset by decreases in benefit costs. As noted above, the biggest savings in benefits was
due to a decrease in the PERS rate in 2021-22. Costs for purchased services increased by 1.52 million
during the 2021-2 fiscal year, partially because of renewed work with contractors after a slow down in
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the prior year due to Covid-19 impacts, partially due to inflationary increases, and also due to an increase
in maintenance projects. Supply costs were about the same as the prior year. The District’s Capital costs
decreased by $.48 million during the year. There was an increase in construction projects in 2021-22, but
they were not funded by general fund dollars. Transfers decreased by $1.78 million in the 2021-22. The
District did not transfer funds into the technology or instructional materials fund in the 2021-22 fiscal
year.

Grants and Contracts Fund: The Grants and Contracts Fund has a total fund balance of $5.97 million at
June 30, 2022 which was a $1.81 million decrease over the prior year fund balance of $7.78 million.
Revenue for 2021-22 was $16.54 million which was an increase of $1.88 million over 2020-21. The largest
increase, $1.16 million, was in funding for State grants. Expenditures increased by $1.51 million in the
2021-22 fiscal year which was in line with the increase in revenue. There was a $.82 million increase in
capital projects paid from the grants and contracts funds. The District received donated funds for a
baseball facility project at Hamlin Middle School. Debt payments decreased by $.46 million in 2021-22.
The District paid off a larger lease in the prior year when it issued full faith and credit notes. The District
also entered into a new Limited Tax note in 2021-22 when it purchased new buses. Capital outlay
increased by $.84 million in 2021-22. There was a purchase of $1.81 million in buses during the year,
which was $1.00 million higher than in the previous year. Also, as noted, the District spent donated funds
on the Hamlin field project and also purchased equipment and made improvements to facilities to support
Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs.

ESSER Fund: In the prior year, the ESSER fund was part of Other governmental funds, but because of the
increase in resources in 2021-22, it qualifies as a major fund. Revenues and expenditures increased by
$3.19 million in 2021-22 as the District received more funding under the Federal CARES act. The District
has used its ESSER funding for a variety of purposes including improvements to HVAC systems, the
purchase of equipment to sterlize facilities, extra staffing for schools to aid with return to in-person
instruction, retention stipends and summer school programs to address learning loss during the
pandemic.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $.59 million at June 30, 2022, all of
which is restricted to the payment of debt service. The District issued $106.96 million PERS pension
bonds, refunded $20.40 million in general obligation bonds and issued 23.53 million in GO refunding
bonds.

Other Governmental Funds: Other Governmental Funds have a combined ending fund balance of $4.45
million at June 30, 2022. The combined ending fund balance increased by $2.50 million in the Other
Governmental Funds. The funds include: Student Investment Account (SIA), Nutrition Services, Co-
curricular, Student Body, Bond Fund and Capital Projects.

In 2019, The Oregon Legislature passed the Student Success Act. When fully implemented, the Act is
expected to invest $2 billion every two years into early learning programs and K-12 education. As part of
the Act, the District received $6.97 million in 2021-22 from the Student Investment Account (SIA). SIA
funds are to assist Districts in meeting students’ mental and behavioral issues, in increasing academic
achievement, and in reducing academic disparities for student groups that have been historically
underserved. $5.96 million of the funding was spent on salaries and benefits to bring more adults into
the system with the goal of increasing the physical, mental and behavioral health of students and reducing
academic disparities for historically underserved populations such as students of color, students with
disabiilties, emerging bilingual students, and students navigativng poverty, homelessness and fostercare.
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The nutrition services fund served meals throughout the pandemic, but meal counts were down
significantly. With the return to in-person instruction, revenues in the nutrition services fund increased
by $2.72 million while costs increased $.81 million. The fund ended the year with a fund balance of $1.60
million.

The fund balance in the co-currciular fund increased by $.93 during the 2010-22 fiscal year. Historically,
students were charged a participation fee for athletics and activities, but through the pandemic and into
2021-22, students were not charged these fees. The District transferred $1.50 million into the co-
curricular fund to support athletic and activity programs. Additionally, the co-currcular fund helped fund
a restroom facility and team room to support the baseball faciltiy at Hamlin Middle School.

The student body fund ending fund balance was $1.21 million at the end of 2021-22, which was about the
same amount as in the prior year. With the return to in person instruction, the student body also resumed
activities, but at a reduced level from prior years. Activities are slowly returning to post-pandemic levels.

The capital projects fund ended the year with a fund balance of $.41 million which was slightly lower than
last year. Most of the activity in the fund was related to the flood at Walterville Elementary School.
Expenditures for repair and replacement totaled $1.90 million which were offset by an insurance claim.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Actual Expenditures vs. Final Budget - General Fund
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DiIsTRICT NO. 19
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

There was one change to the general fund adopted budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The
Board passed a resolution to transfer $500,000 from support services to facilities acquisition and
construction to support the restroom and team room facility at Hamlin Middle School. Budget vs. actual
expenditures are shown above.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT
ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets: The District’s investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, as
well as vehicles and equipment. As of June 30, 2022, the District had invested $140.85 million in capital
assets, net of depreciation, as shown in the following table:

Governmental Governmental Increase (Decrease)

Activities 2022 Activities 2021 from Fiscal 2021
Land S 7,108,316 S 7,168,069 S (59,753)
Buildings and improvements 181,433,638 178,146,428 3,287,210
Construction in progress 6,765,229 2,304,085 4,461,144
Vehicles and equipment 20,212,973 18,607,885 1,605,088
Total capital assets 215,520,156 206,226,467 9,293,689
Accumulated depreciation (74,666,128) (70,323,662) 4,342,466
Total capital assets, net of depreciation S 140,854,028 S 135,902,805 S 4,951,223

In fiscal year 2021-2022, the District’s investment in capital assets increased by $4.95 million. Major
capital asset events for the year ended June 30, 2022 include the following:

e Building and improvement adds totaling $3.29 million. Some of the larger projects included $.99
million for covered play structures, $.52 million in upgrades for CTE programs, $.94 million in
upgrades to the Thurston High School softball field and $.23 million in security upgrades at
schools.

e Purchase of 13 new buses totaling $1.81 million.

e $.85 million for UV light sanitizing machines for all District faciltiies.

e Construction in process at year end for various projects including $1.39 million for HVAC projects,
S$.13 million in security upgrades, $2.84 million for Hamlin Middle field renovation, and $1.8
million in restoration costs at Walterville due to the flood.

e Sale of thirteen fully depreciated buses with an orginal cost of $1.31 million.

e Current year depreciation totaled $5.53 million and there was an adjustment due to an
impairment loss of $.13 million.

See the notes to the basic financial statements on page 47 for additional detail on capital assets.
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DiIsTRICT NO. 19
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Long-term debt:

At the end of the 2021-2022 fiscal year, the District had total long term debt payable of $236.09 million.
Of this amount, $1.72 million is associated with direct borrowings for financed purchases, $107.93 million
is associated with publicly sold full faith and credit obligations, $31.7 million is associated with publicly
sold limited tax pension obligations, $92.05 is associated with publicly sold general obligation bonds, and
$1.42 million is associated with direct borrowings and placements for limited tax general obligation notes.
$1.27 in unamortized premium.

The District maintains an “A1” rating from Moody’s for purposes of general obligation debt.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a K-12 school district may issue to 7.95 percent
of its total true cash valuation. The current debt limitation for the District is $856.19 million, which is
significantly in excess of the District’s outstanding general obligation debt.

See the notes to the basic financial statements on pages 49 through 60 for additional detail on long-term
debt.

EconoMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

Springfield School District is one of the larger school districts in the State of Oregon with an enrollment
that has decreased over the past five years, realizing significant decreases during the 2020-21 and 2021-
22 school years, due to COVID-19 impacts. The largest decline in enrollment is in the elementary levels,
where COVID vaccines had not been readily available. Enroliment within the District’s catchment area is
projected to remain static for the immediate future, however this has become more unpredictable due to
the unexpected decline during the previous year. Charter School enrollment has realized a slight increase
which is indicating the beginning of recovery from the pandemic. The ongoing decrease in enroliment is
forcing the District to make some sustainable revisions to the General Fund operating budget, continuing
to bring revenues and expenditures into alignment. Relief is available through September 2024 with the
distribution of the Elementary and Secondary School Relief Act. These resources will be focused on
providing safe learning environments, while making specific investments in unfinished learning during the
past two school years.

According to the U.S. Congressional Budget Office (CBO), updated economic projections through 2022
account for the continued Coronavirus pandemic with the projections focused on the following:

Elevated inflation initially persists in 2022 because of the combination of strong demand and restrained
supply in the markets for goods, services, and labor. Inflation then subsides as supply disruptions
dissipate, energy prices decline, and less accommodative monetary policy takes hold. Since mid-2021,
inflation has reached its fastest pace in four decades. In CBO’s projections, the price index for personal
consumption expenditures increases by 4.0 percent in 2022. In response, the Federal Reserve tightens
monetary policy and interest rates rise rapidly. Real GDP grows by 3.1 percent in 2022, and the
unemployment rate averages 3.8 percent.

The CBO’s projection of real GDP growth is similar to what it was last summer for 2022, higher for 2023
and 2024, and similar over the remainder of the projection period. CBO currently projects higher
inflation in 2022 and 2023 than it did last July; prices are increasing more rapidly across many sectors of
the economy than CBO anticipated. CBO now expects both short- and long-term interest rates over the
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

coming decade to be higher, on average, than in its previous forecast, partly reflecting higher inflation.
Conditions in the labor market continue to improve in 2022. Employment grows by 4.1 million jobs and
surpasses its pre-pandemic (February 2020) level in the middle of this year. The average rate of
unemployment declines through 2023, reaching 3.5 percent. The annual average has not been lower
than that since 1953. The unemployment rate remains below or near 4.0 percent for the next several
years. The size of the labor force, which, in early 2022, remained roughly one million people below its
pre-pandemic level, is expected to keep increasing, exceeding that level by the end of 2022. CBO expects
the labor force to grow more slowly after 2022 as the negative effects of an aging population outweigh
the positive effects of an ongoing economic expansion.

Interest rates on Treasury securities rise. To contain inflationary pressures, the Federal Reserve raises
the target range for the federal funds rate (the rate that financial institutions charge each other for
overnight loans of their monetary reserves); that rate increases to 1.9 percent by the end of 2022 and to
2.6 percent by the end of 2023. The interest rate on 10-year Treasury notes rises from 1.5 percent in the
fourth quarter of 2021 to 3.1 percent in the fourth quarter of 2024.

State of Oregon Economic Outlook:

The consensus among national forecasters, and Oregon economic advisors expect a mild recession to
begin within the next year. This change in the baseline forecast is not due to any fundamental
deterioration in the economy in recent months, but rather a shift in assessing the risks. In particular with
inflation remaining well above the Federal Reserve’s target, expectations are that interest rates will
need to be higher and held there longer than previously thought. Slamming on the brakes of a speeding
car will cause it to skid and even fishtail. The question is whether the driver is able to pull out of it or end
up in the ditch. Most economists today believe a recession is likely, even if the exact path of the
economy is uncertain.

The Oregon Office of Economic Analysis has now incorporated a mild recession in Oregon starting next
summer. Job losses total 24,000 for a 1.2 percent decline. Job losses will be larger in goods-producing
industries like construction and manufacturing, and industries tied to them like finance, and
transportation and warehousing. The unemployment rate increases from today’s 3.8 percent to a peak
of 5.4 percent in early 2024. Income and spending slow, but do not turn negative. Such a cycle would be
one of the shallowest, and shortest recessions on record, similar to 1990. The nature of the cycle is more
technical than fundamental, more of a fender-bender than a head-on collision.

There are three reasons why a milder recession is to be expected. First, businesses, financial markets,
and households all indicate that they expect today’s high inflation to slow in the years ahead. If high
inflation is not fully embedded in long-term decision making, it likely only takes a milder recession to
bring inflation down.

Second, it has been difficult to find workers for the past handful of years. The labor market is cyclical
tight due to a strong economy, and structurally tight for demographic reasons as the large Baby Boomer
generation continues to retire. Firms do not want to let go of workers, and likely will work to hold onto
workers even as sales slow in the years ahead. Economists call this labor hoarding. With record
corporate profits, many businesses have the financial room to do just that.

Third is the strong financial position households are in. Consumer spending is expected to hold up well
in the pending recession in large due to the higher level of savings, which is for households across the
distribution. Should spending remain strong, firms will have less incentive to cut jobs. Today’s strong
household balance sheets can help short-circuit the typical negative feedback loop of a recession.
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The baseline economic outlook now calls for a mild recession. This is hard to see in the topline outlook
for state revenues, as the forecast for available resources remains roughly unchanged in the near term.
The recession is expected to be mild, and personal income is expected to remain stable despite job
losses. Underlying personal income is not only the primary driver of Oregon’s dominant personal income
tax, but also a wide range of consumption-based taxes including the corporate activity tax and lottery
sales.

In terms of job losses, the baseline scenario looks identical to the recession of 1991. The 1991 cycle was
unique in that it did not result in a pronounced downturn in state revenues, only a couple of relatively
flat years of available resources.

Unlike what was seen during the 1991 cycle, revenues are expected to drop going forward with or
without a recession. General Fund revenues are due for a hangover in 2023-25 even if the economic
expansion persists. Recent gains have been driven by taxpayer behavior as well as by underlying
economic growth. After so much nonwage income was pulled into tax years 2020 and 2021, less will be
realized in the near term. As profits and investment income return to earth, and a record kicker is paid
out, expected revenues next biennium will be around $3 billion lower than the current biennium. That
said, it is surprising that the recession call did not make this expected decline noticeably worse.

This taxpayer behavior also puts Oregon’s revenues at risk of the sharp declines experienced after asset
market corrections in 2001 and 2007. With recession on the horizon, profits and gains could soon turn
into losses, and a smaller share of filers could be subject to the top rate. Recent revenue growth has
been more pronounced than during any other period on record. During tax year 2021, personal income
tax liability grew at almost double the pace of that was seen during the peaks of the housing and
technology booms. Hopefully, the upcoming hangover in revenue growth will not be as pronounced.

The bottom line is that the unexpected revenue growth seen this year has left us with unprecedented
balances this biennium, followed by a record kicker in 2023-25. The projected personal kicker is $3.7
billion, which will be credited to taxpayers when they file their returns in Spring 2024. The projected
corporate kicker is $1.3 billion, which will be retained for K-12 educational spending.

(Information provided by Oregon Office of Economic Analysis)

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to present the user (citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors) with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability. Questions

concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should
be addressed to Financial Services, 640 A Street, Springfield, Oregon 97477.
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2022
Governmental Activities
ASSETS
Cash and investments S 35,862,179
Receivables 14,753,620
Accrued interest 15,339
Prepaid items 350,000
Inventories 444,205
Lease receivable 351,277
Net other post employment benefit asset, Public Employers Retirement System 1,970,880
Capital asset - leased asset, net of accumulated amortization 12,828
Capital assets, net
Land 7,108,316
Buildings and improvements 119,307,888
Equipment 2,928,539
Buses 4,525,655
Other motor vehicles 218,401
Work in progress 6,765,229
Total capital assets, net 140,854,028
Total assets 194,614,356
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred outflow, pension liability, Public Employers Retirement System 132,499,115
Deferred outflow, pension liability, Voluntary Early Retirement plan 2,102
Deferred outflow, other post employment benefit asset, Public Employers Retire System 482,899
Deferred outflow, other post employment benefit liability, Voluntary Early Retirement plan 18,243
Deferred outflow, other post employment benefit liability, implicit medical benefit 177,912
Deferred outflow, refunded debt 6,588,857
Total deferred outflows of resources 139,769,128
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,472,985
Retainage payable 88,519
Deposit payable 50,000
Accrued payroll and benefits 12,378,709
Accrued insurance claims 1,506,436
Interest payable 160,346
Unearned revenue 1,896,060
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
General obligation bonds & direct borrowings & placements, net of unamortized premium 15,130,000
Lease Liability 5,515
Due in more than one year:
General obligation bonds & direct borrowings & placements, net of unamortized premium 220,956,922
Lease Liability 11,485
Proportionate share of net pension liability, Public Employees Retirement System 64,481,136
Net pension liability, Voluntary Early Retirement plan 4,670
Net other post employment benefit liability, Voluntary Early Retirement plan 133,981
Net other post employment benefit liability, implicit medical beneift 6,223,894
Total liabilities 326,500,658
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred inflow, lease 345,422
Deferred inflow, refunded debt 1,661,039
Deferred inflow pension liability, Public Employers Retirement System 52,850,855
Deferred inflow other post employment benefit asset, Public Employers Retirement System 730,381
Deferred inflow, other post employment benefit liability, implicit medical benefit 2,699,515
Total deferred inflows of resources 58,287,212
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 56,625,445
Restricted for Debt service 591,727
Restricted for nutrition services 1,401,613
Restricted for student body programs 1,207,069
Restricted for bus replacement 647,991
Restricted for capital projects 899,117
Restricted - other 173,279
Unrestricted (deficit) (111,950,627)
Total net position S (50,404,386)

See notes to basic financial statements 17
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Primary Government

Program Revenues Net (Expense)
Operating Capital Revenue and
Charges for Grants and Grants and Change
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions in Net Position
Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:
Instruction services S 81,629,174 $ 1,013,832 S 12,531,732 S - $ (68,083,610)
Support services 54,047,935 1,723,208 9,681,150 - (42,643,577)
Community services 5,288,975 255,124 6,823,661 - 1,789,810
Facilities services - - - 3,525,772 3,525,772
Interest on long-term debt 6,867,737 - - - (6,867,737)
Total Primary Government S 147,833,821 S 2,992,164 $ 29,036,543 S 3,525,772 S (112,279,342)

General revenues:

Property taxes levied for general purposes 28,989,862
Property taxes levied for debt services 7,338,989
State school fund 83,013,601
Common school fund 1,213,248
Unrestricted state and local sources 1,706,156
Unrestricted revenue from federal sources 411,037
Earnings on investments 1,330,496
Gain on sale of assets 1,790,834
Miscellaneous 1,411,754
Total general revenues and transfers 127,205,977
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 14,926,635
Net position - July 1, 2021 (65,331,021)
Net position - June 30, 2022 S (50,404,386)

See notes to basic financial statements
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2022
Grants and
General Contracts ESSER
ASSETS
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents S 16,071,273 $ 11,753,183 S -
Non-pooled cash and cash equivalents 4,032 - -
Receivables:
Property taxes 1,142,036 - -
Grants, reimbursements, and accounts 890,599 4,988,358 5,506,348
Accrued interest 12,097 - -
Due from other funds 14,299,424 - -
Prepaid items - - 350,000
Inventories 175,175 74,761 -
Lease receivable - - -
Total assets S 32,594,636 S 16,816,302 S 5,856,348
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Due to other funds S - S 8,431,779 S 5,248,872
Accounts payable 1,151,159 1,113,233 555,534
Deposit payable - - -
Retainage payable 61,230 - 27,289
Accrued payroll and benefits 10,758,711 481,343 24,653
Unearned revenue - 822,455 -
Total liabilities 11,971,100 10,848,810 5,856,348
Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue-property taxes 975,431 - -
Lease - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 975,431 - -
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable 175,175 74,761 -
Restricted - 821,270 -
Committed - 1,894,484 -
Assigned - 3,176,977 -
Unassigned 19,472,930 - -
Total fund balances 19,648,105 5,967,492 -
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances S 32,594,636 S 16,816,302 S 5,856,348

See notes to basic financial statements
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Other

Debt Service Governmental Total
S 327,902 S 4,117,434 32,269,792
217,729 904,914 1,126,675
280,203 - 1,422,239
- 1,930,093 13,315,398
2,909 333 15,339
- - 14,299,424
- - 350,000
- 194,269 444,205
- 351,277 351,277
S 828,743 S 7,498,320 63,594,349
S - S 614,759 14,295,410
- 547,466 3,367,392
- 50,000 50,000
- - 88,519
- 414,237 11,678,944
- 1,073,605 1,896,060
- 2,700,067 31,376,325
237,016 - 1,212,447
- 345,422 345,422
237,016 345,422 1,557,869
- 200,124 450,060
591,727 3,507,799 4,920,796
- 1,244,411 3,138,895
- - 3,176,977
- (499,503) 18,973,427
591,727 4,452,831 30,660,155
S 828,743 $ 7,498,320 S 63,594,349
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2022

TOTAL FUND BALANCES
Capital assets are not financial resources and so are not reported in the governmental funds:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Leased assets are not financial resources and so are not reported in the governmental funds:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

A Net other post employment asset for the Oregon Public Employers Retirement System is not recorded as an
asset in the governmental funds but rather expenditures are recorded when payments to the system are due.

Deferred outflows on refunded debt are not financial resources in governmental funds, but are reported
in the statement of net assets.

Deferred outflows for pensions and other post employment benefits are not recorded as assets in the
governmental funds but rather eligible salaries are assessed a rate are determined by the Oregon Public
Employers Retirement System Board and payments are remitted to the State when due.

Deferred outflows related to the District's voluntary retirement fund are not financial resources in
governmental funds but rather governmental funds are assessed annually to pay stipends and insurance
benefits when due.

Deferred outflows related to the implicit rate subsidy are not financial resources in governmental funds
but rather are a result of differences between expected and actual experience over time.

A portion of the District's property taxes is collected after year-end but is not available soon enough to pay
for the current year's operations and therefore not reported as a revenue in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of printing services and insurance
assessments to the individual funds. The assets and liabilities of these funds are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

A liability for vacation pay is not recognized in the governmental funds but vacation pay that is earned is
recorded as a liability in the statement of net assets.

A Net Pension Liability for the Oregon Public Employers Retirement System is not recorded as a liability in
the governmental funds but rather expenditures are recorded when payments to the system are due.

The Net Pension Liability, Voluntary Early Retirement plan is not recorded as a liability in the governmental
funds but rather expenditures are recorded when payments are due.

The Net Other Post Employment Benefit Liabilities are not recognized as liabilities in the governmental
funds but rather expenditures are recorded when payments are due.

Deferred inflows on refunded debt are not financial losses in governmental funds, but are reported
in the statement of net assets and amortized over the life of the debt.

The Deferred Inflow, pension is not recorded as a liability in the governmental funds but rather eligible
salaries are assessed a rate determined by the Oregon Public Employers Retirement System Board and
payments are remitted to the State when due.

The Deferred Inflow, Other Post Employment Benefits is not recorded as a liability in the governmental funds

but rather insurance payments are made when due.

Long-term liabilities not payable in the current year are not reported as governmental fund liabilities.
Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in the governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an
expenditure when due. These liabilities consist of:

Accrued interest payable

Lease Liability, governmental funds
Bonds payable, net of related premium

TOTAL NET POSITION

See notes to basic financial statements 23

$ 30,660,155

215,037,326
(74,270,089)

17,000
(4,172)

1,970,880

6,588,857

132,982,014

20,345

177,912

1,212,447

916,600

(699,199)

(64,481,136)

(4,670)

(6,357,875)

(1,661,039)

(52,850,855)

(3,429,896)

(160,027)
(17,000)

(236,051,964)

$ (50,404,386)



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues:
Local sources:
Taxes
Investment earnings
Assessments from other funds
Miscellaneous
Other local sources
Intermediate sources
State sources
Federal sources
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current expenditures:
Instruction
Support services
Enterprise and community services
Facilities and acquisition
Other uses of funds

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Sale of assets
Proceeds from insurance recovery
Proceeds of refunding long-term debt
Issuance of long-term debt
Lump sum payment to PERS
Lease proceeds
Payment of refunded debt

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change In Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1, 2021
Fund Balance, June 30, 2022

See notes to basic financial statements

Grants and
General Contracts ESSER Debt Service

28,941,900 S - S - S 7,338,989
(80,076) 36,114 - 39,505

- - - 10,193,912

101,143 1,233,692 - -
40,838 2,212,229 - -
1,675,482 630 - -
83,734,467 6,998,227 - -
460,123 6,061,273 6,528,424 -
114,873,877 16,542,165 6,528,424 17,572,406
66,037,379 9,116,237 1,284,871 -
43,596,511 4,322,028 2,356,958 943,764
- 699,017 216,787 -

38,632 119,767 269,371 -

- 198,693 284,897 -

- 635,863 12,763,068

- 107,343 5,801,026

948,069 3,833,159 2,115,540 -
110,620,591 19,032,107 6,528,424 19,507,858
4,253,286 (2,489,942) - (1,935,452)
- - - 471,516
(1,971,516) - - -
18,185 - - -

- - - 23,525,000

675,000 106,955,000
(106,223,075)

17,000

- - - (23,307,764)
(1,936,331) 675,000 - 1,420,677
2,316,955 (1,814,942) - (514,775)
17,331,150 7,782,434 - 1,106,502
19,648,105 $ 5,967,492 S - S 591,727
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Other

Governmental Total

- $ 36,280,889

7,220 2,763

- 10,193,912

62,578 1,397,413
1,149,729 3,402,796
- 1,676,112
7,095,339 97,828,033
5,754,480 18,804,300
14,069,346 169,586,218
4,016,640 80,455,127
3,404,442 54,623,703
4,429,226 5,345,030
116,695 544,465

- 483,590

- 13,398,931

- 5,908,369
2,997,265 9,894,033
14,964,268 170,653,248
(894,922) (1,067,030)
1,500,000 1,971,516
- (1,971,516)

- 18,185
1,899,117 1,899,117
- 23,525,000
107,630,000
(106,223,075)

17,000
- (23,307,764)
3,399,117 3,558,463
2,504,195 2,491,433
1,948,636 28,168,722
4,452,831 S 30,660,155
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2022

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. In the Statement of Activities, the

cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation

expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period:
Expenditures for capital assets

Less current year depreciation

In the governmental funds, asset impairments are netted against insurance recoveries
in order to calculate a gain or loss on asset impairement.

In the governmental funds, lease purchase and loan receipts are recorded as revenue, but in
the Statement of Net Assets, the issuance of debt results in a liability.

Governmental funds do not report a liability for earned but unused vacation pay. In the
Statement of Net Position however, vacation pay earned increased liabilities.

In the governmental funds, a lump sum payment to the Oregon Public Employers Retirement
System as a payment agains the District's unfunded liability is recorded as an expenditure,
but in the Statement of Net Assets, the payment is a deferred outflow of resources.

In the Statement of Activities, amortization is recorded on the deferred charges related to bond
refunding, whereas in the governmental funds, no pension asset or related amortization is reported.

Repayment of principal on long-term debt and leases is an expenditure in the governmental funds
but reduces the liability in the Statement of Net Assets. This is the amount of principal repaid in
the current year.

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums and discounts when debt is first
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities.
Amortization of bond premium

Governmental funds record expenditures for leased assets whereas in the governmental
funds, a leased asset and liability is recorded. The lease asset is amortized over the life
of the lease.

In the Statement of Activities, the adjustment to the net OPEB asset and deferred outflow
and inflow related to the OPEB asset for PERS results in a decrease in expenses in the
current year. In the governmental funds, no adjustments to fund balance or expenses are reported.

In the Statement of Activities, the adjustment to the net pension liability and deferred outflow
and inflow related to the pension liability for PERS results in an increase in expenses in the
current year. In the governmental funds, no adjustments to fund balance or expenses are reported.

In the Statement of Activities, the adjustment to the net pension and net OPEB liabilities and deferred
outflows and inflows related to the VER pension and OPEB liabilities results in a decrease in expenses in

the current year. In the governmental funds, no adjustments to fund balance or expenses are reported.

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on long-term debt, whereas in the governmental
funds it is recorded as an interest expense when due.

Property taxes that don't meet the measurable and available criteria are not recognized as revenue
in the current year in the governmental funds. In the Statement of Activities, property taxes are
recognized as revenue when levied.

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of printing services and
medical and dental insurance to the individual funds. The net income of the internal service
fund is reported with governmental activities.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

See notes to basic financial statements 26

$

S 2,491,433

10,467,501

(5,345,498) 5,122,003

(126,468)
(131,155,000)

25,206

106,223,075

(818,118)

36,706,695

1,189,043

(4,172)

287,247

(5,178,823)

832,126

(16,363)

47,962

(699,211)

S 14,926,635



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues:
Local sources:
Taxes
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Other local sources
Intermediate sources
State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current expenditures:
Instruction
Support services
Facilities acquisition and construction
Operating contingency
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Sale of capital assets
Lease proceeds
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change In Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1, 2021

Fund Balance, June 30, 2022

See notes to basic financial statements

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
$28,841,016 $28,841,016 $28,941,900 $ 100,884

450,000 450,000 (80,076) (530,076)
175,000 175,000 101,143 (73,857)
113,500 113,500 40,838 (72,662)
2,588,083 2,588,083 1,675,482 (912,601)
79,559,916 79,559,916 83,734,467 4,174,551
405,000 405,000 460,123 55,123
112,132,515 112,132,515 114,873,877 2,741,362
69,946,601 69,946,601 66,037,379 3,909,222
49,883,481 49,383,481 43,667,162 5,716,319
700,086 1,200,086 916,050 284,036
1,000,000 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
121,530,168 121,530,168 110,620,591 10,909,577
(9,397,653)  (9,397,653) 4,253,286 13,650,939
500 500 18,185 17,685

- - 17,000 17,000
(1,971,516) (1,971,516) (1,971,516) -
(1,971,016) (1,971,016)  (1,936,331) 34,685
(11,368,669) (11,368,669) 2,316,955 13,685,624
16,600,000 16,600,000 17,331,150 731,150

S 5,231,331 $ 5,231,331 $19,648,105 S 14,416,774
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GRANTS AND CONTRACTS FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues:

Local sources:
Investment earnings
Donations
Miscellaneous
Other local sources

Intermediate sources

State sources

Federal sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current expenditures:
Instruction
Support services
Community services
Facilities acquisition and construction
Other uses of funds
Debt services

Capital outlay

Transits

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in

Sale of capital assets
Issuance of debt

Premium on issuance of debt

Contingency

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance, July 1, 2021

Fund Balance, June 30, 2022

See notes to basic financial statements

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
S 47,200 S 47,200 S 36,114 S (11,086)

1,678,926 1,678,926 863,759 (815,167)
1,106,728 1,106,728 1,233,692 126,964
2,891,523 2,891,523 1,348,470 (1,543,053)
- - 630 630
6,048,785 9,741,721 6,998,227 (2,743,494)
8,578,361 8,578,361 6,061,273 (2,517,088)
20,351,523 24,044,459 16,542,165 (7,502,294)
13,339,809 16,432,745 9,116,237 7,316,508
4,842,454 5,143,761 4,322,028 821,733
540,387 640,387 699,017 (58,630)
643,214 643,214 119,767 523,447

- 198,693 198,693 -

778,000 778,000 743,206 34,794
4,780,063 4,780,063 3,833,159 946,904
24,923,927 28,616,863 19,032,107 9,584,756
(4,572,404) (4,572,404) (2,489,942) 2,082,462
25,000 25,000 - (25,000)
965,412 965,412 675,000 (290,412)
(900,000) (900,000) - 900,000
90,412 90,412 675,000 584,588
(4,481,992) (4,481,992) (1,814,942) 2,667,050
7,576,390 7,576,390 7,782,434 206,044

$3,094,398 $3,094,398 $5,967,492 S

2,873,094
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOL EMERGENCY RELIEF FUND (ESSER)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Federal sources $10,685,077 $10,685,077 $ 6,528,424 S (4,156,653)
Total revenues 10,685,077 10,685,077 6,528,424 (4,156,653)
Expenditures:
Current expenditures:
Instruction 3,996,170 1,934,919 1,284,871 650,048
Support services 460,000 2,777,175 2,356,958 420,217
Community services - 246,638 216,787 29,851
Facilities acquisition and construction 103,830 103,830 269,371 (165,541)
Other uses of funds 361,205 361,205 284,897 76,308
Capital outlay 5,763,872 5,261,310 2,115,540 3,145,770
Total expenditures 10,685,077 10,685,077 6,528,424 4,156,653
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - - -
Net change in fund balance - - - -
Fund Balance, July 1, 2021 - - - -
Fund Balance, June 30, 2022 - - S - -
See notes to basic financial statements 29



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2022

ASSETS

Current assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Grants, reimbursements, and accounts receivable

Total current assets
Capital assets, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Due to other funds
Accounts payable
Interest payable

Accrued payroll and benefits

Accrued insurance claims
Current portion of lease payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Lease payable due in more than one year

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See notes to basic financial statements 30

Internal Service
Funds

$

2,465,712
15,982

2,481,694
86,790

2,568,484

4,014
105,592
319

565
1,506,436
34,958

1,651,884

1,651,884

51,832
864,768

916,600




SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Operating revenues:

Services provided to other funds
Assessments from other funds
Revenues from other agencies
Miscellaneous revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Other expenses
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Earnings on investments
Interest on financed purchases

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position

Net Position, July 1, 2021

Net Position, June 30, 2022

See notes to basic financial statements 31

Internal Service
Funds

$ 531,352
21,066,691
171,414
131,612

21,901,069

259,871
21,877,763
167,394
200,714
53,795
54,546

22,614,083

(713,014)

15,543
(1,740)

13,803

(699,211)

1,615,811

S 916,600




SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Received for services
Due to other funds

Paid to suppliers
Paid to employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flow from capital activities and related financing activities:

Purchase of equipment
Payments on capital lease

Net cash provided (used) by capital and financing activities

Cash flow from investing activities:
Interest received

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2022

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Due to other funds
Accounts payable

Accrued insurance claims
Accrued salaries and benefits

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See notes to basic financial statements 32

Total Internal

Service Funds

$ 21,899,563
(2,638)
(21,939,033)

(405,421)

(447,529)

(10,233)

(28,773)

(39,006)

15,543

15,543

(470,992)

2,936,704

S 2,465,712

$  (713,014)

54,546

(1,506)
(2,638)
55,845

158,673
565

S (447,529)



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
June 30, 2022

Voluntary Early

Retirement Custodial
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Pooled cash and cash equivalents S 708,216 S 275,963
Total Assets 708,216 275,963
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 6,750 -
Total Liabilities 6,750 -
Net Position
Restricted for scholarships 275,963
Restricted for pensions and other
postemployment benefits 701,466 -
Total Net Position S 701,466 S 275,963

See notes to basic financial statements 33



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Voluntary Early

Retirement Custodial
Fund Fund
Additions:
Assessments from other funds S 650,000 S -
Donations 13,675
Interest income 5,169 1,677
Total Additions: 655,169 15,352
Deductions:
Benefit payments 52,996
Post employment health benefits 399,803
Scholarship payments 9,799
Administrative costs 6,750 -
Total Deductions 459,549 9,799
Change in Net Position 195,620 5,553
Net position July 1, 2021 505,846 270,410
Total net position, June 30, 2022 S 701,466 S 275,963

See notes to basic financial statements 34



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT 19
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Springfield School District No. 19 was organized under provision of Oregon Statutes pursuant to ORS Chapter 332 for
the purpose of operating elementary and secondary schools. The District is governed by a separately elected five-
member Board of Education (Board) who approves the administrative officials. The daily functioning of the District is
under the supervision of the Superintendent. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, all activities of
the District have been included in the basic financial statements.

The District qualifies as a primary government since it has a separately elected governing body, is a legally separate
entity, and is fiscally independent. There are various governmental agencies and special service districts which provide
services within the District’s boundaries. Two of these entities could potentially be considered component units of
the District. There is one charter school operating within the District boundaries; Willamette Leadership Academy.
The District is not financially accountable for the charter school and the nature and significance of its financial
relationship with the District is such that its exclusion would not cause the financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. Therefore, the District does not consider the charter school to be a component unit of the District.
Additionally, the Springfield Education Foundation provides financial support to the District but is not a component
unit of the District.

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the District. These
statements include the governmental financial activities of the overall District, except fiduciary activities. Eliminations
have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities, except for interfund services. Governmental
activities are financed primarily through property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and charges for services.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each of its
functions/programs. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to that function. Program revenues include: (1) charges to students or others for tuition, fees,
rentals, materials, supplies or services provided, (2) operating grants and contributions and (3) capital grants and
contributions. Certain indirect costs are included as part of the program expenses reported for individual functions
and activities. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including property taxes and state support, are
presented as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either externally restricted,
imposed by creditors (such as through grantors, contributors, or laws) or through constitutional provision or enabling
resolutions.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds including those of a fiduciary nature.
Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary and fiduciary —are presented. The emphasis
of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental funds are aggregated and reported as other governmental funds. The District reports the following major
governmental funds:
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT 19
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2022

e General Fund — This is the District’s primary operating fund and accounts for all revenues and expenditures
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Principal revenue sources are state school
fund revenue and property taxes.

e Grants and Contract Fund — This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures of grants which are restricted
and other funds which are committed and assigned for specific educational purposes. Principal revenue
sources are federal and state grants.

o Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER) — Accounts for funds from the Federal
Government passed through the State of Oregon as part of the Education Stability Fund in the Coronavirus
Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. The funds were awarded to local education agencies to
address the impact of COVID-19 on elementary and secondary education.

o Debt Service Fund — This fund provides for the payment of principal and interest on debt. Principal revenue
sources are property taxes for general obligation bonds, payroll assessments for limited tax pension bonds
and transfers from the General Fund for QZAB & Full Faith and Credit bonds.

Additionally, the District reports the following funds:

. Internal service funds which account for printing provided to other departments of the District on a cost
reimbursement basis and the District’s health insurance benefits program.

. The voluntary early retirement fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for payments to
employees who receive early retirement and post-employment health care benefits.

o A Custodial fund accounts for scholarship donations for which the District’s role is custodial in nature.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Custodial funds use the economic resources measurement focus. Government—wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value
without giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual
basis of accounting, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements
have been satisfied. Under terms of grant agreements, the District funds certain programs by a combination of specific
cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both
restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the District’s policy to first apply cost-
reimbursement grant resources to such programs and then general revenues.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.
The District considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if they are collected within sixty
days after year-end. Property taxes and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt and
claims and judgments, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds and proceeds from general long-term debt and
financed purchases are reported as other financing sources. Private sector standards of accounting and reporting
issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT 19
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2022

statements to the extent that these standards do not conflict or contradict the guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District’s internal service fund are charges
to other funds for printing services and assessments to other funds for insurance premiums. Operating expenses for
the internal service fund include salaries, benefits, purchased services, supplies and insurance claims. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Cash Equivalents

For financial statement purposes, the District considers cash equivalents to include investments in the State of Oregon
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) and other highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less
at the time of purchase.

Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are included in the Oregon Short-Term Fund, which is
an external investment pool that is not a 2a-7-like external investment pool, and is not registered with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company. Fair value of the LGIP is calculated at the same value
as the number of pool shares owned. The unit of account is each share held, and the value of the position would be
the fair value of the pool’s share price multiplied by the number of shares held. Investments in the Short-Term Fund
are governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon Investment Council, and portfolio guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-Term
Fund Board, which establish diversification percentages and specify the types and maturities of investments. The
portfolio guidelines permit securities lending transactions as well as investments in repurchase agreements and
reverse repurchase agreements. The fund appears to be in compliance with all portfolio guidelines at June 30, 2022.
The LGIP seeks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share; an investment in the LGIP is neither insured nor guaranteed by
the FDIC or any other government agency. Although the LGIP seeks to maintain the value of share investments at
$1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in the pool. These investments were measured at fair value.
The pool is comprised of a variety of investments. These investments are characterized as Level 2 fair value
measurement in the Oregon Short Term Fund’s audited financial report. As of June 30, 2022, the fair value of the
position in the LGIP is 98.98% of the value of the pool shares as reported in the Oregon Short Term Fund audited
financial statements. Amounts in the State Treasurer’s LGIP are not required to be collateralized.

Investments

Investments with maturities greater than three months, consisting of U.S. government and agency securities and
commercial paper, are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Discounts and premiums on investment
purchases are amortized using the effective interest method without application of the susceptible to accrual criteria
and are reported on the combined balance sheet at their net amortized cost, which approximates fair value. There
were no such investments at June 30, 2022.

Property Taxes Receivable

Ad Valorem property taxes are levied and become a lien on all taxable property as of July 1. Collection dates are
November 15, February 15, and May 15. Discounts are allowed if at least two-thirds (2/3rds) of the full amount due
is received by November 15. Taxes unpaid on May 16 are considered delinquent. Uncollected property taxes are
shown on the combined balance sheet. Property taxes collected within sixty (60) days of fiscal year-end are recognized
as revenue. The remaining balance of taxes receivable is recorded as unearned revenue.
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT 19
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2022

Grants

Grants are recognized as revenue in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available and
in which the District has met all eligibility requirements. When expenditure is the prime factor for determining
eligibility, the revenue is recognized when the expenditure is made. Cash received from grantor agencies in excess of
related grant expenditures is recorded as a liability on the statement of net position.

Inventories

Purchased inventories are valued at average cost and donated inventories other than commaodities are valued at their
estimated fair market value at date of donation. Inventory items are charged to expenditures at the time of
withdrawal from inventory. Federal food commodities are recorded in inventory and as revenue, at fair value as
determined by the U.S. Department of Agriculture. The District pays processing and distribution costs on selected
commodities upon receipt of the products.

Accrued Compensated Absences

Employees accumulate earned, but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. District policy does not allow carryover of
unused vacation leave beyond one year. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they
have matured, or are taken and paid from current resources. No liability is recorded for nonvested sick pay benefits.

Lease Assets

Lease assets are assets which the government leases for a term of more than one year. The value of leases is
determined by the net present value of the leases at the government’s incremental borrowing rate at the time of the
lease agreement, amortized over the term of the agreement.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. Donated capital
assets, donated works of art and similar items received in a service concession arrangement will be reported at
acquisition value rather than fair value. The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated life in excess of three years. Maintenance and repairs of a routine nature are charged to
expenditures as incurred and are not capitalized. Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. Other capital
assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

° Equipment: 5to 10 years
. Vehicles: 10 years
. Buildings and Improvements: 10 to 60 years
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT 19
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2022

Fund Equity

In March 2009, the GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-type Definitions.
The objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund
balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund-type
definitions. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the
extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported in
governmental funds. Under this standard, the fund balance classifications of reserved, designated, and
unreserved/undesignated were replaced with five new classifications — nonspendable, restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned.

. Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that are not in a spendable form. The nonspendable fund

balance represents inventories, lease receivable, and prepaid items.

. Restricted fund balance represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose
(such as debt covenants, grant requirements, donor requirements, or other governments) or are restricted by
law (constitutionally or by enabling legislation).

. Committed fund balance represents funds formally set aside by the governing body for a particular purpose.

The use of committed funds would be approved by resolution. Modifying or rescinding a fund balance
commitment would also require a Board resolution.
. Assigned fund balance represents amounts that are constrained by the expressed intent to use

resources for specific purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent
can be stipulated by the governing body or by an official to whom that authority has been given by the
governing body. The Board of Directors granted authority to classify portions of ending fund balance as
Assigned to the Superintendent and the Chief Operations Officer. This authority was granted by Board
resolution and any changes to that authority would also be granted by Board resolution.

. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification of the General Fund. Only the General Fund may report

a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds would report any negative residual fund
balance as unassigned.

The governing body has approved the following order of spending regarding fund balance categories: Restricted
resources are spent first when both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned or unassigned) resources are
available for expenditures. When unrestricted resources are spent, the order of spending is committed (if applicable),
assigned (if applicable) and unassigned. To preserve a sound financial system and to provide a stable financial base,
the governing body has adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general fund of 4% of annual operating
revenues.

Leases Payable
In the government-wide financial statements, leases payable are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net

Position. In the governmental fund financial statements, the present value of lease payments is reported as other
financing sources.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2022

Long-term Debt

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Position.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds, which approximates the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, are recognized when
incurred and not deferred. The face amount of the debt issued, premiums received on debt issuances, and discounts
are reported as other financing sources and uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Retirement Plans

Substantially all of the District's employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS). For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about fiduciary net position of PERS and
additions to/deductions from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by PERS. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Voluntary Early Retirement Plan

Certified employees and administrative supervisors who were hired prior to July 1, 1994 and who have obtained ten
years regular service with the District may elect to remain eligible for supplemental retirement benefits. For the
purpose of measuring the net pension liability and net other post-employment benefit liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and other post-employment benefits, and pension
and other post-employment benefit expenses, information about fiduciary net position of the District’s Voluntary
Early Retirement (VER) Plan and additions to/deductions from the VER Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the VER Plan. Benefit payments are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. GASB Statements 67 and 68
and Statements 74 and 75 have been implemented as of July 1, 2015.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

In accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303, PERS employees who retire after June 30, 1994, and have
not yet become eligible for Federal Medicare coverage are eligible to purchase insurance through the District’s
healthcare plan. Although retirees pay their own premium, there is an implicit cost due to increased group premiums
when retirees are included in District insurance plans. For the purpose of measuring the net other post-employment
benefit liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to other post-employment
benefits, and other post-employment benefit expenses, information about fiduciary net position of the implicit
medical benefit Plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the Plan. Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. GASB Statement 75 has been implemented as of July
1, 2015.

40



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT 19
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2022

Deferred Compensation Plan

The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. In accord with the intent of IRS Act of 1996, the District considers the funds invested under the deferred
compensation plan to be owned by the employee deferring such compensation. Thus, the assets of the plan and the
offsetting liability to employees are not reported in the District’'s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Budgeting and Appropriations

A budget is prepared and legally adopted for all funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Appropriations are
generally adopted at the program level presented in the basic financial statements. Expenditures cannot legally exceed
appropriations except for certain situations, including the following:

. Expenditure of grants or other earmarked funds, which could not be estimated at the time of budget adoption
(upon approval by resolution of the Board of Directors).
. Expenditure of proceeds of insurance settlements to replace involuntary destructions of property

(upon approval by resolution of the Board of Directors).

The Board of Directors can authorize transfers of appropriations between expenditure categories via Board resolution.
There was one (1) such appropriation authorized during the year.

Supplemental appropriations may also be approved by the Board of Directors when unanticipated revenue is received.
If a supplemental budget will adjust fund expenditures by more than 10 percent or will create a new fund or a new
appropriation category, the appropriations must follow a process similar to that of the original adoption of the budget
and must include a budget hearing. There was one (1) such appropriation authorized during the year.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has
six items that qualify for reporting in this category. There is a deferred outflow related to the partial defeasance of
the District’s 2006-07 general obligation bonds and a deferred outflow which is the sum of total employer PERS
expenditures for the year plus the differences between expected and actual experience and the differences between
employer contribution and proportionate share of contributions for PERS for both the pension and other post
employment benefit portions. There are also deferred outflows related to the District’s pension liability and other
post-employment benefits for the Voluntary Early Retirement plan and a deferred outflow related to other post-
employment benefits for the District’s post employment health insurance subsidy. Deferred outflows are for the
unamortized differences between the projected and actual earnings on investment assets.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to future
periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has six items
which qualify for reporting in this category. The first, which arises only under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report
unavailable revenues for property taxes. The amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amounts become available. The other deferred inflows represent acquisitions of net position that
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apply to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as inflows of resources (revenue) until that time. The District’s
statement of net position shows a deferred inflow which is equal to the difference between actuarially projected
investment earnings and actual investment earnings and contributions that the District paid to PERS during 2021-22
for both pensions and other post-employment benefits and a deferred inflow which is equal to unamortized actuarial
gains and losses due to changes in assumptions, investment earnings and assumed contributions related to the
District’s post employment health insurance subsidy. Additionally, the District has a deferred inflow, lease, related to
future earnings on a lessor lease of property where a cell tower is located and a deferred inflow related to the partial
defeasance of the District’s 2015 general obligation bonds.

Encumbrances
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are
recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as a formal budgetary tool by

management. At year-end, remaining encumbrances are reversed.

Fair Value Inputs and Methodologies and Hierarchy

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Observable inputs are developed based on
market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are developed based
on the best information available about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. The
classification of securities within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the activity level in the market for the security
type and the inputs used to determine their fair value, as follows:

Level 1 — unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets or liabilities that each Fund has
the ability to access.

Level 2 — other observable inputs (including, but not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets
that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other
than quoted prices that are observable for the assets and liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, volatilities,
loss severities, credit risks and default rates) or other market-corroborated inputs).

Level 3 — unobservable inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances, to the extent observable
inputs are not available (including each Fund’s own assumptions used in determining the fair value of investments).

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Accordingly, the
degree of judgment exercised in determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. The inputs
used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure
purposes, the fair value hierarchy classification is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement in its entirely.
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The District maintains a cash and cash equivalent investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund
portion of this pool is shown on the balance sheet as pooled cash and cash equivalents. Transfers from the Local
Government Investment Pool are made on a daily basis to cover checks presented to the bank. Individual funds may
maintain cash and cash equivalents separate from the pool for convenience and control. Student activities accounts
under the control of the schools are maintained in separate accounts in various banks and financial institutions. Petty
cash and working funds are maintained for nonrecurring incidental purchases less than $100. Such holdings are shown
on the governmental balance sheet as non-pooled cash and cash equivalents.

Investments with maturities greater than three (3) months are shown on the balance sheet by fund type as
investments.

Total cash and investments at June 30, 2022, is as follows:

Statement of  Voluntary Early  Custodial

Net Position  Retirement Fund Funds Total
Total pooled cash and equivalents S 34,735,504 S 708,216 S 275,963 $ 35,719,683
Total non-pooled cash and equivalents 1,126,675 - - 1,126,675
Total investments - - - -
Total cash and investments S 35,862,179 $ 708,216 S 275,963 S 36,846,358

Cash Equivalents and Deposits

Pooled cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2022 consists of the following:

Demand deposits S 1,406,243
LGIP 34,313,440
Total pooled cash and cash equivalents S 35,719,683

Non-pooled cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2022 consists of the following:

Cash on hand S 4,207
Demand deposits 905,370
LGIP 217,098
Total non-pooled cash and cash equivalents S 1,126,675

Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits. Oregon Revised Statutes require deposits to be
adequately covered by federal depository insurance or deposited at an approved depository as identified by the
Treasury.
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Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s cash equivalents and deposits may not
be returned to the District. At year-end, the District’s net carrying amount of deposits was $2,311,613 and the bank
balance was $3,060,051. Of these deposits, $500,631 was covered by federal depository insurance, the remainder is
collateralized with the Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP). Oregon Revised Statutes and District
policy require depository institutions to maintain on deposit, with the collateral pool manager, securities having a
value not less than 10% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are well capitalized, 25% of their quarter-end
public fund deposits if they are adequately capitalized, or 110% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are
undercapitalized or assigned to pledge.

Investments

As of June 30, 2022, the District held the following investments and maturities:

Investment Type Balnce Sheet Classification  Carrying Valule Weighted Average Maturity % of Investment
US Agency Securities Investments - - 0.00%
LGIP Cash and Equivalents $34,530,538.00 6.73 100.00%
Total Investments $34,530,538.00 100.00%

The “weighted average maturity in months” calculation assumes that all investments are held until maturity.
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District
will minimize custodial credit risk by limiting investments to the types of securities allowed by law; and pre-qualifying
the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries and advisors with which the District will do business. All of
the investments, except for the investment in the Local Government Investment Pool which is not evidenced by
securities, are held in safe keeping by the financial institution counterparty in the financial institution’s general
customer account name.

Credit Risk

Oregon Revised Statute 294.035 and District policy authorizes the District to invest in general obligations of the U.S.
government and its agencies, bankers’ acceptances, sweep accounts, debt obligations rated A (A-2/P-2 commercial
paper), or an equivalent rating, or better by Standard & Poor’s Corporation or by Moody’s Investors Service or any
other recognized statistical rating organization for issuers within Oregon, debt obligations rated AA (A-1/P-1
commercial paper) for issuers not in Oregon, and the State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP),
among others.
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At June 30, 2022, the District’s investments were rated as follows:

Rating - Rating - Standard
Moody's & Poors Investor
Investors Service Service
Investment Typ« Classification Aaa AA+ Not Rated Total
LGIP Level 2 - - 34,530,538 34,530,538
S - S - S 34,530,538 $ 34,530,538

Interest Rate Risk

In accordance with its investment policy, the District will minimize interest rate risk, which is the risk that the market
value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in market interest rates, by structuring the investment
portfolio so that securities mature to meet the cash requirement for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need
to sell securities in the open market, and investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities, money market
accounts, or similar investment pools and limiting the average maturity in accordance with the District’s cash
requirements.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The District places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer, but will minimize concentration of
credit risk, which is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the District’s investment in a single issuer, by

diversifying the investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or issuer will
be minimized.

Maximum % % of

Investment Type of Portfolio Portfolio
U.S. Agency Securities 100% 0.00%
State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool 100% 100.00%

Foreign Currency Risk

The District is not authorized to invest in investments which have this type of risk.

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Accounts and other receivables consist primarily of claims for reimbursement of costs under various

US federal and states grant programs and open accounts on sales or services provided to agencies or individuals,

mostly in the Lane County area. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been included in the financial statements
because any uncollectible amounts are considered insignificant.
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Receivables are comprised of the following as of June 30, 2022.

Statement of Net

Position Agency Funds Total
Property taxes S 1,422,239 S - $ 1,422,239
Grants, reimbursements, and accounts 13,331,381 - 13,331,381
Total receivables S 14,753,620 S - $14,753,620

LEASES RECEIVABLE

For the year ended 6/30/2022, the financial statements include the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The
primary objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance and consistency of information about governments'
leasing activities. This statement establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources. For additional information, refer to the disclosures below.

On 07/01/2021, Springfield School District entered into a 358-month lease as Lessor for the use of Cell Tower. An
initial lease receivable was recorded in the amount of $357,402. As of 06/30/2022, the value of the lease receivable
is $351,277. The lessee is required to make monthly fixed payments of $828.88. The lease has an interest rate of
1.1770%. The Land estimated useful life was 0 months as of the contract commencement. The value of the deferred
inflow of resources as of 06/30/2022 was $345,422, and Springfield School District recognized lease revenue of
$11,980 during the fiscal year. The lessee has 5 extension option(s), each for 60 months.

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Principal Payments Interest Payments Total Payments
2023 S 5844 S 4,103 S 9,947
2024 5,913 4,034 9,947
2025 5,983 3,964 9,947
2026 6,302 3,893 10,195
2027 7,628 3,810 11,438

2028-2032 41,530 17,664 59,194

2033-2037 53,180 14,893 68,073

2038-2042 66,907 11,378 78,285

2043-2047 83,040 6,987 90,027

2048-2052 74,950 1,740 76,690
Total S 351,277 S 72,466 S 423,743
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The following is a summary of changes in capital assets:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2021 Increases Decreases June 30, 2022

Capital assets not depreciated:

Land S 7,168,069 S - S (59,753) 7,108,316
Construction in progress 2,304,085 6,418,409 (1,957,265) 6,765,229
Total capital assets not depreciated 9,472,154 6,418,409 (2,017,018) 13,873,545
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 178,146,428 3,287,210 - 181,433,638
Equipment 8,044,503 1,116,245 (40,104) 9,120,644
Buses 8,981,474 1,809,546 (1,209,389) 9,581,631
Other motor vehicles 1,581,908 7,000 (78,210) 1,510,698
Total capital assets being depreciated 196,754,313 6,220,001 (1,327,703) 201,646,611

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (58,306,084) (3,819,666) - (62,125,750)
Equipment (5,290,340) (901,765) - (6,192,105)
Buses (5,457,522) (732,015) 1,133,561 (5,055,976)
Other motor vehicles (1,269,717) (73,065) 50,485 (1,292,297)
Total accumulated depreciation (70,323,663) (5,526,511) 1,184,046 (74,666,128)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 126,430,650 693,490 (143,657) 126,980,483

Total capital assets, net

$ 135902,804 $ 7,111,899 S (2,160,675) S 140,854,028

Depreciation expense was charged to the following programs:

Program Depreciation

Instruction services S 4,007,038
Support services 1,482,535
Community services 36,938
Total S 5,526,511

Asset Impairment

OnJanuary 6, 2022, there was flooding at Walterville Elementary School due to weather related issues. Approximately
two thirds of the building was impacted by water damage with category 3 contamination. Affected areas included the
office, 2 classroom wings, and the library. Classes were relocated to a different building for the remainder of the
school year. The District filed an insurance claim and recognized an impairment gain of $1.7 million.
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LEASES PAYABLE

For the year ended 6/30/2022, the financial statements include the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The
primary objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance and consistency of information about governments'
leasing activities. This statement establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources. For additional information, refer to the disclosures below.

On 07/01/2021, Springfield School District entered into a 48-month lease as Lessee for the use of Postage meter. An
initial lease liability was recorded in the amount of $17,000. As of 06/30/2022, the value of the lease liability is $17,000.
Springfield School District is required to make quarterly fixed payments of $1,797. The lease has an interest rate of
1.0110%. The Equipment’s estimated useful life was 48 months as of the contract commencement. The value of the
right to use asset as of 06/30/2022 of $17,000 with accumulated amortization of $4,172 is included with Equipment
on the Lease Class activities table found below.

Principal and Interest Requirements to Maturity

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Principal Payments Interest Payments Total Payments
2023 S 5,515 § 293 § 5,808
2024 5,714 95 5,808
2025 5,771 37 5,808
Total S 17,000 S 424 S 17,424
LEASE ASSET
Balance as of July Balance as of June
Governmental Activities 1,2021 Additions Reductions 30,2022

Lease Assets:
Equipment

Postage Meter S - S 17,000 S - S 17,000
Total Lease Assets - 17,000 - 17,000

Lease Accumulated Amortization

Equipment

Postage Meter - 4,172 - 4,172
Total Lease Accumulated Amortization - 4,172 - 4,172
Total Governmental Lease Assets, Net S - S 12,828 S - S 12,828
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LONG TERM DEBT
Financed purchases

Springfield School District No. 19 has seven outstanding Financed Purchases in the amount of $4,528,985.

In 2013, a tax-exempt $730,606 Series 2013 Financing Agreement and Note was issued with maturities ranging from $13,231 to $64,702. The Series 2013 Financing Agreement and Note was bank
placed with and is repaid from the Fleet Replacement Fund.

In 2014, a tax-exempt $566,688 Series 2014 - Financing Agreement and Notes was issued with maturities ranging from $49,455 to $64,472. The Series 2014 Financing Agreement and Notes was
bank placed with and is repaid from the Fleet Replacement Fund.

In 2015, a tax-exempt $940,000 Series 2015 Financing Agreement and Notes was issued with maturities ranging from $82,489 to $106,413. The Series 2015 Financing Agreement and Notes was
bank placed with and is repaid from the Fleet Replacement Fund.

In 2016, a tax-exempt $398,613 Series 2016 Financing Agreement and Notes was issued with maturities ranging from $35,190 to $44,882. The Series 2016 Financing Agreement and Notes was
bank placed with Commerce Bank and is repaid from the Fleet Replacement Fund.

In 2017, a tax-exempt $845,702 Series 2017 Financing Agreement and Note was issued with maturities ranging from $72,859 to $97,330. The Series 2017 Lease Financing Agreement and Note was
bank placed with and is repaid from the Fleet Replacement Fund.

In 2018, a tax-exempt $917,376 Series 2018 A Financing Agreement and Notes was issued with maturities ranging from $34,367 to $58,532. The Series 2018 A Financing Agreement and Notes was
bank placed with and is repaid from the Fleet Replacement Fund.

In 2018, a tax-exempt $130,000 Series 2018 B Financing Agreement and Notes was issued with maturities ranging from $2,463 to $3,965. The Series 2018 B Financing Agreement and Notes was
bank placed with and is repaid from the Print Shop Fund.

Governmental Activities

Issue Closing Date  Maturity Date Interest Rates Original Issue Amount Outstanding Amount Payable From Purpose
Series 2013 Financing Agreement and Note 07/15/2013 07/15/2022 2.390% 730,606 79,175 Fleet Replacement Fund Bus Purchases
Series 2014 Financing Agreement and Notes 07/08/2014 07/08/2023 2.990% 566,688 123,382 Fleet Replacement Fund Bus Purchases
Series 2015 Financing Agreement and Notes 07/15/2015 07/15/2024 2.870% 940,000 301,754 Fleet Replacement Fund Bus Purchases
Series 2016 Financing Agreement and Notes 07/15/2016 07/15/2025 2.740% 398,613 167,873 Fleet Replacement Fund Bus Purchases
Series 2017 Financing Agreement and Note 07/27/2017 07/27/2026 3.270% 845,702 442,329 Fleet Replacement Fund Bus Purchases
Series 2018 A Financing Agreement and Notes 06/06/2018 07/06/2027 3.820% 917,376 571,130 Fleet Replacement Fund Bus Purchases
Series 2018 B Financing Agreement and Notes 06/06/2018 07/05/2023 3.820% 130,000 34,958 Print Shop Fund Copiers
Total 4,528,985 1,720,601

Debt Service Requirements
Governmental Activities

Year Ending Notes Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements

June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service

2023 475,186 56,063 531,249

2024 387,044 41,558 428,602

2025 327,568 29,370 356,937

2026 231,740 18,785 250,524

2027 194,737 10,906 205,643

2028-2032 104,326 3,985 108,312

Total 1,720,601 160,666 1,881,267 - - -
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FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OBLIGATIONS

Springfield School District No. 19 has two outstanding Full Faith and Credit Obligations (Appropriation) in the amount of $111,285,000.

In 2020, tax-exempt (bqg) $4,330,000 Series 2020 Full Faith and Credit Project and Refunding Obligations were issued with maturities ranging from $55,000 to
$310,000. The Series 2020 Full Faith and Credit Project and Refunding Obligations were publicly sold and are repaid from the Debt Service Fund and Fleet
Replacement Fund.

In 2021, taxable $106,955,000 Series 2021 A Full Faith and Credit Pension Obligations were issued with maturities ranging from $2,670,000 to $9,215,000.
The bonds were issued to pay the District's nfunded actuorial liability on its pension obligation. The Series 2021 A Full Faith and Credit Pension Obligations
were publicly sold and are repaid from the PERS Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Activities

Maturity Original Issue Outstanding
Issue Closing Date Date Interest Rates Amount Amount Payable From Purpose
Series 2020 Full Faith and Credit Debt Service Fund, Fleet Admin building &
Project and Refunding Obligations 10/29/2020 06/01/2031 3.000% 4,330,000 3,645,000 Replacement Fund Bus replacement
Series 2021 A Full Faith and Pay PERS
Credit Pension Obligations 08/19/2021 06/30/2040 0.312%-2.895% 106,955,000 104,285,000 PERS Debt Service Fund unfunded UAL

Total 111,285,000 107,930,000

Debt Service Requirements
Governmental Activities

Year Ending Publicly Sold

June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service
2023 3,840,000 2,313,158 6,153,158
2024 4,020,000 2,291,097 6,311,097
2025 4,250,000 2,258,028 6,508,028
2026 4,500,000 2,212,485 6,712,485
2027 4,770,000 2,155,032 6,925,032
2028-2032 27,970,000 9,459,500 37,429,500
2033-2037 35,920,000 6,210,783 42,130,783
2038-2042 22,660,000 1,200,412 23,860,412
Total 107,930,000 28,100,495 136,030,495
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LIMITED TAX PENSION OBLIGATION BOND

Springfield School District No. 19 has one outstanding Limted Tax Pension Obligation issue in the amount of $62,150,000.

In 2005, taxable $62,150,000 Series 2005 A Limited Tax Pension Bonds were issued with maturities ranging from $115,000 to $6,700,000. The Series 2005 A Limted Tax
Pension Bonds were publicly sold and are repaid from the PERS Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Activities

Issue Closing Date  Maturity Date  Interest Rates  Original Issue Amount  Outstanding Amount  Payable From Purpose
Series 2005 A General PERS Debt Pay PERS
Obligation Pension Bonds 06/21/2005 06/30/2028 4.759% 62,150,000 31,700,000 Service Fund  unfunded UAL
Total 62,150,000 31,700,000

Debt Service Requirements

Year Ending
June 30
2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Total

Governmental Activities

Publicly Sold

Principal Interest Debt Service
4,635,000 1,508,603 6,143,603
5,100,000 1,288,023 6,388,023
5,600,000 1,045,314 6,645,314
6,130,000 778,810 6,908,810
6,700,000 487,084 7,187,084
3,535,000 168,231 3,703,231

31,700,000 5,276,065 36,976,065
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In 2015, tax-exempt $32,245,000 Series 2015 A General Obligation Bonds were issued with maturities ranging from $240,000 to $20,400,000. The Series 2015 A General Obligation
Bonds were publicly sold and are repaid from the Debt Service Fund.

In 2015, tax-exempt $39,253,907 Series 2015 B General Obligation Bonds were issued with maturities ranging from $4,018,543 to $4,739,098. The Series 2015 B General Obligation
Bonds were publicly sold and are repaid from the Debt Service Fund.
In 2015, tax-exempt $8,815,000 Series 2015 C General Obligation Refunding Bonds were issued with maturities ranging from $75,000 to $4,520,000. The Series 2015 C General
Obligation Refunding Bonds were publicly sold and are repaid from the Debt Service Fund.
In 2015, tax-exempt $35,225,338 Series 2015 D General Obligation Refunding Bonds were issued with maturities ranging from $2,983,865 to $3,838,263. The Series 2015 D General
Obligation Refunding Bonds were publicly sold and are repaid from the Debt Service Fund.

In 2021, taxable $23,525,000 Series 2021 General Obligation Refunding Bonds were issued with maturities ranging from $270,000 to $8,175,000. The Series 2021 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds were publicly sold and are repaid from the Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Activities
Issue

Series 2015 A General
Obligation Bonds

Series 2015 B General
Obligation Bonds

Series 2015 C General
Obligation Refunding Bonds

Series 2015 D General
Obligation Refunding Bonds
Series 2021 General
Obligation Refunding Bonds

Debt Service Requirements

Year Ending
June 30
2023

2024

2025

2026

2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2040
Total

Closing Date  Maturity Date Interest Rates
01/29/2015 06/15/2025 4.000%-5.000%
01/29/2015 06/15/2040

03/03/2015 06/15/2026 2.625%-5.000%
03/03/2015 06/15/2029

11/18/2021 06/15/2031 0.515%-1.944%

Total

Governmental Activities

Original Issue Amount Outstanding Amount

Publicly Sold

Principal Interest Debt Service
5,711,688 1,845,686 7,557,374
5,773,833 1,996,784 7,770,617
5,560,000 762,183 6,322,183
5,950,000 556,404 6,506,404
4,609,842 2,090,001 6,699,843
29,931,072 9,283,589 39,214,661
22,231,312 25,498,687 47,729,999
12,283,496 19,626,503 31,909,999
92,051,243 61,659,837 153,711,080
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32,245,000 4,395,000
39,253,907 39,253,907
8,815,000 8,740,000
35,225,338 16,407,336
23,525,000 23,255,000
139,064,245 92,051,243

Payable From

Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund

Purpose

Construction Bond

Construction Bond

Refunding

Refunding

Refunding
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Springfield School District No. 19 has two outstanding Limited Tax General Obligation Notes in the amount of $1,675,000.

In 2020, a tax-exempt (bg) $1,000,000 Series 2020 Limited Tax General Obligation Note was issued with maturities ranging from $88,646 to $112,174. The Series 2020
Limited Tax General Obligation Note was bank placed with and is repaid from the Debt Service Fund.

In 2022, a tax-exempt (bg) $675,000 Series 2022 Limited Tax General Obligation Note was issued with maturities ranging from $58,962 to $76,731. The Series 2022
Limited Tax General Obligation Note was bank placed with and is repaid from the Fleet Replacement Fund.

Governmental Activities

Issue Closing Date Maturity Date Interest Rates Original Issue Amount Outstanding Amount Payable From Purpose
Series 2020 Limited Tax
General Obligation Note 05/22/2020 05/22/2030 2.650% 1,000,000 820,359 Debt Service Fund Propery Purchase
Series 2022 Limited Tax
General Obligation Note 04/01/2022 04/01/2031 2.970% 675,000 598,269 Fleet Replacement Fund Bus Purchases
Total 1,675,000 1,418,628

Debt Service Requirements

Governmental Activities

Year Ending Notes Direct Borrowings/Direct Placements
June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service
2023 152,369 39,508 191,877
2024 156,595 35,282 191,877
2025 160,939 30,938 191,877
2026 165,404 26,473 191,877
2027 169,993 21,883 191,877
2028-2032 613,328 39,033 652,361
Total 1,418,628 193,117 1,611,745

53



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT 19
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2022

QUALIFIED ZONE ACADEMY BOND (APPROPRIATION)

Springfield School District No. 19 had one Qualified Zone Academy Bond in the original amount
of $1,261,720. The outstanding balance at June 30,2022 was $0.

In 2005, tax-exempt $1,261,720 Series 2005 Qualified Zone Academy Bonds were issued with
maturities ranging from $78,858 to $78,858. The Series 2005 Qualified Zone Academy Bonds
were bank placed with Bank of America and are repaid from the Debt Service Fund.

There are no debt service requirements in future years. The bonds were paid off in 2021-22
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ROLL-FORWARD TABLE BY ACTIVITY

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Publicly Sold
Full Faith and Credit Obligation (Appropriation)
Series 2020 Full Faith & Credit Project & Refunding Oblig
Series 2021 A Full Faith and Credit Pension Obligations
Total Full Faith and Credit Obligation (Appropriation)

Limited Tax Pension Obligation Bonds
Series 2005 A Limited Tax Pension Bonds
Total Limited Tax Pension Obligation Bonds

General Obligation
Series 2015 A General Obligation Bonds
Series 2015 B General Obligation Bonds
Series 2015 C General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Series 2015 D General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Series 2021 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Total General Obligation

Notes for Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements

Financed purchases
Series 2013 - Financing Agreement and Note
Series 2014 - Financing Agreement and Notes
Series 2015 - Financing Agreement and Notes
Series 2016 - Financing Agreement and Notes
Series 2017 - Financing Agreement and Note
Series 2018 - Financing Agreement and Notes
Series 2018 B - Financing Agreement and Notes

Total Financed Purchases

Limited Tax General Obligation (Note)
Series 2020 Limited Tax General Obligation Note
Series 2022 Limited Tax General Obligation Note
Total Limited Tax General Obligation (Note)

Qualified Zone Academy Bond (Appropriation)
Series 2005 Qualified Zone Academy Bonds
Total Qualified Zone Academy Bond (Appropriation)

Total - All Issues

SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT 19
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2022
Balance as of Balance as of Unamortized NetBalance  Accrued Interest Current Long Term
July 1, 2021 Additions Reductions June 30,2022 Premium June 30,2022 |[nterest Paid Portion Portion
4,005,000 - 360,000 3,645,000 376,630 4,021,630 8,963 120,150 417,226 3,604,404
- 106,955,000 2,670,000 104,285,000 104,285,000 6,021 1,908,043 3,465,000 100,820,000
4,005,000 106,955,000 3,030,000 107,930,000 376,630 108,306,630 14,985 2,028,193 3,882,226 104,424,404
35,900,000 - 4,200,000 31,700,000 - 31,700,000 4,122 1,708,481 4,635,000 27,065,000
35,900,000 - 4,200,000 31,700,000 - 31,700,000 4,122 1,708,481 4,635,000 27,065,000
26,250,000 - 21,855,000 4,395,000 570,020 4,965,020 8,863 785,500 1,887,683 3,077,337
39,253,907 - - 39,253,907 - 39,253,907 - - - 39,253,907
8,740,000 - - 8,740,000 319,800 9,059,800 14,064 321,699 80,848 8,978,952
20,170,551 - 3,763,215 16,407,336 - 16,407,336 40,036 736,785 3,626,688 12,780,648
- 23,525,000 270,000 23,255,000 - 23,255,000 17,833 235,216 390,000 22,865,000
94,414,458 23,525,000 25,888,215 92,051,243 889,820 92,941,063 80,796 2,079,201 5,985,219 86,955,844
156,501 - 77,326 79,175 - 79,175 1,820 3,740 79,175 -
182,400 - 59,018 123,382 - 123,382 3,618 5,454 60,782 62,600
396,780 - 95,025 301,754 - 301,754 8,328 11,388 97,752 204,002
207,081 - 39,208 167,873 - 167,873 4,423 5,674 40,282 127,591
522,571 - 80,242 442,329 - 442,329 13,434 17,088 82,866 359,462
654,442 - 83,313 571,130 - 571,130 21,518 25,000 86,495 484,635
61,753 - 26,795 34,958 - 34,958 319 1,978 27,833 7,125
2,181,528 - 460,927 1,720,601 - 1,720,601 53,461 70,322 475,186 1,245,415
911,354 - 90,995 820,359 - 820,359 2,382 24,151 93,407 726,952
- 675,000 76,731 598,269 - 598,269 4,430 - 58,962 539,307
911,354 675,000 167,726 1,418,628 - 1,418,628 6,812 24,151 152,369 1,266,259
78,858 - 78,858 - - - - - - -
78,858 - 78,858 - - - - - - -
137,491,197 131,155,000 33,825,725 234,820,472 1,266,450 236,086,922 160,176 5,910,347 15,130,000 220,956,922
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June 30, 2022
Schedule of Payments
Governmental Activities
Notes for Direct Borrowings and Direct
Year Ending Publicly Sold Placements
June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service Principal Interest Debt Service

2023 14,186,688 5,667,447 19,854,135 627,555 95,571 723,125

2024 14,893,833 5,575,904 20,469,737 543,639 76,840 620,479

2025 15,410,000 4,065,525 19,475,525 488,507 60,307 548,814

2026 16,580,000 3,547,699 20,127,699 397,144 45,257 442,401

2027 16,079,842 4,732,116 20,811,958 364,730 32,789 397,519
2028-2032 61,436,071 18,911,319 80,347,390 717,655 43,018 760,673
2033-2037 58,151,312 31,709,471 89,860,783 - - -
2038-2042 34,943,497 20,826,915 55,770,412 - - -

Total 231,681,243 95,036,396 326,717,639 3,139,229 353,783 3,493,012
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June 30, 2022

GOVERNMENTALACTIVITIES

Summary of events and remedies upon default

Publicly Sold Event of Default Remedy

Series 2020 Full |Failure by the District to pay any Financing Payment when due. Whenever any event of default referred to in the

Faith and Credit |Failure by the District to comply with any other covenant, condition [agreement shall have happened and be continuing, the

Refunding or agreement under this Financing Agreement for a period of 60 Escrow Agent may proceed (and shall upon written

Obligations days after written notice to the District. Occurrence and request the Owners of fifty-one (51%) percent or more
continuance of any Event of Default under the Escrow Agreement. |of the principal amount of Obligations then
The commencement by the District of a voluntary case underany [Outstanding), to take whatever action at law or in
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law. Any equity may be necessary to enforce the financing
statement, representation or warranty made by the District in or agreement. The escrow agent does not have the right
pursuant to the Financing Agreement proven to be false, incorrect, |to declare the unpaid principal immediately due.
misleading or breached.

Series 2021 A Failure by a Series 2021A Issuer to pay Series 2021A Pension Bond | The Trustee may, and if the Owners of not less than

Full Faith and principal, interest or premium when due. Failure to observe and fifty-one percent (51%) in Outstanding Principal

Credit Pension

perform any other covenant, condition or agreement which the

amount of Series 2021A Obligations so request, shall

Obligations Resolution requires the Issuer to observe or perform for the benefit |take whatever action at law or in equity may appear
of the Trustee, which failure continues for a period of 60 days after |necessary or desirable to enforce or to protect any of
written notice to Issuer by the Trustee. The Issueris adjudged the rights vested in the Trustee or the Owners of
insolvent by a court of competent jurisdiction, admits in Obligations by the Trust Agreement, the Intercept
writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, [Agreement or Pension Bonds, either at law or in equity
files a petition in bankruptcy, or consents to the appointmentofa | orin bankruptcy or otherwise.
receiver for the installment payments.

Series 2005 A Non-punctual payment of principal and interest due. The Series Upon occurrence of default and if the owners of not

Limited Tax 2005A Trustee shall not exercise remedies against a Series 2005A | less than 51% of outstanding principal so request,

Pension Bonds

Issuer that has not caused a Pension Bond Default.

whatever action at law or in equity necessary or
desirable to enforce or protect the rights vested in
trustee or owners of the obligations, but will not
accelerate payments.

Series 2015 A
General
Obligation Bonds

Failure by the District to pay Bond principal, interest or premium
when due. Failure by the District to observe and perform any
covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed or
performed for the benefit of Owners of Bonds, for a period of sixty
(60) days after written notice to the District by the Owners of fifty-
one (51%) percent or more of the principal amount of Bonds then
Outstanding specifying such failure and requesting that it be
remedied. The District is adjudged insolvent by a court of
competent jurisdiction, admits in writing its inability to pay its debts
generally as they become due, files a petition in bankruptcy, or
consents to the appointment of a receiver for the payments

If an Event of Default occurs, the Lender may exercise
any remedy available atlaw orin equity. In addition,
upon the occurrence of an Event of Default due to the
District's failure to pay principal or interest on the Note
when due, or fees or other amounts when due, as
provided in the Note and this Agreement, or if the
interest on the Note ceases to be excluded from gross
income for federal income taxation purposes, or if the
Note is not a "qualified tax-exempt obligation"
pursuant to Section 265 of the Code, then the Lender
may declare that the principal amount of the Note then
outstanding shall bear interest at the Default Rate.
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Publicly Sold Event of Default Remedy
Series 2015 B Failure by the District to pay Bond principal, interest or premium If an Event of Default occurs, the Lender may exercise
General when due. Failure by the District to observe and perform any any remedy available at law orin equity. In addition,

Obligation Bonds

covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed or
performed for the benefit of Owners of Bonds, for a period of sixty
(60) days after written notice to the District by the Owners of fifty-
one (51%) percent or more of the principal amount of Bonds then
Outstanding specifying such failure and requesting that it be
remedied. The District is adjudged insolvent by a court of
competent jurisdiction, admits in writing its inability to pay its debts
generally as they become due, files a petition in bankruptcy, or
consents to the appointment of a receiver for the payments.

upon the occurrence of an Event of Default due to the
District's failure to pay principal or interest on the Note
when due, or fees or other amounts when due, as
provided in the Note and this Agreement, or if the
interest on the Note ceases to be excluded from gross
income for federal income taxation purposes, or if the
Note is not a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" pursuant
to Section 265 of the Code, then the Lender may declare
that the principal amount of the Note then outstanding
shall bear interest at the Default Rate.

Series 2015C
General
Obligation
Refunding Bonds

Article XI-K of the Constitution of the State of Oregon allows the
State to guarantee the general obligation bonded indebtedness of
school districts, education service districts, and community college
districts (generally “school district" or “school districts") in order to
secure lower interest costs on general obligation bonds of such
districts. Payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds
when due is guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the State
under the provisions of the Oregon School Bond Guaranty Act -
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 328.321 to 328.356 (the “Act"), as
provided forin Section 328.326(1)(a) of the Act.

The State Treasurer may, by issuing a certificate of
qualification to a school district, pledge the full faith and
credit and taxing power of the state to guarantee full
and timely payment of the principal of, either at the
stated maturity or by advancement of maturity
pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment, and
interest on school bonds as such payments shall
become due, except that in the event of any
acceleration of the due date of such principal by reason
of mandatory or optional redemption or acceleration
resulting from default or otherwise, other than any
advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory
sinking fund payment, the payments guaranteed shall
be made in such amounts and at such times as such
payments of principal would have been due, had there
not been any such acceleration.

Series 2015D
General
Obligation
Refunding Bonds

Article XI-K of the Constitution of the State of Oregon allows the
State to guarantee the general obligation bonded indebtedness of
school districts, education service districts, and community college
districts (generally “school district" or “school districts") in order to
secure lower interest costs on general obligation bonds of such
districts. Payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds
when due is guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the State
under the provisions of the Oregon School Bond Guaranty Act -
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 328.321 to 328.356 (the “Act"), as
provided forin Section 328.326(1)(a) of the Act.

The State Treasurer may, by issuing a certificate of
qualification to a school district, pledge the full faith and
credit and taxing power of the state to guarantee full
and timely payment of the principal of, either at the
stated maturity or by advancement of maturity
pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment, and
interest on school bonds as such payments shall
become due, except that in the event of any
acceleration of the due date of such principal by reason
of mandatory or optional redemption or acceleration
resulting from default or otherwise, other than any
advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory
sinking fund payment, the payments guaranteed shall
be made in such amounts and at such times as such
payments of principal would have been due, had there
not been any such acceleration.
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Publicly Sold Event of Default Remedy

Series 2021 Article XI-K of the Constitution of the State of Oregon allows the The State Treasurer may, by issuing a certificate of
General State to guarantee the general obligation bonded indebtedness of |qualification to a school district, pledge the full faith and
Obligation school districts, education service districts, and community college |credit and taxing power of the state to guarantee full

Refunding Bonds

districts (generally “school district" or “school districts") in order to
secure lower interest costs on general obligation bonds of such
districts. Payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds
when due is guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the State
under the provisions of the Oregon School Bond Guaranty Act -
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 328.321 to 328.356 (the “Act"), as
provided forin Section 328.326(1)(a) of the Act.

and timely payment of the principal of, either at the
stated maturity or by advancement of maturity
pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment, and
interest on school bonds as such payments shall
become due, except that in the event of any
acceleration of the due date of such principal by reason
of mandatory or optional redemption or acceleration
resulting from default or otherwise, other than any
advancement of maturity pursuant to a mandatory
sinking fund payment, the payments guaranteed shall
be made in such amounts and at such times as such
payments of principal would have been due, had there
not been any such acceleration.

Direct
Borrowings and
Direct

Event of Default

Remedy

Placements

Series 2013 - District fails to pay amounts when due or comply with obligations |Any remedy available at law or in equity. Upon failure
Financing and failure is not cured for a period of more than 30 days after to pay amounts due (including fees) or if tax status
Agreementand [Lender has made a written demand. District makes a material changes, the Lender may declare the principal amount
Note misrepresentation or fails to maintain tax exempt status. due and note shall bear interest at the Default rate.
Series 2014 - District fails to pay amounts when due or comply with obligations |Any remedy available at law or in equity. Upon failure
Financing and failure is not cured for a period of more than 30 days after to pay amounts due (including fees) or if tax status
Agreementand [Lender has made a written demand. District makes a material changes, the Lender may declare the principal amount
Note misrepresentation or fails to maintain tax exempt status. due and note shall bear interest at the Default rate.
Series 2015 - District fails to pay amounts when due or comply with obligations |Any remedy available at law or in equity. Upon failure
Financing and failure is not cured for a period of more than 30 days after to pay amounts due (including fees) or if tax status
Agreementand [Lender has made a written demand. District makes a material changes, the Lender may declare the principal amount
Note misrepresentation or fails to maintain tax exempt status. due and note shall bear interest at the Default rate.
Series 2016 - District fails to pay amounts when due or comply with obligations | Allamounts due and payable upon written notice along
Financing and failure is not cured for a period of more than 10 days. District |with interest of 1.5% per month. District returns
Agreementand |makes a makes a false representation or becomes insolvent. property to the seller. Seller sells equipment to other
Note District suffers adverse change in financial condition. party and holds District responsible for difference

between purchase price and payment amount.
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Direct
Borrowings and
Direct

Event of Default

Remedy

Placements

Series 2017 - District fails to pay amounts when due or comply with obligations | Any remedy available at law or in equity. Upon failure
Financing and failure is not cured for a period of more than 30 days after to pay amounts due (including fees) or if tax status
Agreementand [Lender has made a written demand. District makes a material changes, the Lender may declare the principal amount
Note misrepresentation or fails to maintain tax exempt status. due and note shall bear interest at the Default rate.
Series 2018 A - | District fails to pay amounts when due or comply with obligations |Any remedy available atlaw or in equity. Upon failure
Financing and failure is not cured for a period of more than 30 days after to pay amounts due (including fees) or if tax status
Agreementand |Lender has made a written demand. District makes a material changes, the Lender may declare the principal amount
Note misrepresentation or fails to maintain tax exempt status. due and note shall bear interest at the Default rate.
Series 2018 B- District fails to pay amounts when due or comply with obligations |Any remedy available at law orin equity. Upon failure
Financing and failure is not cured for a period of more than 30 days after to pay amounts due (including fees) or if tax status
Agreementand [Lender has made a written demand. District makes a material changes, the Lender may declare the principal amount
Note misrepresentation or fails to maintain tax exempt status. due and note shall bear interest at the Default rate.
Series 2020 District fails to pay amounts when due or comply with obligations |May declare Payments and other amounts payable by
Limited Tax and failure is not cured for a period of more than 30 days after the District to be due, including Payments from prior
General Lender has made a written demand. District makes a material budget years, and amounts shall bear interest at the

Obligation Note

misrepresentation or fails to maintain tax exempt status.

rate of 12% per annum or the maximum amount
permitted by law, whichever is less. Seller may
accelerate all outstanding Installment Payments, in
which case the District agrees to pay to the Selleran
amount equal to the outstanding Installment Payments,
as well as any other sums due.

Series 2022
Limited Tax
General
Obligation Note

District fails to pay amounts when due or comply with obligations
and failure is not cured for a period of more than 30 days after
Lender has made a written demand. District makes a material
misrepresentation or fails to maintain tax exempt status.

Lender may exercise any remedy available at law orin
equity except the Note shall not be subject to
acceleration. In addition, upon the occurrence of an
Event of Default due to the District’s failure to pay
principal or interest on the Note when due, or fees or
other amounts when due, or if the interest on the Note
ceases to be excluded from gross income for federal
income taxation purposes, or if the Note is not a
“qualified tax-exempt obligation” the Lender may
declare that the principal amount of the Note then
outstanding shall bear interest at the Default Rate.
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FUND BALANCE

The specific purposes for each of the categories of fund balance as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Grants &

Contract Fund Debt Service Non Major
Fund Balance: General Fund Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable:
Inventory S 175,175 S 74,761 S - S 194,269 S 444,205
Lease receviable - - - 5,855 5,855
Total Nonspendable 175,175 74,761 - 200,124 450,060
Restricted:
Grants - 156,454 - - 156,454
Bus replacement - 647,991 - - 647,991
Sky Camp operations - 16,825 - - 16,825
Student body - - - 1,207,069 1,207,069
Flood repairs 899,117 899,117
Debt service - - 591,727 - 591,727
Nutrition services - - - 1,401,613 1,401,613
Total Restricted - 821,270 591,727 3,507,799 4,920,796
Committed to:
Purchase of textbooks - 1,894,484 - - 1,894,484
Capital projects - -
Co-curricular activities - - - 1,244,411 1,244,411
Total Committed - 1,894,484 - 1,244,411 3,138,895
Assigned to:
Risk management - 585,370 - - 585,370
Fleet replacement - 69,977 - - 69,977
Technology - 2,521,630 - - 2,521,630
Total Assigned - 3,176,977 - - 3,176,977
Unassigned 19,472,930 - - (499,503) 18,973,427
Total Fund Balances $19,648,105 §$ 5,967,492 S 591,727 $4,452,831 $ 30,660,155

INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND INTERFUND DUE TO/DUE FROM

The District made transfers from the General Fund of $1,500,000 to the Co-Curricular Fund for the support
of athletic and activity programs and $471,516 to the Debt Service Fund for the principal and interest
payments on non-general obligation bonds. There was $8,431,779 due from the Grants and Contracts
Fund to the General Fund at June 30, 2022 and 55,248,872 due from the ESSER fund to the General Fund
which resulted from the requirement of most grants that funds be expended before reimbursement is
requested. Cash was borrowed from the general fund to cover negative cash balances in grant funds due
to timing differences between billings and cash receipts.

There was $614,759 due from the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund due to a year end receivable
from an insurance claim. There was $4,014 due from the Print Services fund to the General Fund due to
a year end receivable in the print shop.
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OVER-EXPENDITURES OF APPROPRIATIONS

For the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2022, expenditures exceeded appropriations by $58,630 in the
Enterprise and Community Services category of the Grants and Contracts Fund, $243,041 in the
Supporting Services category and $12,585 in the Facilities Acquisition and Construction category of the
SIA Fund. All other appropriation levels were not exceeded and total expenditures were not exceeded.

PENSION PLANS

Voluntary Early Retirement

Plan Description

The District’s collective bargaining agreements with teachers and administrators include early retirement
provisions for employees whose employment with the District began prior to July 1, 1994. Additional
prerequisites to receive this benefit include ten consecutive full-time years employment with the District
and retirement under PERS. The program, available to teachers and administrators, provides two types
of benefits; a stipend benefit and an insurance benefit. AtJune 30, 2022, there were 30 active participants
and no District employees who are potentially eligible for the benefit in the future. Calculations are based
on the pension benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each
valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
Actuarial valuations for pension plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. Actuarial calculations of the Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan reflect a long-
term perspective. All assets accumulated to pay benefits may legally be used to pay for pension or medical
benefits. Therefore, the VER plan is considered a single pension plan. The District does not issue a stand-
alone report for this plan.

Pension Benefits

The Plan consists of an incentive benefit equal to 1.4% per month of the employee’s final annual salary
payable until the earlier of age sixty-two (62) or forty-eight (48) months. Actual incentive benefits paid
totaled $52,996 for the year ended June 30, 2022. This portion of the plan is subject to the reporting
requirements of GASB Statements number 67 & 68 which pertain to pension type benefits.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The assets of the fund were placed in an irrevocable trust during the year ended June 30, 2003.
Expenditures are recorded in the Voluntary Early Retirement Trust Fund as the incentive payments and
related insurance premiums are paid.

Funding Policy
There is no obligation on the part of the District to fund these benefits in advance. The District is paying
the obligation as it is due with an assessment to the general fund. The fund balance in

the Early Retirement Trust Fund was $701,466 at June 30, 2022.

Net pension Liability

The District’s net pension liability (NPL) was measured as of June 30, 2022 using an actuarial valuation
date of July 1, 2021.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The District engaged an actuary to perform a valuation as of July 1, 2022 using the Entry age normal, level
percent of salary Actuarial Cost Method. The asset valuation method used was market value and the
amortization method used was 1 year, closed level S.

The total pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

Amortization growth rate N/A
Discount rate 2.25%
General inflation 2.00%
Salary scale 3.00%
Merit Scale -.59% t04.15%

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers table, separate Employee/Healthy Annuitant, sex
distinct, projected generationally. Mortality rate for active male participants are 125% of the above rates,
and for active female participants are 100% of the published rates. Mortality rates for beneficiaries were
based on Pub-2010 General Employees table, Healthy Annuitant, sex distinct, generational, set back 12
months for males, no set back for females. Improvement scale was Unisex Social Security Data Scale (60
year average), with data through 2017.

Turnover rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS
and vary by years of service.

Disability rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS
and vary by employee age.

Retirement rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS
and vary by age and years of service.
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The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.5%, based on all years discounted at

the municipal bond rate.

Change in Net Pension Liability (NPL)

Balances at June 30, 2021

Service Cost

Interest

Changes of benefit terms

Differences betw expected & actual experiences
Changes of assumptions or other input
Contributions - Employer

Contributions - Employee

© O N O Uk WNR

Net investment income

=
o

Benefit payments
. Administrative expense

=
N R

. Net Changes
. Balances at June 30, 2022

=
w

Fiduciary Net Position as a % of total pension liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Net Pension
Liability (a) Position (b) Liability (a)-(b)
S 68,668 $ 59,790 $ 8,878
743 - 743
966 - 966
36,765 - 36,765
(788) - (788)
- 41,283 (41,283)
- 611 611
(52,996) (52,996) -
(15,310) (11,102) (4,208)
S 53,358 $ 48,688 S 4,670
109.59%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net pension liability (NPL) of the District, calculated using the discount rate of
3.50 percent, as well as what the District’s NPL would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50 percent) than the current

rate:
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(2.50%) Rate (3.50%) (4.50%)
1. Total Pension Liability S 53,988 S 53,358 S 52,746
2. Fiduciary Net Position 48,688 48,688 48,688
3. Net Pension Liability S 5300 $ 4670 S 4,058

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to

Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized pension expense of $37,894. At June 30, 2022,
the District reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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Gain/Loss Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Resources Resources
1. Differences between expected and actual experience S - S -
2. Changes in assumptions or other input - -
3. Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments 2,102 -
4, Total S 2,102 $ -

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

PERS

Year ended June 30:

2023 S 1,065
2024 651
2025 267
2026 119
2027 -
Thereafter -
Total S 2,102

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description — The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single cost-

sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. All benefits of the system are established by the
legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A. Oregon PERS produces an
independently audited Annual Comprehensive Financial Report which can be found at:
https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2021-ACFR.pdf

If the link is expired, please contact Oregon PERS for this information.

a. PERS Pension (Chapter 238). The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Plan is closed to new members
hired on or after August 29, 2003.

Pension Benefits. The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be
selected from 13 retirement benefit options. These options include survivorship benefits
and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average
salary. A percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire employees, and 1.67 percent for
general service employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final
average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for
members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation
if a greater benefits results.

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a
service retirement allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar
years or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing employment with a
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participating employer (age 45 for police and fire members). General service employees
may retire after reaching age 55. Police and fire members are eligible after reaching age
50. Tier 1 general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age
58 with fewer than 30 years of service. Police and fire member benefits are reduced if
retirement occurs prior to age 55 with fewer than 25 years of service. Tier 2 members are
eligible for full benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is
closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a
lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and
interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer
funds equal to the account balance, provided one or more of the following contributions
are met:

= member was employed by PERS employer at the time of death,

= member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered employment,

= member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered

job, or
= member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time
of death.

Disability Benefits. A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes
disabled from other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability
benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member
(including PERS judge members) for disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-
covered service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is
computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) when determining the monthly
benefit.
Benefit Changes After Retirement. Members may choose to continue participation in
their variable account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due
to changes in the fair value of the underlying global equity investments of that account.
Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living
changes (COLA). The COLA is capped at 2.0 percent.

b. OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB). The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit Pension Program
provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29, 2003.

Pension Benefits. This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer
contributions. Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain
normal retirement age:

Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final
average salary. Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53
with 25 years of retirement credit. To be classified as a police and fire member, the
individual must have been employed continuously as a police and fire member for at least
five years immediately preceding retirement.

General service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final
average salary. Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58
with 30 years of retirement credit.

A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates:
the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the
date the member reaches normal retirement age, and, if the pension program is
terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.
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ii. Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person
who is constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives
for life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased
member. The surviving spouse may elect to delay payment of the death benefit, but
payment must commence no later than December 31 of the calendar year in which the
member would have reached 70% years.

iii. Disability Benefits. A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits
before the member becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-
related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary
determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability occurred.

Contributions — PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates. These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to
accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The funding policy applies to the PERS Defined
Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans. Employer contribution rates during the period
were based on the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation, which became effective July 1, 2021. The state
of Oregon and certain schools, community colleges, and political subdivision have made unfunded
actuarial liability payments and their rates have been reduced. Employer contributions for the year ended
June 30, 2022 were $2,393,781, excluding amounts to fund employer specific liabilities. In addition,
approximately $4,037,457 in employee contributions were paid or picked up by the District in fiscal 2022
and $10,193,912 was charged for the year ended June 30, 2022 to pay for pension bond payments as they
become due. At June 30, 2022, the District reported a net pension liability of $64,481,136 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021,
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation dated December 31, 2019. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the Districts’ long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. As of the measurement date of June
30, 2021 and 2020, the Districts’ proportion was .539 percent and .541 percent, respectively. Pension
expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $5,178,823.

The rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 2022 were:
(1) Tier 1/Tier 2-5.07%
(2) OPSRP general services — 1.96%

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected & actual experience S 6,035,856 S -
Changes in assumptions 16,141,570 169,699
Net difference between projected and actual 47,734,886
earnings on pension plan investments - -
Net changes in proportionate share 1,704,833 2,475,799
Differences between contributions 2,470,471
and proportionate share of contributions - -
Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals (below) 23,882,259 52,850,855
Contributions subsequent to measuring date 108,616,856 -
Deferred outflow (inflow) of resources S 132,499,115 S 52,850,855
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$106,223,075 was remitted to PERS before fiscal year end when the District issued pension bonds and is
included in deferred outflows in the Statement of Net position but is part of contributions subsequent to
the measure date listed above. The remainder of contributions subsequent to the measurement date of
$2,393,781 will be included as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2023.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount

2023 S (5,620,159)
2024 (6,016,962)
2025 (7,099,677)
2026 (11,641,836)
2027 1,410,038
Thereafter -

Total $ (28,968,596)

All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon PERS
system-wide GASB 68 reporting summary dated February 25, 2022. Oregon PERS produces an
independently audited ACFR which can be found at:
https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2021-ACFR.pdf

Actuarial Valuations — The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023, were
set using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS
Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount
for normal cost (estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by employees during the current
service year), (2) an amount for the amortization unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being
amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial liabilities being amortized over 20 years.

For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an
employer rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance
benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an actuarially determined amount
for funding a disability benefit component, and (c) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial
accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued
liabilities being amortized over 16 years.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation date

December31, 2019

Experience Study Report

2018, Published July 24,2019

Actuarial cost method

Entry Age Normal

Amortization method

Level percentage of payroll

Asset valuation method

Market value of assets

Inflation rate

2.40 percent (reduced from 2.50 percent

Investment rate of return

6.90 percent (reduced from 7.20 percent

Discount rate

Projected salary increase

)
( )
6.90 percent (reduced from 7.20 percent)
3.40 percent (reduced from 3.50 percent)

Cost of Living Adjustment

Blend of 2% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%/0.15%) in accordance with Moro
decision; blend based on service

Mortality

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:

Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data
Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.
Active members: Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social
Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the
valuation. Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree, sex distinct, generational
with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs
as described in the valuation.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The method
and assumptions shown are based on the 2018 Experience Study which is reviewed for the four-year
period ending December 31, 2019.

Assumed Asset Allocation:

Asset Class/Strategy Low Range High Range OICTarget
Debt Securities 15.0% 25.0% 20.0%
Public Equity 27.5% 37.5% 32.5%
Real Estate 9.5% 15.5% 12.5%
Private Equity 14.0% 21.0% 17.5%
Alternatives Portfolio 7.5% 17.5% 15.0%
Opportunity Portfolio 0.0% 5.0% 0.0%
Risk Parity 0.0% 2.5% 2.5%
Total 100.0%

(Source: June 30, 2021 PERS ACFR; p. 104)
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return:

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in
June 2021 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market
assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows
Milliman’s assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on
the OIC long-term target asset allocation. The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the
target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent
set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions
are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic
model.

Valuation Date December 31,2019

Experience Study Report 2018, Published July 24,2019

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Inflation rate 2.40 percent (reduced from 2.50 percent)
Investment rate of return 6.90 percent (reduced from 7.20 percent)
Discount rate 6.90 percent (reduced from 7.20 percent)
Projected salary increase 3.40 percent (reduced from 3.50 percent)
Retiree healthcare participation Healthy retirees: 32%; Disabled retirees: 20%
Mortality Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:

Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security
Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the
valuation. Active members: Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with
Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as
described in the valuation. Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree, sex
distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category

adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.

(Source: June 30, 2021 PERS ACFR; p. 74)

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90 percent for the
Defined Benefit Pension Plan, a reduction approved by the Board from 7.20 percent in the prior fiscal year.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the
plan members and those of the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as
actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit
Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate
—the following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.90 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower (5.90 percent) or one percent
higher (7.90 percent) than the current rate.
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1% Decrease (5.9%) Discount Rate (6.9%) 1% Increase (7.9%)

Proportionate share
of the net pension
liability S 126,625,527 S 64,481,136 S 12,488,837

Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date

As described above, GASB 67 and GASB 68 require the Total Pension Liability to be determined based on
the benefit terms in effect at the Measurement Date. Any changes to benefit terms that occurs after that
date are reflected in amounts reported for the subsequent Measurement Date. However, Paragraph 80f
of GASB 68 requires employers to briefly describe any changes between the Measurement Date and the
employer’s reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the employer’s share of the
collective Net Pension Liability, along with an estimate of the resulting change, if available.

The District issued pension bonds in 2021-22 and sent a lump sum payment to PERS of $106,223,075.
Based on projected earnings of 7.2% through fiscal year 2023 and 6.9% thereafter, and taking into account
the existing side account balance at September 1, 2021 of $36.5 million, the payment to PERS was
considered a payoff of the unfunded actuarial liability as of September 1, 2021.

Deferred Compensation Plan

A deferred compensation plan is available to employees wherein they may execute an individual
agreement with the District for amounts earned by them to not be paid until a future date when certain
circumstances are met. These circumstances are: termination by reason of resignation, death, disability,
or retirement; unforeseeable emergency; or by requesting a de minimis distribution from inactive
accounts valued less than $5,000. Payment to the employee will be made over a period not to exceed 15
years. The deferred compensation plan is one which is authorized under IRC Section 457 and has been
approved in its specifics by a private ruling from the Internal Revenue Service. The assets of the plan are
held by the administrator for the sole benefit of the plan participants and are not considered assets or
liabilities of the District.

OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)

Plan Description:

Employees of the Springfield School District are provided with pensions through OPERS. All the benefits
of OPERS are established by the Oregon legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters
238 and 238A. Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after
August 29, 2003. Chapter 238A created the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which consists
of the Defined Benefit Pension Program and the Individual Account Program (IAP). Membership includes
public employees hired on or after August 29, 2003. PERS members retain their existing defined benefit
plan accounts, but member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP account. OPSRP is part of
OPERS, and is administered by the OPERS Board.
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Pension Benefits:

Participants in OPERS defined benefit pension plans also participate in their defined contribution plan. An
IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover
account was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the
member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours
of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date
the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies.
Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee account,
rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-
, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 minimum
distribution limit.

Death Benefits:

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account
balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired
member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining
installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment.

Contributions:

As part of a negotiated settlement, the District pays six (6) percent of covered payroll on behalf of regular
employees. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District contributed $4,037,457 on behalf of employees.
Effective July 1, 2020, currently employed Tier 1/Tier 2 and OPSRP members earning $2,500 or more per
month (increased to $2,535 per month on January 1, 2021) will have a portion of their 6 percent monthly
IAP contributions redirected to an Employee Pension Stability Account. The Employee Pension Stability
Account will be used to pay part of the member’s future benefit. Of the 6 percent monthly IAP
contribution, Tier 1/Tier 2 will have 2.5 percent redirected to the Employee Pension Stability Account and
OPSRP will have 0.75 percent redirected to the Employee Pension Stability Account, with the remaining
going to the member’s existing IAP account. Members may voluntarily choose to make additional after-
tax contributions into their IAP account to make a full 6 percent contribution to the IAP.

Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available online, or
by contacting PERS at the following address: PO Box 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-3700.

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx
Deferred Compensation Plan

A deferred compensation plan is available to employees wherein they may execute an individual
agreement with the District for amounts earned by them to not be paid until a future date when certain
circumstances are met. These circumstances are: termination by reason of resignation, death, disability,
or retirement; unforeseeable emergency; or by requesting a de minimis distribution from inactive
accounts valued less than $5,000. Payment to the employee will be made over a period not to exceed 15
years. The deferred compensation plan is one which is authorized under IRC Section 457 and has been
approved in its specifics by a private ruling from the Internal Revenue Service. The assets of the plan are
held by the administrator for the sole benefit of the plan participants and are not considered assets or
liabilities of the District.
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OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)

Plan Description:

Employees of the District are provided with pensions through OPERS. All the benefits of OPERS are
established by the Oregon legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A.
Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
Chapter 238A created the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which consists of the Defined
Benefit Pension Program and the Individual Account Program (IAP). Membership includes public
employees hired on or after August 29, 2003. PERS members retain their existing defined benefit plan
accounts, but member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP account. OPSRP is part of
OPERS, and is administered by the OPERS Board.

Pension Benefits:

Participants in OPERS defined benefit pension plans also participate in their defined contribution plan. An
IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover
account was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the
member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours
of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date
the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies.
Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee account,
rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a
5-,10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 minimum
distribution limit.

Death Benefits:

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account
balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired
member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining
installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment.

Contributions:
Employees of the District pay six (6) percent of their covered payroll. The District did not make any

optional contributions to member IAP accounts for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available online, or
by contacting PERS at the following address: PO Box 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-3700.

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx
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Summary of Pension obligations

Total Pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2022

Pension Expense

Voluntary Early RetirementPlan S 37,894
PERS 5,178,823
Total pension expense S 5,216,717

Deferred Compensation Plan

A deferred compensation plan is available to employees wherein they may execute an individual
agreement with the District for amounts earned by them to not be paid until a future date when certain
circumstances are met. The deferred compensation plan is one which is authorized under IRC Section 457
and has been approved in its specifics by a private ruling from the Internal Revenue Service. The assets of
the plan are held by the administrator for the sole benefit of the plan participants and are not considered
assets or liabilities of the District.

OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)

Plan Description:

Employees of the District are provided with pensions through OPERS. All the benefits of OPERS are
established by the Oregon legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A.
Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
Chapter 238A created the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which consists of the Defined
Benefit Pension Program and the Individual Account Program (IAP). Membership includes public
employees hired on or after August 29, 2003. PERS members retain their existing defined benefit plan
accounts, but member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP account. OPSRP is part of
OPERS, and is administered by the OPERS Board.

Pension Benefits:

Participants in OPERS defined benefit pension plans also participate in their defined contribution plan. An
IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover
account was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the
member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours
of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date
the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies.
Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee account,
rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-
, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 minimum
distribution limit.

Death Benefits:

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account
balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired
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member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining
installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment.

Contributions:

As part of a negotiated settlement, The District pays six (6) percent of covered payroll on behalf of the

employees. The District contributed $4,037,457 on behalf of employees for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available online, or
by contacting PERS at the following address: PO Box 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-3700.

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Voluntary Early Retirement

Plan Description

The District’s collective bargaining agreements with teachers and administrators include early retirement
provisions for employees whose employment with the District began prior to July 1, 1994. Additional
prerequisites to receive this benefit include ten consecutive full-time years employment with the District
and retirement under PERS. The program, available to teachers and administrators, provides two types
of benefits; a stipend benefit and an insurance benefit. AtJune 30,2022, there were 30 active participants
and no District employee who is potentially eligible for the benefit in the future. Calculations are based
on the pension benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each
valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
Actuarial valuations for pension plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. Actuarial calculations of the Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan reflect a long-
term perspective. All assets accumulated to pay benefits may legally be used to pay for pension or medical
benefits. Therefore, the VER plan is considered a single pension plan. The District does not issue a stand-
alone report for this plan.

Explicit Medical Benefits

The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan. The Voluntary Early
Retirement Plan includes negotiated health insurance coverage payable until age sixty-five (65). This
portion of the Plan is subject to GASB Statements 74 and 75 related to Other Post-Employment Benefits
(OPEB)

Significant Accounting Policies

The assets of the fund were placed in an irrevocable trust during the year ended June 30, 2003.
Expenditures are recorded in the Voluntary Early Retirement Trust Fund as the incentive payments and
related insurance premiums are paid.
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Funding Policy

There is no obligation on the part of the District to fund these benefits in advance. The District is paying
the obligation as it is due with an assessment to the general fund. The fund balance in the Early
Retirement Trust Fund was $701,466 at June 30, 2022.

Net OPEB Liability

The District’s net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL) was measured as of June 30, 2022 using
an actuarial valuation date of July 1, 2021, and the total other post-employment benefit liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The District engaged an actuary to perform a valuation as of July 1, 2021 using the Entry age normal, level
percent of salary Actuarial Cost Method. The asset valuation method used was market value and the
amortization method used was 1 year, closed level S.

The total other post-employment benefit liability were determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Amortization growth rate N/A
Discount rate 2.25%
General inflation 2.00%
Annual premium increase rate 2021-22 6.50%

Decreasing .1% per year until 2041 2041+ 4.50%

Out of pocket rate increases 3.0%

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers table, separate Employee/Healthy Annuitant, sex
distinct, projected generationally. Mortality rate for active male participants are 125% of the above rates,
and for active female participants are 100% of the published rates. Mortality rates for beneficiaries were
based on Pub-2010 General Employees table, Healthy Annuitant, sex distinct, generational, set back 12
months for males, no set back for females. Improvement scale was Unisex Social Security Data Scale (60
year average), with data through 2017.

Turnover rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS
and vary by years of service.

Disability rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS
and vary by employee age.

Retirement rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS
and vary by age and years of service. 100% of future VER retirees are assumed to elect medical coverage
and 70% of those retirees are assumed to cover a spouse, as well. Current and future retirees are
assumed to remain enrolled in the plans in which they are currently enrolled.
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The discount rate used to measure the total pension and total other post-employment benefit liabilities
was 3.5%, based on all years discounted at the municipal bond rate.

Change in Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Liability (NOL)

Pl
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Balances at June 30, 2021

Service Cost

Interest

Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected & actual experiences
Changes of assumptions or other input
Contributions - Employer

Contributions - Employee

Net investment income
Benefit payments

. Administrative expense

. Net Changes
. Balances atJune 30, 2022

Increase (Decrease)

Net OPEB
Total OPEB  Fiduciary Net Liability (a)-
Liability (a) Position (b) (b)
$ 1,093,798 S 446,056 647,742
1,923 - 1,923
20,156 - 20,156
94,270 - 94,270
(23,585) - (23,585)
- 608,717 (608,717)
- 4,558 (4,558)
(399,803) (399,803) -
- (6,750) 6,750
(307,039) 206,722 (513,761)
S 786,759 $ 652,778 $ 133,981

Sensitivity of the Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Liability to changes in the discount and trend rates

The following presents the net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL) of the District, calculated
using the discount rate of 3.50 percent, as well as what the District’s NOL would be if it was calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50
percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease (2.50%) (3.50%) 1% Increase (4.50%)
1. Total OPEB Liability S 807,879 S 786,759 S 766,684
2. Fiduciary Net Position 652,778 652,778 652,778
3. Net OPEB Liability S 155,101 S 133981 S 113,906

Current Discount Rate

The following presents the net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL) of the District, calculated
using the trend rate of 6.5 percent graded down to 4.5 percent, as well as what the District’s NOL would
be if it was calculated using a trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.5 percent graded down to
3.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.5 percent graded down to 5.5%) than the current rate:
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1% Decrease Current Trend Rate 1% Increase (7.5%
(5.5% graded (6.5% graded graded down to

down to 3.5%) down to 4.5%) 5.5%)
1. Total OPEB Liability S 763,397 S 786,759 S 810,914
2. Fiduciary Net Position 652,778 652,778 652,778
3. Net OPEB Liability S 110619 S 133981 S 158,136

Other Post-employment Benefits expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Other Post-employment Benefits

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized Other Post-employment Benefit expense of
$98,384. At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources related to Other Post-
employment benefits from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Gain/Loss Resources Resources

1. Differences between expected and

actual experience S - S -
2. Changes in assumptions or other input - -
3. Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on investments 18,243 -

4. Total S 18,243 S -

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to Other Post-
employment benefits will be recognized in Other Post-employment benefit expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2023 S 8,532
2024 5,477
2025 2,624
2026 1,610
2027 -
Thereafter -
Total S 18,243

Post-employment Health Insurance Subsidy

Plan Description

The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan per the requirements of
collective bargaining agreements. The plan provides postretirement healthcare benefits for eligible
retirees and their dependents through the District’s group health insurance plans. The plan covers both
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active and retired participants. As of the actuarial valuation date, there were 1,407 active participants
and 67 retirees in the plan. The District’s post-retirement plan was established in accordance with Oregon
Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303 which states, in part, that for the purposes of establishing healthcare
premiums, the calculated rate must be based on the cost of all plan members, including both active
employees and retirees. Because claim costs are generally higher for retiree groups than for active
employees, the premium amount does not represent the full cost of coverage for retirees. The resulting
additional cost, or implicit subsidy, is required to be valued under GASB Statement 75 related to Other
Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB). Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms
of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the
future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared to
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan
reflect a long-term perspective.

Funding Policy

The District has not established a trust fund to finance the cost of Post-employment Health Care Benefits
related to implicit rate subsidies. Premiums are paid by retirees based on the rates established for active
employees. Additional costs related to an implicit subsidy are paid by the District on a pay-as-you go basis
in all funds. There is no obligation on the part of the District to fund these benefits in advance.

Net Other Post-employment benefit Liability

The net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL) was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total
other post-employment benefit liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The District engaged an actuary to perform a valuation as of July 1, 2021 using the Entry age normal, level
percent of salary Actuarial Cost Method. The asset valuation method used was market value and the
amortization method used was 30 year, open level S.

The total other post-employment benefit liability was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Amortization growth rate N/A
Discount rate 2.25%
General inflation 2.00%
Annual premium increase rate 2021-22 6.50%
Decreasing .1% per year until 2038-39 2041+ 4.50%
Out of pocket rate increases 3.00%

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers table, separate Employee/Healthy Annuitant, sex
distinct, projected generationally. Mortality rates for active male participants are 125% of the above
rates, and for active female participants are 100% of the published rates. Mortality rates for beneficiaries
were based on Pub-2010 General Employees table, Healthy Annuitant, sex distinct, generational, set back
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12 months for males, no set back for females. Improvement scale was Unisex Social Security Data Scale
(60 year average), with data through 2017.

Disability rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS
and vary by employee age.

Retirement rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS
and vary by age and years of service. 70% of future retirees are assumed to remain enrolled at retirement
until Medicare eligibility and 70% of those retirees are assumed to cover a spouse, as well. Current and
future retirees are assumed to remain enrolled in the plans in which they are currently enrolled. There
was an assumption of no impact of dependent children on the implicit subsidy.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension and total other post-employment benefit liabilities
was 3.50%, based on all years discounted at the municipal bond rate.

Changes in the Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB
Liability Fiduciary Net Net OPEB Liability
(a) Position (b) (a)-(b)

1. Balances atJune 30, 2021 S 7,305,274 $ - S 7,305,274
2. Service Cost 544,717 - 544,717
3. Interest 173,216 - 173,216
4. Changes of benefit terms - - -
5. Differences between expected and actual experiences (1,080,423) - (1,080,423)
6. Changes of assumptions or other input (415,866) - (415,866)
7. Contributions - Employer - 303,024 (303,024)
8. Contributions - Employee - - -
9. Netinvestmentincome - - -
10. Benefit payments (303,024) (303,024) -
11. Administrative expense - - -
12. NetChanges (1,081,380) - (1,081,380)
13. Balances atJune 30, 2022 S 6,223,894 S - S 6,223,894
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Sensitivity of the Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Liability to changes in the discount and trend rates

The following presents the net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL) of the District, calculated
using the discount rate of 3.50 percent, as well as what the District’s NOL would be if it was calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50
percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)
1. Total OPEB Liability S 6,709,720 S 6,223,894 S 5,770,173
2. Fiduciary Net Position - - -
3. Net OPEB Liability S 6,709,720 S 6,223,894 S 5,770,173

The following presents the net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL) of the District, calculated
using the trend rate of 6.5 percent graded down to 4.5 percent, as well as what the District’s NOL would
be if it was calculated using a trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.5 percent graded down to 3.5
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.5 percent graded down to 5.5 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Trend Rate 1% Increase (7.5%

(5.5% graded (6.5% graded graded down to
down to 3.5%) down to 4.5%) 5.5%)
1. Total OPEB Liability S 5,512,900 S 6,223,894 S 7,064,338
2. Fiduciary Net Position - - -
3. Net OPEB Liability S 5,512,900 S 6,223,894 S 7,064,338

Other Post-employment benefits Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Other Post-employment Benefits

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized Other Post-employment Benefit expense of
(515,319). At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources related to Other Post-
employment benefits from the following sources:

Gain/Loss Deferred Outflows of Resources Deferred Inflows of Resources
1. Differences between expected and

actual experience S 38,331 S 1,447,130
2. Changes in assumptions or other input 139,581 1,252,385

3. Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on investments - -

4. Total S 177912 $ 2,699,515
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to Other Post-
employment benefits will be recognized in Other Post-employment benefit expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2023 S (733,252)
2024 (733,251)
2025 (304,451)
2026 (323,135)
2027 (213,755)
Thereafter (213,759)
Total $ (2,521,603)

Retirement Health Insurance Account

Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan - (RHIA)

Plan Description:

As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) the District contributes to the
Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible employees. RHIA is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit plan administered by OPERS. RHIA pays
a monthly contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health insurance premiums of eligible
retirees. Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420 established this trust fund. Authority to establish and
amend the benefit provisions of RHIA reside with the Oregon Legislature. The plan is closed to new
entrants after January 1, 2004. OPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Oregon
Public Employees Retirement System, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700.

Funding Policy:

Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution requirements of the plan
members and the participating employers were established and may be amended only by the Oregon
Legislature. ORS require that an amount equal to $60 or the total monthly cost of Medicare companion
health insurance premiums coverage, whichever is less, shall be paid from the Retirement Health
Insurance Account established by the employer, and any monthly cost in excess of $60 shall be paid by
the eligible retired member in the manner provided in ORS 238.410. To be eligible to receive this monthly
payment toward the premium cost the member must: (1) have eight years or more of qualifying service
in OPERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the member had eight years or
more of creditable service in OPERS, (2) receive both Medicare Parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in
an OPERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or dependent of a deceased OPERS retiree who was
eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement
benefit or allowance from OPERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and the member retired
before May 1, 1991.

Participating Districts are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each year by
OPERS, and the District currently contributes 0.05% of annual covered OPERF payroll and 0% of OPSRP
payroll under a contractual requirement in effect until June 30, 2022. Consistent with GASB Statement 75,
the OPERS Board of Trustees sets the employer contribution rates as a measure of the proportionate
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relationship of the employer to all employers consistent with the manner in which contributions to the
OPEB plan are determined. The basis for the employer’s portion is determined by comparing the
employer’s actual, legally required contributions made during the fiscal year to the plan with the total
actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers. The District’s contributions to RHIA for the
years ended June 30, 2020, 2021 and 2022 were $.066 million, $.015 million and $.017 million,
respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.

At June 30, 2022, the District reported a net OPEB liability/(asset) of ($1,970,880) for its proportionate
share of the net OPEB liability/(asset). The OPEB liability/(asset) was measured as of June 30, 2021, and
the total OPEB liability/(asset) used to calculate the net OPEB liability/(asset) was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2019. Consistent with GASB Statement No. 75, paragraph 59(a),
the District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability/(asset) is determined by comparing the employer’s
actual, legally required contributions made during the fiscal year to the Plan with the total actual
contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers. As of the measurement date of June 30, 2021 and
2020, the District’s proportion was .57 percent and .92 percent, respectively. OPEB expense for the year
ended June 30, 2022 was $268,586.

Components of OPEB Expense/(Income):

Employer's proportionate share of collective system OPEB Expense/(Income) S (322,333)

Net amortization of employer-specific deferred amounts from: 53,747
- Changes in proportionate share (per paragraph 64 of GASB 75) -

- Differences between employer contributions and employer's proportionate
share of system contributions (per paragraph 65 of GASB 75) -

Employer's Total OPEB Expense/(Income) S (268,586)

Components of Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow

of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected & actual experience S - S 54,833
Changes in assumptions 38,779 29,319
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 468,385
Net changes in proportionate share 427,112 177,844
Differences between contributions
and proportionate share of contributions - -
Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals (below) 465,891 730,381
Contributions subsequent to measuring date 17,008 -
Deferred outflow (inflow) of resources S 482,899 S 730,381

The amount of Contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction of
the net OPEB liability/(asset) in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB

expense as follows:

Year ending June 30,

Amount

2023
2024
2025
2026

2027
Thereafter

Total

$ (90,992)
81,391

(106,933)
(147,957)

(264,491)

All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon
PERS Retirement Health Insurance Account Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Other Postemployment

Benefit (OPEB) Plan Schedul
for the Year Ended June 30,

es of Employer Allocations and OPEB Amounts by Employer report, as of and
2021. That independently audited report was dated February 25, 2022 and

can be found at: https://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Documents/GASB/2022/0regon%20PERS%20-

%20GASB%2075%20RHIA%20Employer%20Schedules%20-%20FYE%2006-30-2021.pdf

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation Date

December 31,2019

Experience Study Report

2018, Published July 24,2019

Actuarial cost method

Entry Age Normal

Inflation rate

2.40 percent (reduced from 2.50 percent)

Investment rate of return

6.90 percent (reduced from 7.20 percent)

Discount rate

6.90 percent (reduced from 7.20 percent)

Projected salary increase

3.40 percent (reduced from 3.50 percent)

Retiree healthcare participation

Healthy retirees: 32%; Disabled retirees: 20%

Mortality

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:

Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data
Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.
Active members: Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social
Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the
valuation. Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree, sex distinct, generational with
Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as
described in the valuation.
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Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The method
and assumptions shown are based on the 2018 Experience Study which is reviewed for the four-year
period ending December 31, 2019.

Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of the measurement date of June 30, 2021
was 6.90 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially
determined. Based on those assumptions, the RHIA plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments for the RHIA plan was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return:

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in
June 2021 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market
assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows
Milliman’s assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on
the OIC long-term target asset allocation. The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the
target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent
set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions
are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic
model.

Target Compound Annual
Asset Class Allocation (Geometric) Return
Global Equity 30.62% 5.85%
Private Equity 25.50% 7.71%
Core Fixed Income 23.75% 2.73%
Real Estate 12.25% 5.66%
Master Limited Partnerships 0.75% 5.71%
Infrastructure 1.50% 6.26%
Commodities 0.63% 3.10%
Hedge Fund of Funds - Multistrategy 1.25% 5.11%
Hedge Fund Equity - Hedge 0.63% 5.31%
Hedge Fund - Macro 5.62% 5.06%
US Cash -2.50% 1.76%
Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.40%

(Source: June 30, 2021 PERS ACFR; p. 74)
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Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) to changes in the discount
rate — The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) calculated
using the discount rate of 6.90 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower (5.90
percent) or one percent higher (7.90 percent) than the current rate.

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(5.90%) (6.90%) (7.90%)

Proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability (asset) S (1,742,954) S (1,970,880) S (2,165,583)

Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date

There are no changes subsequent to the June 30, 2021 Measurement Date that meet this requirement
and thus would require a brief description under the GASB standard.

Summary of Other Post Employment obligations

Total Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation expense for the year ended June 30, 2021

OPEB Expense

Voluntary Early Retirement Plan S 98,384
Post-employment Health Insurance Subsidy (15,319)
PERS Retirement Health Insurance Account (268,586)
Total OPEB expense S (185,521)
RISK MANAGEMENT

Insurance coverage for the year ended June 30, 2022, was the same or greater than in prior years. For
the years ended June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020, no losses were incurred which were greater than the
District’s coverage.

Property and Liability

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the District purchases and carries commercial
insurance, subject to customary deductibles and total coverage limits recommended by the District’s
insurance agent of record.

Workers’ Compensation

Workers’ Compensation insurance is purchased from a commercial carrier. Premiums are determined
based on payroll paid at various employment classification rates. Loss prevention services are available
from the carrier and the District has no potential liability beyond the premiums paid.
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Medical and Dental Self-Insurance

Beginning in October of 2013, the District implemented a self-insured health benefit program that
provides medical and dental insurance coverage to all eligible employees and their dependents as well as
non-Medicare eligible retirees and their dependents. In 2017-18 the District added its vision coverage to
the self-insured program. The District established an internal service fund to account for the program.
The District has established a self-insurance reserve to pay medical and dental claims up to the self-
insurance retention limit of $250,000 per covered individual. Claims in excess of $250,000 are covered by
a specific stop-loss policy.

Accrued insurance claims at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

June 30,2022

Accrued insurance claims, July 1, 2021 S 1,347,763
Incurred claims, including an estimate of claims incurred but not

reported 19,831,512
Claim payments (19,672,839)
Accrued insurance claims, June 30,2022 S 1,506,436
TAX ABATEMENTS

As of June 30, 2022, Springfield School District provides tax abatements through the Enterprise Zone
program, the Low Income Rental Housing Property Tax Exemption program and the Nonprofit Corp
Housing Assistance Program.

The Enterprise Zone program allows industrial firms that will be making a substantial new capital
investment a waiver of 100% of the amount of real property taxes attributable to the new investment for
a 5-year period after completion. Land or existing machinery or equipment is not tax exempt; therefore,
there is no loss of current property tax levies to local taxing jurisdiction. The Low Income Rental Housing
Property Tax Exemption program was established to encourage construction of housing or conversion of
building to housing for rent by persons with low incomes. The program enables the City of Springfield to
grant 20-year property tax exemptions to qualified low income rental housing properties constructed
after April 5, 1993. The be eligible for property tax exemption, the property must comply with Sections
3.504 and 3.056 of the Springfield Municipal Code.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the District abated property taxes totaling $836,662 under the

Oregon Enterprise Zone program and $2,196 under the Low Income Rental Housing Property Tax
Exemption program.

87



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT 19

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2022

CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The District has the following construction commitments outstanding as of June 30, 2022.

Commitment

Project Spent to Date .
Remaining
Covered outdoor structure - Walterville S 177,578 S 1,170
Hamlin Middle School field renovation 2,683,364 127,556
Hamlin Middle School restroom facility 99,509 155,319
HVAC upgrades - multiple schools 1,537,873 15,671,855
Maintenance and transportation meeting space 8,000 42,000
Safety gates - Springfield High 7,645 100
Security cameras - Hamlin Middle 118,474 30,273
Walterville Restoration 1,800,915 223,428
Total S 6,433,358 S 16,251,701

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The District is involved in various claims and legal matters relating to its operations which have all been
tended to, and are either being adjusted by the District’s liability carrier, or are being defended by
attorneys retained by the District’s liability carrier. The status of these matters is uncertain at this time.

Any potential loss is also uncertain.

The District had no significant encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2022.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accrues earned but unused vacation pay in the government-wide financial statements. The
District does not allow the carryover of unused vacation leave beyond one year and limits the number of

vacation days that can be carried forward.

Accrued Vacation
7-1-21 Earned Paid or Unused

Accrued Vacation

6-30-22

S 724,404 $1,042,166 S (1,067,370) S

699,200
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VER PLAN

SCHEDULE OF CHANGE IN THE DISTRICT'S NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
STIPEND BENEFIT

2022 2021
Total Pension Liability - beginning S 68,668 S 123,548
Service Cost 743 721
Interest 966 2,138
Changes of benefit terms - -
Differences between expected and actual experience 36,765 -
Changes of assumptions or other input (788) -
Benefit payments (52,996) (57,739)
Net change in total pension liability (15,310) (54,880)
Total Pension Liability - end of year S 53,358 S 68,668
Fiduciary net Position - beginning S 59,790 $ 49,060
Contributions - Employer 41,283 68,065
Contributions - Employee - -
Net investment income 611 497
Benefit payments (52,996) (57,739)
Administrative expense - (93)
Net change in fiduciary net position (11,102) 10,730
Fiduciary net Position - end of year S 48,688 S 59,790
Net pension liability - end of year S 4,670 S 8,878
Fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 91.25% 87.07%
Covered payroll S - S 67,862
Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll N/A 13.08%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years
for which the required supplementary information is available.
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
172,651 $ 239,125 $ 189,290 $ 352,463 $512,139
598 2,114 2,114 5,530 5,530
7,304 7,567 10,628 8,060 12,777
14,056 - 159,966 - -
(198) 639 (9,676) (3,673) -
(70,863) (76,794) (113,197) (173,090) (177,983)
(49,103) (66,474) 49,835 (163,173) (159,676)
123,548 ¢ 172,651 $ 239,125 $ 189,290 $ 352,463
61,698 $ 56,239 $ 39,135 $ 40,733 $ 28,261
58,225 82,253 130,301 171,492 190,455
(70,863) (76,794) (113,197) (173,090) (177,983)
(12,638) 5,459 17,104 (1,598) 12,472
49,060 $ 61,698 S 56,239 $ 39,135 $ 40,733
74,488 $ 110,953 $ 182,886 S 150,155 $ 311,730
39.71% 35.74% 23.52% 20.67%  11.56%
65859 $ 132,948 $ 245264 $ 442,995 $ 804,884
113.10% 83.46% 74.57% 33.90%  38.73%
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
VER PLAN

SCHEDULE OF CHANGE IN THE DISTRICT'S NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

EXPLICIT MEDICAL BENEFIT

2022 2021
Total OPEB Liability - beginning S 1,093,798 $ 1,598,053
Service Cost 1,923 1,867
Interest 20,156 29,946
Changes of benefit terms - -
Differences between expected and actual experience 94,270 -
Changes of assumptions or other input (23,585) -
Benefit payments (399,803) (536,068)
Net change in total OPEB liability (307,039) (504,255)
Total OPEB Liability - end of year S 786,759 S 1,093,798
Fiduciary net Position - beginning S 446,056 S 347,329
Contributions - Employer 608,717 631,935
Contributions - Employee - -
Net investment income 4,558 3,517
Benefit payments (399,803) (536,068)
Administrative expense - (657)
Net change in fiduciary net position 213,472 98,727
Fiduciary net Position - end of year S 659,528 S 446,056
Net OPEB liability - end of year S 127,231 S 647,742
Fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 83.83% 40.78%
Covered payroll S - S 67,862
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll N/A 954.50%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.

However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years

for which the required supplementary information is available.
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
$ 1,990,711 $ 2,599,688 $ 3,593,453 $ 4,565,447 $5,663,503
1,867 7,001 7,001 21,289 21,289
80,214 84,180 106,440 121,711 151,167
63,800 - (202,842) - -
59,978 16,637 (61,950) (76,904) -
(598,517) (716,795) (842,414)  (1,038,090) (1,270,512)
(392,658) (608,977) (993,765) (971,994) (1,098,056)

$ 1,598,053 $ 1,990,711 S

2,599,688 S 3,593,453 S 4,565,447

$ 460,571 $ 411,119 $ 289,584 $ 299,166 $ 217,383
491,775 767,747 969,699 1,028,508 1,359,545
(598,517) (716,795) (842,414)  (1,038,090) (1,270,512)

(6,500) (1,500) (5,750) - (7,250)
(113,242) 49,452 121,535 (9,582) 81,783

$ 347329 $ 460571 S 411,119 $ 289,584 $ 299,166

$ 1,250,724 $ 1,530,140 $ 2,188,569 $ 3,303,869 § 4,266,281
21.73% 23.14% 15.81% 8.06% 6.55%

$ 65859 $ 132,948 $ 245264 S 442,995 $ 804,884
1899.09%  1150.93% 892.33% 745.80%  530.05%
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

VER PLAN

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)

Contributions in Relation to the ADC

Contribution Deficiency/(Excess)

Covered-Employee Payroll

Contributions as a percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll

Notes to Schedule

Laibility valuation date for ADC

Key Method and Assumptions Used to Calculate ADC

Actuarial cost method
Asset valuation method

Amortization method
Discount rate
Amortization growth rate
Inflation

STIPEND BENEFIT

2022 2021
S 9,958 $ 39,243
41,283 68,065
S (31,325) S (28,822)
S - S 67,862
N/A 100.30%
2022 2021
July 1, 2019 July 1, 2019
2022 2021
Entry age normal Entry age normal
Market value Market value
1 year closed 2 year closed
Level $ Level $
2.25% 2.25%
N/A N/A
2.50% 2.50%

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years

for which the required supplementary information is available.
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

$ 40,222 $ 67,784 $ 56,045 $ 116,875 $ 135,872
58,225 82,253 130,301 171,492 190,455
S (18,003) S (14,469) S (74,256) S (54,617) S (54,583)
S 65,859 §$ 132,948 S 245,264 S 442,995 §$ 804,884
88.41% 61.87% 53.13% 38.71% 23.66%
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
July 1, 2017 July 1, 2017 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2013
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal
Market value Market value Market value Market value Market value
3 year closed 3 year closed 3 year closed 3 year closed 4 year closed
Level S Level S Level S Level S Level S
3.50% 3.75% 3.50% 3.00% 3.00%
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

VER PLAN

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

EXPLICIT MEDICAL BENEFIT

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)

Contributions in Relation to the ADC

Contribution Deficiency/(Excess)

Covered-Employee Payroll

Contributions as a percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll

Notes to Schedule

Valuation Date

Key Method and Assumptions Used to Calculate ADC
Actuarial cost method

Asset valuation method

Amortization method

Discount rate

Amortization growth rate
Inflation

2022 2021
S 672,403 S 648,455
608,717 631,935
S 63,686 S 16,520
S - S 67,862
N/A 931.21%
2022 2021
July 1, 2019 July 1, 2019
2022 2021
Entry age normal Entry age normal
Market value Market value
1 year closed 2 year closed
Level S Level S
2.25% 2.25%
N/A N/A
2.50% 2.50%

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years

for which the required supplementary information is available.
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

S 548,092 S 792,172 S 1,192,163 S 1,537,038 S 1,487,081
491,775 767,747 969,699 1,028,508 1,359,545
S 56,317 $ 24,425 § 222,464 S 508,530 S 127,536
S 65,859 §$ 132,948 S 245,264 S 442,995 §$ 804,884
746.71% 577.48% 395.37% 232.17% 168.91%
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
July 1, 2017 July 1, 2017 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2013
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal
Market value Market value Market value Market value Market value
3 year closed 3 year closed 3 year closed 3 year closed 4 year closed
Level S Level S Level S Level S Level S
3.50% 3.75% 3.50% 3.00% 3.00%
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY

SCHEDULE OF CHANGE IN THE DISTRICT'S NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

IMPLICIT MEDICAL BENEFIT

Total OPEB Liability - beginning

Service Cost

Interest

Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions or other input
Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB Liability - end of year
Fiduciary net Position - beginning

Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee
Net investment income

Benefit payments
Administrative expense

Net change in fiduciary net position
Fiduciary net Position - end of year

Net OPEB liability - end of year

Fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total OPEB liability

Covered-employee payroll

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll

2022 2021

$ 7,305,274 S 7,006,264

544,717 528,851
173,216 159,214
(1,080,423) -
(415,866) -
(303,024) (389,055)
(1,081,380) 299,010

$ 6,223,894 $ 7,305,274
S - S -

303,024 389,055

(303,024) (389,055)

S - S -

$ 6,223,894 S 7,305,274

0.00% 0.00%
$74,135,055 $ 69,247,379

8.40% 10.55%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years

for which the required supplementary information is available.

98



2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

S 7,472,028 S 7,130,388 S 9,961,602 $10,222,764 $ 10,056,188

513,448 445,112 432,148 565,034 565,034
288,273 266,349 259,332 304,305 299,689
(911,845) - 134,156 - -
146,179 130,783  (3,135,748) (406,966) -
(501,819) (500,604) (521,102) (723,535) (698,147)
(465,764) 341,640  (2,831,214) (261,162) 166,576

$ 7,006,264 $ 7,472,028 $ 7,130,388 $ 9,961,602 $10,222,764
S -5 -5 -5 -5 -

501,819 500,604 521,102 723,535 698,147

(501,819) (500,604) (521,102) (723,535) (698,147)

s - S - S - S - S -

$ 7,006,264 S 7,472,028 S 7,130,388 S 9,961,602 $10,222,764

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
$66,878,993 $64,910,532 $62,373,128 $59,446,608 $ 57,175,150

10.48% 11.51% 11.43% 16.76% 17.88%
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

IMPLICIT MEDICAL BENEFIT

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)

Contributions in Relation to the ADC

Contribution Deficiency/(Excess)

Covered-Employee Payroll

Contributions as a percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll

Notes to Schedule

Valuation Date

Key Method and Assumptions Used to Calculate ADC
Actuarial cost method

Asset valuation method

Amortization method

Discount rate

Amortization growth rate
Inflation

2022 2021
S 721,413 S 864,435
303,024 389,055
S 418,389 S 475,380

S 68,541,990 S 69,247,379

0.44% 0.56%
2022 2021
July 1, 2019 July 1, 2019
2022 2021
Entry age normal Entry age normal
Market value Market value
30 year open 30 year open
Level $ Level S
2.25% 2.25%
N/A N/A
2.50% 2.50%

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years

for which the required supplementary information is available.
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
S 807,713 S 721,762 S 830,322 S 951,077 S 927,247
501,819 500,604 521,102 723,535 698,147
S 305,894 S 221,158 S 309,220 S 227,542 S 229,100
S 64,171,026 S 60,649,196 S 57,123,624 S 55,505,489 S 52,605,953
0.78% 0.83% 0.91% 1.30% 1.33%
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
July 1, 2017 July 1, 2017 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2013
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Entry age normal

Entry age normal
Market value
30 year open

Level S
3.50%
3.00%
2.50%

Entry age normal
Market value
30 year open

Entry age normal
Market value
30 year open

Level $ Level $
3.75% 3.50%
3.00% 3.00%
2.50% 2.50%
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Entry age normal
Market value
30 year open

Level S
3.00%
3.00%
2.50%

Market value
30 year open
Level $
3.00%
3.00%
2.50%



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PERS PENSION LIABILITY

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

(a)

Employer's

(b)

Employer's

Plan fiduciary

proportion of proportionate (b/c) net position as a
the net share of the net NPLas a percentage of
Year Ended pension pension liability (c) percentage of the total

June 30, liability (NPL) (NPL) Covered payroll covered payroll pension liability
2014 0.58% S 29,606,099 S 47,151,444 62.8% 103.6%
2015 0.58%  (13,150,432) 48,907,548 -26.9% 91.9%
2016 0.58% 33,087,858 51,227,741 64.6% 80.5%
2017 0.58% 86,349,181 53,711,362 160.8% 83.1%
2018 0.56% 75,275,649 55,505,489 135.6% 82.1%
2019 0.57% 85,885,233 57,137,252 150.3% 80.2%
2020 0.52% 90,640,972 60,649,196 149.5% 75.8%
2021 0.54% 117,994,255 64,171,026 183.9% 87.6%

2022 54.00% 64,481,136 67,171,523 96.0% *

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions
in relation to
Statutorily  the statutorily = Contribution Contributions as
required required deficiency Employer's a percent of

Fiscal Year contribution  contribution (excess) covered payroll covered payroll
2014 $ 6,339,257 $ 6,339,257 S - S 48,907,548 12.96%
2015 6,391,591 6,391,591 - 51,227,741 12.48%
2016 4,904,646 4,904,646 - 53,711,362 9.13%
2017 4,987,862 4,987,862 - 55,505,489 8.99%
2018 7,786,894 7,786,894 - 57,137,252 13.63%
2019 7,845,494 7,845,494 - 60,649,196 12.94%
2020 11,040,415 11,040,415 - 64,171,026 17.20%
2021 11,393,292 11,393,292 - 67,171,523 16.96%
2022 2,393,781 2,393,781 - 69,898,771 3.42%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at 12/31 and rolled forward

to the measurement date.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years
for which the required supplementary information is available.

* Information not available at time of printing
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PERS OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT ASSET
Retiree Health Insurance Account

(b)

(a) Employer's Plan fiduciary
Employer's  proportionate (b/c) net position as a

proportion of share of the net NOA as a percentage of

Year Ended net OPEB OPEB asset (c) percentage of the total OPEB

June 30, Assets (NOA) (NoA) Covered payroll covered payroll Liability
2018 0.60% (251,096) 55,505,489 -0.5% 124.0%
2019 0.55% (614,139) 57,137,252 -1.1% 144.4%
2020 0.55% (1,070,978) 60,649,196 -1.8% 150.1%
2021 0.92% (1,879,149) 64,171,026 -2.9% 183.9%
2022 57.00% (1,970,880) 67,171,523 -2.9% *

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions

in relation to

Statutorily  the statutorily = Contribution Contributions as

required required deficiency Employer's a percent of
Fiscal Year contribution  contribution (excess) covered payroll covered payroll
2018 263,388 263,388 - 57,137,252 0.46%
2019 274,689 274,689 - 60,649,196 0.45%
2020 65,859 65,859 - 64,171,026 0.10%
2021 15,356 15,356 - 67,171,026 0.02%
2022 17,008 17,008 - 69,898,771 0.02%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at 12/31 and rolled forward
to the measurement date.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years

for which the required supplementary information is available.

* Information not available at time of printing
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
NONMAIJOR, PROPRIETARY, AND FIDUCIARY FUNDS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Student Investment Account (SIA)
Accounts for funds received as non-competitive grants from the State of Oregon as part of the Student

Success Act. The purpose of the funds are to meet students' mental and behavioral issues, increase
academic achievement, and reduce academic disparities for student groups that have historically
been underserved.

Nutrition Services Fund
Accounts for the school breakfast and lunch programs and after school at-risk program.

Co-Curricular Fund
Accounts for resources and expenditures associated with activities, athletics and other
after school enrichment programs.

Student Body Fund
Accounts for the activity of the various schools' student body activity funds.

Capital Projects Fund
Accounts for the resources and expenditures for improvements to the District facilities.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Printing and Publishing Fund
Accounts for printing provided to other departments of the District on a cost reimbursement basis.

Insurance Fund
Accounts for the District's self-insured medical, dental and vision benefit plans.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Voluntary Early Retirement Fund
Accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for payments to employees who receive early
retirement and post-employment health care benefits.

Custodial Fund
Accounts for college scholarship donations for which the District's role is purely custodial in nature.
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2022
Student
Investment Nutrition Co-Curricular Student
Account (SIA) Services Curricular Body
ASSETS
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents S 1,460,546 S 482,489 S 1,359,908 $ 328,895
Non-pooled cash and cash equivalents - 25,716 - 879,198
Grants, reimb, and accounts receivable - 1,014,456 - -
Interest Receivable - - - -
Inventories 194,269 - -
Lease Receivable - - - -
Total assets S 1,460,546 S 1,716,930 $ 1,359,908 S 1,208,093
LIABILITIES DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Due to other funds S - S - S - S -
Accounts payable 91,709 73,210 48,176 1,024
Deposit payable - - - -
Unearned revenue 1,073,605 - - -
Accrued payroll and benefits 295,232 47,838 67,321 -
Total liabilities 1,460,546 121,048 115,497 1,024
Deferred inflows of resources:
Lease - - - -
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable - 194,269 - -
Restricted - 1,401,613 - 1,207,069
Committed - - 1,244,411 -
Unassigned - - - -
Total fund balances - 1,595,882 1,244,411 1,207,069
Total liabilities, deferred inflow of
resources and fund balances S 1,460,546 $ 1,716,930 S 1,359,908 S 1,208,093
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Capital
Projects Total

$ 48559 $ 4,117,434

- 904,914
915,637 1,930,093
333 333

- 194,269
351,277 351,277

$ 1,752,843 $ 7,498,320

$ 614,759 S 614,759

333,347 547,466
50,000 50,000

- 1,073,605

3,846 414,237

1,001,952 2,700,067

345,422 345,422
5,855 200,124
899,117 3,507,799
1,244,411

(499,503) (499,503)

405,469 4,452,831

$ 1,752,843 $ 7,498,320
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Nutrition Co- Student
SIA Services Curricular Body
Revenues:
Local sources S - S 53,932 S 79,386 S 961,268
State sources 6,972,000 98,339 - -
Federal sources - 5,743,809 - -
Investment earnings - - - 2,271
Miscellaneous - 4,961 - 40,044
Total revenues 6,972,000 5,901,041 79,386 1,003,583
Expenditures:
Current expenditures:
Instruction 2,893,782 - 187,247 935,611
Support services 3,223,528 - - -
Community services 189,665 4,239,561 - -
Facilities and acquisition 19,310 - 20,178 -
Capital outlay 645,715 65,598 437,128 -
Total expenditures 6,972,000 4,305,159 644,553 935,611
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - 1,595,882 (565,167) 67,972
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds - - 1,500,000 -
Transfers to other funds
Transits - - - -
Proceeds from insurance recovery - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources - - 1,500,000 -
Net Change In Fund Balance - 1,595,882 934,833 67,972
Fund Balance, July 1, 2021 - - 309,578 1,139,097
Fund Balance, June 30, 2022 S - $ 1595882 S 1,244,411 S 1,207,069
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Capital
Projects Total

55,143 S 1,149,729

25,000 7,095,339
10,671 5,754,480
4,949 7,220
17,573 62,578
113,336 14,069,346

- 4,016,640

180,914 3,404,442

- 4,429,226

77,207 116,695
1,848,824 2,997,265
2,106,945 14,964,268
(1,993,609) (894,922)
- 1,500,000
1,899,117 1,899,117
1,899,117 3,399,117
(94,492) 2,504,195
499,961 1,948,636

405,469 S 4,452,831
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2022
Printing &
Publishing Insurance Total Internal
Services Fund Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents S - $ 2,465,712 S 2,465,712
Grants, reimbursements, and accounts receivable 15,982 - 15,982
Total current assets 15,982 2,465,712 2,481,694
Capital assets, net 83,873 2,917 86,790
Total Assets 99,855 2,468,629 2,568,484
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Due to other funds 4,014 - 4,014
Accounts payable 11,403 94,189 105,592
Interest payable 319 - 319
Accrued payroll and benefits 565 - 565
Accrued insurance claims - 1,506,436 1,506,436
Current portion of note payable 34,958 - 34,958
Total current liabilities 51,259 1,600,625 1,651,884
Noncurrent liabilities:
Lease payable due in more than one year - - -
Total noncurrent liabilities - - -
Total Liabilities 51,259 1,600,625 1,651,884
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 48,915 2,917 51,832
Unrestricted (319) 865,087 864,768
Total Net Position S 48,596 S 868,004 S 916,600
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Printing &
Publishing Insurance Total Internal
Services Fund Service Funds
Operating revenues:
Services provided to other funds S 531,352 S - S 531,352
Assessments from other funds - 21,066,691 21,066,691
Revenues from other agencies 171,414 - 171,414
Miscellaneous revenue 2,356 129,256 131,612
Total operating revenues 705,122 21,195,947 21,901,069
Operating expenses:
Salaries 202,848 57,023 259,871
Employee benefits 111,687 21,766,076 21,877,763
Purchased services 150,517 16,877 167,394
Supplies and materials 200,714 - 200,714
Other expenses 350 53,445 53,795
Depreciation 54,046 500 54,546
Total operating expenses 720,162 21,893,921 22,614,083
Operating income (loss) (15,040) (697,974) (713,014)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Earnings on investments - 15,543 15,543
Interest on capital lease (1,740) - (1,740)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (1,740) 15,543 13,803
Change in net position (16,780) (682,431) (699,211)
Net Position, July 1, 2021 65,376 1,550,435 1,615,811
Net Position, June 30, 2022 S 48,596 S 868,004 S 916,600
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Printing &
Publishing Insurance Total Internal
Services Fund Service Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:

Received for services S 703,616 $ 21,195,947 S 21,899,563

Due to other funds (2,638) - (2,638)

Paid to suppliers (348,002) (21,591,031) (21,939,033)

Paid to employees (313,970) (91,451) (405,421)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 39,006 (486,535) (447,529)
Cash flow from capital activities and related financing activities:

Purchase of equipment (10,233) - (10,233)

Payments on capital lease (28,773) - (28,773)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and financing activities (39,006) - (39,006)
Cash flow from investing activities:

Interest received - 15,543 15,543
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities - 15,543 15,543
Net change in cash and cash equivalents - (470,992) (470,992)
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2021 - 2,936,704 2,936,704
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2022 S - S 2465712 S 2,465,712

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss) S (15,040) $ (697,974) S (713,014)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities

Depreciation 54,046 500 54,546
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables (1,506) - (1,506)

Due to other funds (2,638) - (2,638)

Accounts payable 3,579 52,266 55,845

Accrued insurance claims - 158,673 158,673

Accrued salaries and benefits 565 - 565

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities S 39,006 S (486,535) S (447,529)

112



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Revenues:

From local sources:
Taxes-current year levy
Taxes-prior years' levies
Tuition
Transportation fees
Investment earnings
Rentals
Donations
Other local revenue
Miscellaneous

Total local sources

From intermediate sources:

County school fund
ESD apportionment

Other intermediate sources

Total intermediate sources

From state sources:
State school fund
Common school fund

Other state sources
Total state sources
From federal sources:
Federal forest fees

Other federal funds

Total federal sources

From other sources:
Leases
Sale of capital assets

Total other sources

Total revenues

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
S 28,491,016 $ 28,491,016 $ 28,566,014 S 74,998
350,000 350,000 375,886 25,886
24,500 24,500 350 (24,150)
15,000 15,000 1,504 (13,496)
450,000 450,000 (80,076) (530,076)
60,000 60,000 300 (59,700)
1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
13,000 13,000 38,684 25,684
175,000 175,000 101,143 (73,857)
29,579,516 29,579,516 29,003,805 (575,711)
300,000 300,000 122,658 (177,342)
2,288,083 2,288,083 1,510,840 (777,243)
. - 41,984 41,984
2,588,083 2,588,083 1,675,482 (912,601)
78,508,305 78,508,305 82,490,545 3,982,240
1,051,611 1,051,611 1,213,248 161,637
i, - 30,674 30,674
79,559,916 79,559,916 83,734,467 4,174,551
400,000 400,000 409,924 9,924
5,000 5,000 50,199 45,199
405,000 405,000 460,123 55,123
- - 17,000 17,000
500 500 18,185 17,685
500 500 35,185 34,685

$112,133,015 $ 112,133,015 $ 114,909,062 S 2,776,047
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Expenditures:
Instruction:

Regular programs:
Elementary school
Elementary co-curricular
Middle school
Middle school co-curricular
High school
High school co-curricular
Special programs:
Pre-kindergarten programs
Talented and gifted
Students with disabilities
Less restrictive programs
Early intervention
Remediation
Alternative education
Payments to charter school
English as a second language
Teen parent program

Summer programs

Total instruction

Supporting services:

Pupils:
Attendance and social work
Guidance
Health
Psychological
Speech pathology/audiology
Other student treatment
Special programs
Instructional staff:
Improvement of instruction
Educational media
Assessment
Staff development
General administration:
Board of education
Executive administration
School administration:
Office of the principal
Business:
Financial services
Operation and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Internal services

Budget Budget Variance with

Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
S 24,603,719 S 24,603,719 S 22,449,844 S 2,153,875
32,365 32,365 33,600 (1,235)
10,961,541 10,961,541 9,515,843 1,445,698
33,228 33,228 23,665 9,563
12,511,488 12,511,488 12,241,998 269,490
13,297 13,297 1,611,461 (1,598,164)
259,634 259,634 295,930 (36,296)
42,186 42,186 19,710 22,476
9,021,586 9,021,586 8,563,520 458,066
6,248,929 6,248,929 5,569,795 679,134
120,000 120,000 136,898 (16,898)
51,170 51,170 53,214 (2,044)
608,419 608,419 1,294,438 (686,019)
2,700,000 2,700,000 1,886,507 813,493
2,628,394 2,628,394 2,253,627 374,767
104,416 104,416 87,329 17,087
6,229 6,229 - 6,229
69,946,601 69,946,601 66,037,379 3,909,222
2,059,021 2,059,021 637,106 1,421,915
1,368,251 1,368,251 1,326,986 41,265
1,307,628 1,307,628 1,275,842 31,786
1,240,885 1,240,885 1,017,507 223,378
1,668,971 1,668,971 1,600,799 68,172
426,239 426,239 431,820 (5,581)
676,216 676,216 662,243 13,973
4,755,538 4,755,538 3,562,964 1,192,574
1,050,267 1,050,267 793,913 256,354
102,806 102,806 58,189 44,617
849,166 849,166 441,495 407,671
181,800 181,800 98,784 83,016
492,532 492,532 464,213 28,319
9,339,022 9,339,022 8,782,570 556,452
2,017,209 2,017,209 1,906,775 110,434
11,355,022 10,855,022 10,573,793 281,229
6,031,708 6,031,708 5,532,734 498,974
561,371 561,371 394,658 166,713

114



Employee Purchased Supplies Capital Other

Salaries Benefits Services Materials Outlay Objects
S 14,006,988 8,182,240 S 94,738 S 165,878 $ - -
25,850 7,750 - - - -
5,992,476 3,358,100 56,443 108,824 - -
18,110 5,555 - - - -
7,862,379 4,139,195 84,542 155,543 - 339
973,207 290,762 248,553 65,987 - 32,952
161,123 131,301 - 3,506 - -
14,998 4,684 28 - - -
4,431,022 2,682,832 1,415,617 33,376 - 673
3,484,467 2,080,705 353 3,815 - 455
- - 136,898 - - -
40,509 12,705 - - - -
740,473 404,271 139,316 7,578 - 2,800
- - 1,886,507 - - -
1,441,980 800,630 3,340 7,677 - -
52,661 34,419 - 249 - -
39,246,243 22,135,149 4,066,335 552,433 - 37,219
304,534 166,651 165,921 - - -
850,882 471,833 1,702 2,569 - -
707,440 413,338 133,917 20,729 - 418
667,140 343,433 761 4,485 - 1,688
1,022,415 537,490 16,081 23,279 - 1,534
271,372 140,437 9,057 9,936 - 1,018
427,203 214,849 7,046 12,550 - 595
2,313,612 1,141,037 11,189 92,315 - 4,811
433,452 289,798 357 70,306 - -
31,717 24,230 696 1,546 - -
289,537 97,769 51,166 3,023 - -
- - 76,291 1,146 - 21,347
317,608 137,664 3,133 4,733 - 1,075
5,526,329 2,983,046 54,057 187,377 - 31,761
862,862 422,712 33,277 261,245 - 326,679
3,921,039 2,508,484 2,813,308 801,449 12,000 517,513
2,595,926 1,665,218 439,976 644,891 58,651 128,072
111,151 61,223 220,744 541 - 999

Continued on page 116
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL, Continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Variance with
Budget Final Actual Final Budget
Supporting services, continued:
Central:
Planning, research, evaluation S 8,252 S 8,252 S 95 S 8,157
Information services 439,801 439,801 312,374 127,427
Staff services 1,052,831 1,052,831 1,088,918 (36,087)
Technology 2,736,303 2,736,303 2,592,769 143,534
Records management 81,930 81,930 54,385 27,545
Interpreting and Translation 80,712 80,712 56,230 24,482
Total supporting services 49,883,481 49,383,481 43,667,162 5,716,319
Facilities acquisition and construction:
Building acquisition and improvement 700,086 1,200,086 916,050 284,036
Total Facilities acquisition/construction 700,086 1,200,086 916,050 284,036
Transfers to other funds 1,971,516 1,971,516 1,971,516 -
General operating contingency 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Unappropriated ending fund balance 5,231,331 5,231,331 - 5,231,331
Total expenditures S 128,733,015 $ 128,733,015 $ 112,592,107 S 16,140,908

Continued from page 115
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Actual Expenditures Classified by Object

Employee Purchased Supplies Capital Other

Salaries Benefits Services Materials Outlay Objects
-8 - S 95 $ -8 -8 ;

152,157 78,821 25,442 55,191 - 763
623,306 304,609 82,621 77,342 - 1,040
963,412 496,751 553,058 573,548 - 6,000
32,157 21,634 92 502 - -
42,836 11,943 461 990 - -
22,468,087 12,532,970 4,700,448 2,849,693 70,651 1,045,313
- - - 34,882 877,418 3,750

- - - 34,882 877,418 3,750

- - - - - 1,971,516
61,714,330 $ 34,668,119 $ 8,766,783 S 3,437,008 S 948,069 $ 3,057,798

117



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
GRANTS AND CONTRACTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
From local sources:
Investment earnings S 47,200 S 47,200 S 36,114 S (11,086)
Donations 1,678,926 1,678,926 863,759 (815,167)
Indirects 2,310,728 2,310,728 1,093,328 (1,217,400)
Rentals 60,000 60,000 62,065 2,065
Miscellaneous 1,106,728 1,106,728 1,233,692 126,964
Other local sources 520,795 520,795 193,077 (327,718)
Total local sources 5,724,377 5,724,377 3,482,035 (2,242,342)
From intermediate sources:
Intermediate sources - - 630 630
Total intermediate sources - - 630 630
From state sources:
SSF Transportation 480,776 480,776 482,526 1,750
Other 5,568,009 9,260,945 6,515,701 (2,745,244)
Total state sources 6,048,785 9,741,721 6,998,227 (2,743,494)
From federal sources:
Title | Grants to LEAS 4,700,000 4,700,000 3,841,309 (858,691)
Special Education 2,432,200 2,432,200 947,444 (1,484,756)
Supporting Effective Instruction 528,000 528,000 395,216 (132,784)
Student Support & Academic Enrichment 457,031 457,031 216,282 (240,749)
Rehabilitation Services - Vocational 189,547 189,547 186,987 (2,560)
State Clean Diesel Grant Program - - 254,057 254,057
Other 271,583 271,583 219,978 (51,605)
Total federal sources 8,578,361 8,578,361 6,061,273 (2,517,088)
Total revenues 20,351,523 24,044,459 16,542,165 (7,502,294)
Expenditures:
Instruction:
Salaries 5,079,314 5,546,124 3,646,926 1,899,198
Employee benefits 2,966,084 3,129,134 2,027,086 1,102,048
Purchased services 2,450,931 4,458,127 2,510,875 1,947,252
Supplies and materials 2,842,180 3,093,140 881,060 2,212,080
Capital outlay 100,000 100,000 47,500 52,500
Other 1,300 206,220 50,290 155,930
Total instruction 13,439,809 16,532,745 9,163,737 7,369,008

Continued on page 119
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
GRANTS AND CONTRACTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL, Continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Supporting services:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Capital outlay
Other

Total supporting services

Community services:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Other

Total community services

Facilities acquisition and construction
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Capital outlay
Other

Total facilities acq & construction

Debt services:

Principal
Interest

Total debt services

Other uses of funds:
Transits

Total other uses of funds

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

Sale of capital assets
Issuance of debt
Contingency

Beginning fund balance

Ending fund balance

Continued from page 118

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
S 1,730,840 S 2,063,131 S 1,671,007 392,124
1,014,263 1,015,702 833,752 181,950
725,261 724,246 444,660 279,586
668,109 637,276 863,221 (225,945)
2,039,546 2,039,546 1,880,290 159,256
703,981 703,406 509,388 194,018
6,882,000 7,183,307 6,202,318 980,989
242,065 315,065 373,534 (58,469)
176,037 203,037 204,699 (1,662)
58,950 58,950 50,294 8,656
62,435 62,435 12,773 49,662
900 900 57,717 (56,817)
540,387 640,387 699,017 (58,630)
298,214 298,214 93,656 204,558
345,000 345,000 13,649 331,351
2,640,517 2,640,517 1,905,369 735,148
. . 12,462 (12,462)
3,283,731 3,283,731 2,025,136 1,258,595
670,000 670,000 635,863 34,137
108,000 108,000 107,343 657
778,000 778,000 743,206 34,794
- 198,693 198,693 -

- 198,693 198,693 -
24,923,927 28,616,863 19,032,107 9,584,756
(4,572,404) (4,572,404) (2,489,942) 2,082,462
25,000 25,000 (25,000)
965,412 965,412 675,000 (290,412)
(900,000) (900,000) - 900,000
7,576,390 7,576,390 7,782,434 206,044
S 3,094,398 S 3,094,398 S 5,967,492 2,873,094

119



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOL EMERGENCY RELIEF FUND (ESSER)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues:

From federal sources
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Instruction services:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Other objects
Total instruction services

Supporting services:

Salaries

Employee benefits

Purchased services

Supplies and materials

Capital outlay

Other objects

Total supporting services

Enterprise and community services:

Salaries
Employee benefits

Total Enterprise & community
Acquisition/construction:
Purchased services

Supplies and materials
Capital outlay

Total acquisition/construction

Other uses of funds:
Transits

Total other uses of funds
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Beginning fund balance

Ending fund balance

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
$ 10,685,077 10,685,077 S 6,528,424 § (4,156,653)
10,685,077 10,685,077 6,528,424 (4,156,653)
1,240,259 722,105 543,091 179,014
755,911 475,168 221,079 254,089
- 394,139 301,179 92,960
2,000,000 311,187 203,362 107,825
- 32,320 16,160 16,160
3,996,170 1,934,919 1,284,871 650,048
- 482,779 438,172 44,607
- 197,035 876,878 (679,843)
- 195,172 233,964 (38,792)
- 1,292,189 549,616 742,573
1,350,000 847,438 847,438 -
460,000 610,000 258,328 351,672
1,810,000 3,624,613 3,204,396 420,217
- 179,129 155,850 23,279
- 67,509 60,937 6,572
- 246,638 216,787 29,851
103,830 103,830 264,596 (160,766)
- - 4,775 (4,775)
4,413,872 4,413,872 1,268,102 3,145,770
4,517,702 4,517,702 1,537,473 2,980,229
361,205 361,205 284,897 76,308
361,205 361,205 284,897 76,308
10,685,077 10,685,077 6,528,424 4,156,653
$ - - S - S -
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues:
From local sources:
Taxes - current year levy
Taxes - prior years' levies
Investment earnings
Assessments from other funds
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Supporting services:
Purchased services

Total supporting services

Debt service:
Principal - QZAB
Principal - PERS 2005 issue
Principal - PERS 2021 issue
Principal - 2015 GO issue
Principal - 2015 GO refunding bonds
Principal -2020 LTGO
Principal -2020 Full Faith Credit Refunding
Principal - 2021 GO refunding bonds
Interest - PERS 2005 issue
Interest - PERS 2021 issue
Interest - GO 2015 issue
Interest - 2015 refunding GO bonds
Interest -2020 LTGO
Interest - 2020 Full Faith Credit Refunding
Interest - 2021 GO refunding bonds

Total debt service
Total Expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds

Proceeds of refunding long-term debt
Proceeds of issuance of long-term debt
Lump Sum payment to PERS

Payment of refunded debt

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
7,200,000 $ 7,200,000 $ 7,240,246 S 40,246
90,000 90,000 98,743 8,743
35,000 35,000 39,505 4,505
6,200,000 10,778,043 10,193,912 (584,131)
13,525,000 18,103,043 17,572,406 (530,637)
1,000 950,161 943,764 6,397
1,000 950,161 943,764 6,397
78,859 78,859 78,858 1
4,200,000 4,200,000 4,200,000 -
- 2,670,000 2,670,000 -
1,455,000 1,455,000 1,455,000 -
3,763,215 3,763,215 3,763,215 -
90,995 90,995 90,995 -
235,000 235,000 235,000 -
- 270,000 270,000 -
1,708,481 1,708,481 1,708,481 -
- 1,908,043 1,908,043
1,295,500 785,500 785,500 -
1,058,485 1,058,485 1,058,485 -
24,151 24,151 24,151 -
81,150 81,150 81,150 -
- 240,000 235,216 4,784
13,990,836 18,568,879 18,564,094 4,785
13,991,836 19,519,040 19,507,858 11,182
(466,836) (1,415,997) (1,935,452) (519,455)
471,516 471,516 471,516 -
- 23,525,000 23,525,000 -
- 106,955,000 106,955,000 -
- (106,223,075) (106,223,075) -
- (23,307,764) (23,307,764) -
981,678 981,678 1,106,502 124,824
986,358 S 986,358 S 591,727 S (394,631)
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
STUDENT INVESTMENT ACCOUNT (SIA)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
From state sources S 6,972,000 S 6,972,000 S 6,972,000 $ -
Total revenues 6,972,000 6,972,000 6,972,000 -
Expenditures:
Instruction services:
Salaries 2,181,100 2,049,597 1,879,819 169,778
Employee benefits 1,395,354 970,942 1,013,902 (42,960)
Purchased services - 150 61 89
Total instruction services 3,576,454 3,020,689 2,893,782 126,907
Supporting services:
Salaries 1,934,667 1,858,612 1,847,565 11,047
Employee benefits 1,145,649 816,095 1,034,163 (218,068)
Purchased services - 550 5,638 (5,088)
Supplies and materials 15,000 5,000 - 5,000
Other objects 300,230 300,230 336,162 (35,932)
Total supporting services 3,395,546 2,980,487 3,223,528 (243,041)
Enterprise and Community Services:
Salaries - 219,893 128,192 91,701
Employee benefits - 97,191 60,776 36,415
Purchased services - 1,300 697 603
Total expenditures - 318,384 189,665 128,719
Acquisition/construction:
Purchased services - 18,455 19,310 (855)
Capital outlay - 633,985 645,715 (11,730)
Total acquisition/construction - 652,440 665,025 (12,585)
Total expenditures 6,972,000 6,972,000 6,972,000 -
Net change in fund balance - - - -
Beginning fund balance - - - -
Ending fund balance $ -5 -5 -5 -
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
NUTRITION SERVICES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues:
From local sources:
Meal sales
Miscellaneous

Total local sources
From state sources

From federal sources
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Enterprise and Community Services:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Capital outlay
Other objects

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance
Beginning fund balance

Ending fund balance

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
S 208,000 S 208,000 S 53,932 S (154,068)
10,000 10,000 4,961 (5,039)
218,000 218,000 58,893 (159,107)
40,000 40,000 98,339 58,339
4,429,165 4,429,165 5,743,809 1,314,644
4,687,165 4,687,165 5,901,041 1,213,876
1,413,704 1,413,704 1,315,206 98,498
1,153,437 1,153,437 902,713 250,724
128,500 128,500 86,213 42,287
1,884,665 1,884,665 1,934,749 (50,084)
25,000 25,000 65,598 (40,598)
1,750 1,750 680 1,070
4,607,056 4,607,056 4,305,159 301,897
80,109 80,109 1,595,882 1,515,773
S 80,109 $ 80,109 $§ 1,595,882 S 1,515,773
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

CO-CURRICULAR FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Revenues:
From local sources:
Student activities

Total local sources

Expenditures:
Instruction:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Other

Total Instruction

Acquisition/construction:
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Capital outlay
Other

Total acquisition/construction

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Transfer from other funds
Beginning fund balance

Ending fund balance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget

S 50,000 $ 50,000 S 79,386 S 29,386
50,000 50,000 79,386 29,386
992,472 992,472 90,525 901,947
427,234 427,234 32,551 394,683
309,917 309,917 64,171 245,746
74,100 74,100 - 74,100
20,000 20,000 - 20,000
1,823,723 1,823,723 187,247 1,636,476
40,000 40,000 20,178 19,822
450,000 450,000 437,128 12,872
4,500 4,500 - 4,500
494,500 494,500 457,306 37,194
2,318,223 2,318,223 644,553 1,673,670
(2,268,223) (2,268,223) (565,167) 1,703,056
1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 -
768,223 768,223 309,578 (458,645)

$ - S - S 1,244,411 S 1,244,411
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
STUDENT BODY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
From local sources:
Investment earnings S 10,000 $ 10,000 S 2,271 S (7,729)
Student activities 2,400,000 2,400,000 884,180 (1,515,820)
Donations - - 77,088 77,088
Miscellaneous revenue 100,000 100,000 40,044 (59,956)
Other local sources 5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
Total local sources 2,515,000 2,515,000 1,003,583 (1,511,417)
Expenditures:
Instruction:
Purchased services 608,000 608,000 83,369 524,631
Supplies and materials 1,477,000 1,477,000 582,342 894,658
Other 520,000 520,000 269,900 250,100
Total instruction 2,605,000 2,605,000 935,611 1,669,389
Net change in fund balance (90,000) (90,000) 67,972 157,972
Contingency (300,000) (300,000) - 300,000
Beginning fund balance 1,185,000 1,185,000 1,139,097 (45,903)
Ending fund balance S 795,000 S 795,000 S 1,207,069 S 412,069
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues:
From local sources
Investment earnings
Rents

Miscellaneous

Total local sources
From state sources
From federal sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Supporting services:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Capital outlay

Other objects
Total supporting services

Acquisition/construction:
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Capital outlay
Other

Total acquisition/construction
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

Transfers from other funds
Proceeds from insurance recovery

Contingency

Beginning fund balance

Ending fund balance

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
S 1,200 $ 1,200 $ 4,949 S 3,749
108,649 108,649 55,143 (53,506)

- - 17,573 17,573
109,849 109,849 77,665 (32,184)

- - 25,000 25,000

- - 10,671 10,671

109,849 109,849 113,336 3,487
- - 17,971 (17,971)
- - 5,695 (5,695)
55,500 55,500 79,508 (24,008)
167,877 317,877 77,740 240,137
110,000 110,000 11,082 98,918
2,500 2,500 - 2,500
335,877 485,877 191,996 293,881
10,000 10,000 27,077 (17,077)
25,000 25,000 19,980 5,020
80,000 2,130,000 1,837,742 292,258
2,500 2,500 30,150 (27,650)
117,500 2,167,500 1,914,949 252,551
453,377 2,653,377 2,106,945 546,432
(343,528) (2,543,528) (1,993,609) 549,919
- 2,200,000 1,899,117 (300,883)
(167,904) (167,904) - 167,904
511,432 511,432 499,961 (11,471)
S - $ - $ 405469 S 405,469
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
PRINTING & PUBLISHING SERVICES FUND
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Printing charges assessed to other funds S 632,465 S 632,465 S 531,352 S (101,113)
Revenues from other agencies 167,400 167,400 171,414 4,014
Other local revenue - - 2,356 2,356
Total revenues 799,865 799,865 705,122 (94,743)
Expenditures:
Supporting services:
Salaries 196,488 196,488 202,848 (6,360)
Employee benefits 122,577 122,577 111,687 10,890
Purchased services 187,660 187,660 150,517 37,143
Supplies and materials 136,190 136,190 200,714 (64,524)
Capital outlay 90,000 90,000 10,233 79,767
Other 550 550 350 200
Total supporting services 733,465 733,465 676,349 57,116
Debt services:
Principal - copier lease 26,795 26,795 26,795 -
Interest - copier lease 1,978 1,978 1,978 N
Total debt services 28,773 28,773 28,773 -
Total expenditures 762,238 762,238 705,122 57,116
Net change in fund balance 37,627 37,627 - (37,627)
Beginning fund balance - - - -
Ending fund balance S 37,627 S 37,627 S - S (37,627)
Reconciliation to GAAP basis
Ending fund balance, June 30, 2021 S -
Accrued interest payable (319)
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 83,873
Capital lease (34,958)
Net Position June 30, 2022 S 48,596
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
INSURANCE FUND
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Assessments from other funds S 22,200,000 $ 22,200,000 $ 21,066,691 S (1,133,309)
Miscellaneous revenue - - 129,256 129,256
Investment earnings 10,000 10,000 15,543 5,543
Total revenues 22,210,000 22,210,000 21,211,490 (998,510)
Expenditures:
Supporting services:
Salaries 57,023 57,023 57,023 -
Employee benefits 22,111,587 22,111,587 21,766,076 345,511
Purchased services 30,000 30,000 16,877 13,123
Supplies and materials 15,000 15,000 - 15,000
Other 60,000 60,000 53,445 6,555
Total supporting services 22,273,610 22,273,610 21,893,421 380,189
Net change in fund balance (63,610) (63,610) (681,931) (618,321)
Contingency (136,390) (136,390) - 136,390
Beginning fund balance 700,000 700,000 1,547,018 847,018
Ending fund balance S 500,000 S 500,000 S 865,087 S 365,087
Reconciliation to GAAP basis
Ending fund balance, June 30, 2022 S 865,087
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 2,917
Net Position June 30, 2022 S 868,004
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

VOLUNTARY EARLY RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Assessments from other funds S 650,000 S 650,000 S 650,000 -
Interest income - - 5,169 5,169
Total revenues 650,000 650,000 655,169 5,169
Expenditures:
Supporting services:
Pension benefits 65,000 65,000 52,996 12,004
Post employment benefits 575,000 575,000 399,803 175,197
Administrative costs 6,500 6,500 6,750 (250)
Total expenditures 646,500 646,500 459,549 186,951
Net change in fund balance 3,500 3,500 195,620 192,120
Beginning fund balance 500,000 500,000 505,846 5,846
Ending fund balance S 503,500 S 503,500 S 701,466 S 197,966
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS & OUTSTANDING BALANCES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Taxes Add Levy (Deduct) Add (Deduct) Taxes
Uncollected Extended by Discounts Cancellations (Deduct) Uncollected
Tax Year July 1, 2021 Assessor Allowed and Adjustments Collections June 30, 2022

General Fund
2021-22 $ - $ 29,899,928 S (799,258) $ (60,543) S (28,529,249) $ 510,878
2020-21 484,192 - (633) (34,285) (178,599) 270,675
2019-20 263,535 - - (9,832) (80,101) 173,602
2018-19 104,307 - - (8,599) (51,490) 44,218
2017-18 and prior 189,014 - - (7,581) (38,770) 142,663
Total Prior 1,041,048 - (32,731) (60,297) (348,960) 631,158
Total General Fund S 1,041,048 $ 29,899,928 S (831,989) S (120,840) S (28,878,209) S 1,142,036

Debt Service Fund
2021-22 S - S 7,578,335 S (202,817) S (15,106) S (7,230,927) S 129,485
2020-21 128,722 - - (9,659) (47,331) 71,732
2019-20 70,224 - - (2,805) (21,286) 46,133
2018-19 27,489 - - (2,315) (13,521) 11,653
2017-18 and prior 32,620 - - (4,730) (6,690) 21,200
Total Prior 259,055 - - (19,509) (88,828) 150,718
Total Debt Service Fund S 259,055 $ 7,578,335 S (202,817) S (34,615) S (7,319,755) S 280,203

Reconciliation to Revenue:

Total Tax Collections from above, All Funds 36,197,964

Collections July and August 2022 included in revenue 210,658

Collections July and August 2021 excluded from revenue (127,732)

Property tax revenue - Budgetary Basis 36,280,890
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the District's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the District's overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 132

how the District's financial performance and well-being have changed over
time.

Revenue Capacity 142
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 152

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and the
District's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 160
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the District's financial
activities take place.

Operating Information 168
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the District's financial report relates to
the services the District provides and the activities it performs.
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Schedule 1
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
NET POSITION
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

Governmental Activities

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets S 56,625,445 S 46,955,284 S 46,387,158 S 43,153,145
Restricted for debt services 591,727 1,106,502 1,113,587 1,346,857
Restricted for other purposes 4,329,069 2,866,982 3,191,511 2,462,635
Unrestricted (deficit) (111,950,627) (116,259,789)  (112,622,631) (104,753,523)
Total Net Position S (50,404,386) S (65,331,021) $ (61,930,375) S (57,790,886)

Source: School District records
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2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13

$ 43,925,051 $ 37,260,180 $ 33,113,804 $ 22,005942 S 27,631,671 S 26,764,531

1,081,830 558,396 558,396 502,016 3,314,120 3,315,659
2,237,107 1,982,397 2,906,336 2,547,984 1,114,864 412,655
(104,896,977) (92,596,051) (88,764,666) (41,451,192) 5,121,167 1,010,087

$ (57,652,989) $ (52,795,078) $ (52,186,130) $ (16,395,250) $ 37,181,822 $ 31,502,932
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Schedule 2

SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

Expenses

Governmental Activities:
Instruction services
Support services
Community services
Facilities services
Interest on long-term debt

Total expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for services
Instruction services
Support services
Community services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total program revenues

Net Expense
Total government net expense

Source: School District records

EXPENSES, PROGRAM REVENUES, AND NET EXPENSE

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

$ 81,629,174 $ 87,043,130 $ 83,522,974 $ 81,524,834
54,047,935 55,730,521 52,002,939 47,211,809
5,288,975 4,682,496 4,896,979 4,556,323

- - - 3,525,772

6,867,737 5,345,035 5,348,254 5,418,552
147,833,821 152,801,182 145,771,146 142,237,290
1,013,832 353,663 1,566,065 2,448,403
1,723,208 1,098,789 1,410,924 1,282,198
255,124 335,916 390,700 508,705
29,036,543 20,689,913 14,463,310 15,401,566
3,525,772 1,395,682 341,320 -
35,554,479 23,873,963 18,172,319 19,640,872

$ (112,279,342) $ (128,927,219) $ (127,598,827) $ (122,596,418)
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2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13
$ 79,368,304 $ 77,606,769 $ 85088099 $ 56,537,759 $ 61,442,894 $ 58,959,751
49,106,362 42,123,060 48,863,556 29,023,065 35,278,768 34,719,463
5,523,045 4,243,111 4,515,146 3,509,972 3,628,941 3,984,589
- 13,208 - - 85 498
5,434,220 5,631,473 6,912,398 5,507,671 3,862,022 4,007,843
139,431,931 129,617,621 145,379,199 94,578,467 104,212,710 101,672,144
2,291,530 2,485,437 2,207,727 2,061,770 1,940,824 2,044,214
1,570,278 1,928,640 1,995,773 993,062 1,393,878 905,884
345,737 337,141 354,175 421,841 412,731 437,015
13,438,298 13,337,859 13,041,676 12,671,994 12,599,654 12,860,249
755,960 289,906 147,729 1,300 338,684 394,731
18,401,803 18,378,983 17,747,080 16,149,967 16,685,771 16,642,093

$ (121,030,128) S (111,238,638) S (127,632,119) S

(78,428,500) S

(87,526,939) S

(85,030,051)
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Net Expense
Total government net expense

General Revenues

Governmental activities:
Property taxes levied, gen purposes
Property taxes levied, debt services
State school fund
Common school fund
Unrestricted state and local sources
Unrestricted revenue, federal sources
Earnings on investments
Gain (loss) on sale
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in Net Position

Source: School District records

Schedule 3
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
GENERAL REVENUES AND TOTAL CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

2021-22

2020-21

2019-20

2018-19

$ (112,279,342) $ (128,927,219) $ (127,598,827) $ (119,070,646)
28,989,862 27,965,757 27,091,772 25,839,649
7,338,989 7,454,307 7,219,525 6,809,909
83,013,601 84,731,490 82,553,456 76,557,591
1,213,248 1,148,109 1,169,649 1,212,288
1,706,156 2,555,496 2,169,975 2,838,141

411,037 355,329 396,232 525,153
1,330,496 713,788 1,301,597 1,511,621
1,790,834 4,687 66,376 2,445,498
1,411,754 597,610 1,490,756 1,192,899

127,205,977 125,526,573 123,459,338 118,932,749
$ 14926635 $  (3,400,646) $  (4,139,489) $  (137,897)
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2017-18

$ (121,030,128) S (111,238,638) S (127,632,119) S

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

(78,428,500) S

2013-14

(87,526,939) S

2012-13

(85,030,051)

24,802,337 24,030,618 23,192,202 22,890,063 21,120,239 20,929,996
6,789,173 6,747,890 6,000,862 5,069,436 4,712,725 4,727,163
78,425,621 72,972,224 70,666,552 67,402,149 63,504,082 56,170,603
1,338,151 1,591,241 1,154,814 1,134,086 1,108,576 1,067,259
1,547,618 1,928,251 1,649,376 1,740,634 1,734,973 190,414

473,101 130,233 533,937 567,355 578,071 572,936
1,183,236 1,202,882 906,365 574,255 298,718 286,856

- 249,312 - 1,854,616 (208,378) 46,727

1,612,980 1,777,039 1,331,833 1,317,545 1,080,474 1,976,221
116,172,217 110,629,690 105,435,941 102,550,139 93,929,480 85,968,175
$  (4857,911) $  (608,948) $ (22,196,178) $ 24,121,639 $ 6,402,541 $ 938,124
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Schedule 4
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

General Fund

Nonspendable S 175,175 $ 199,735 § 146,626 S 168,158

Unassigned 19,472,930 17,131,415 13,558,475 10,535,196
Total general fund S 19,648,105 S 17,331,150 $13,705,101 $ 10,703,354
All Other Governmental Funds

Nonspendable S 274,885 S 434,514 S 696,962 S 761,379

Restricted 4,920,796 3,973,484 6,705,821 7,294,797

Committed 3,138,895 3,045,068 1,308,238 1,468,418

Assigned 3,176,977 3,583,136 1,542,602 2,527,315

Unassigned (499,503) (198,630) - -
Total all other governmental funds S 11,012,050 S 10,837,572 $10,253,623 $ 12,051,909

Source: School District Records
Note: Prior year fund balances have been restated for funds incorrectly classified as non-governmental.
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2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13

202,063 S 165,298 S 122,949 S 142,014 S 217,389 S 168,181
10,033,286 9,216,521 7,874,217 5,482,180 1,986,395 293,615

10,235,349 S 9,381,819 S 7,997,166 S 5,624,194 S 2,203,784 S 461,796

942,341 $ 1,243,944 S 739,911 S 585,083 S 324,568 S 287,128

9,731,702 33,675,433 62,703,322 77,186,566 5,543,798 5,338,626
421,051 2,605,318 2,166,899 113,221 1,364,966 258,310
3,360,299 1,933,358 239,611 235,802 194,272 413,338
- - - - (102,190) (205,323)

14,455,393 S 39,458,053 S 65,849,743 S 78,120,672 S 7,325,414 S 6,092,079
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Schedule 5
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(moadified accrual basis of accounting)

2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19
Revenues:
Local sources:
Taxes S 36,280,889 §$ 35,495,142 S 34,196,069 S 33,562,550
Investment earnings 2,763 459,707 1,052,677 1,248,458
Assessments from other funds 10,193,912 5,499,057 5,074,289 5,248,512
Services provided charter school - - - -
Miscellaneous 1,397,413 625,057 1,516,193 1,180,768
Other local sources 3,402,796 1,841,019 3,226,599 4,063,864
Intermediate sources 1,676,112 2,555,497 2,169,974 2,681,212
State sources 97,828,033 93,805,989 87,360,722 82,019,406
Federal sources 18,804,300 13,982,056 11,069,973 11,501,095
Total revenues 169,586,218 154,263,524 145,666,496 141,505,865
Expenditures:
Current expenditures:
Instruction 80,455,127 78,556,766 77,317,949 76,428,382
Support services 54,623,703 49,315,024 46,860,347 44,898,149
Community services 5,345,030 4,416,676 4,718,076 4,496,779
Facilities and acquisition 544,465 767,960 447,048 443,673
Other uses of funds 483,590 79,905 21,968 246,448
Debt service:
Principal 13,398,931 13,605,447 9,299,308 8,866,571
Interest 5,908,369 4,372,044 4,345,123 4,401,949
Capital outlay 9,894,033 3,721,515 4,933,032 4,190,518
Total expenditures 170,653,248 154,835,337 147,942,851 143,972,469
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,067,030) (571,813) (2,276,355) (2,466,604)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 1,971,516 6,335,519 2,751,996 2,721,164
Transfers out (1,971,516) (6,335,519) (2,751,996) (2,721,164)
Sale of assets 18,185 4,687 1,825,440 531,125
Lease proceeds 17,000 - - -
Proceeds from insurance recovery 1,899,117 - - -
Issuance of debt 131,155,000 4,330,000 1,654,375 -
Premium on issuance of debt - 447,124 - -
Paid to escrow agent on defeasance (23,307,764) - - -
Bond issuance costs
Lump sum payment to PERS (106,223,075) - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,558,463 4,781,811 3,479,815 531,125
Net Change In Fund Balance 2,491,433 4,209,998 1,203,460 (1,935,479)
Beginning Fund Balance 28,168,722 23,958,724 22,755,263 24,690,742

Ending Fund Balance

30,660,155 S 28,168,722

S 23,958,723

S 22,755,263

Debt Service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures* 12.05% 11.96% 9.57% 9.52%
* Calculated as (Debt service principal & interest) divided by (Total expenditures less capitalized capital outlay (expel

Source: School District records
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2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

2013-14

2012-13

S 31,966,288
931,732
4,895,847
107,275
1,504,376
3,869,121
1,547,618
82,842,294
11,690,876

$ 30,581,915
1,008,275
5,096,652

231,594
1,643,193
4,161,045
1,928,251

77,031,834
11,057,642

S 29,042,027
814,903
5,106,456
255,924
1,222,853
4,014,636
1,649,373
73,814,421
11,199,080

S 27,899,955
486,455
4,739,939
244,356
1,171,408
3,626,830
1,740,634
70,501,804
10,783,195

S 25,826,497
257,909
4,319,171
224,397
778,084
3,783,968
1,734,973
67,039,398
10,203,087

S 25,545,763
239,212
4,150,324
181,171
1,977,738
3,980,072
190,414
59,142,153

11,117,259

139,355,427

132,740,401

127,119,673

121,194,576

114,167,484

106,524,106

76,599,770
42,861,824
4,324,999
1,115,859
650,132

8,279,492
4,462,732
26,983,393

73,454,577
39,383,665
4,153,614
1,895,395
203,870

7,546,494
4,707,479
27,260,961

72,600,301
37,879,744
4,083,336
4,612,844

5,187,317
6,323,955
11,275,926

67,633,318
36,387,259
3,973,842
1,202,232

11,510,172
4,593,769
1,702,313

63,710,174
34,771,566
3,783,347
59,940

5,593,386
3,883,537
1,732,909

60,426,687
34,009,267
4,071,764
537,781

5,060,935
4,030,651
3,410,694

165,278,201

158,606,055

141,963,423

127,002,905

113,534,859

111,547,779

(25,922,774)  (25,865,654) (14,843,750)  (5,808,329) 632,625 (5,023,673)
3,089,144 2,631,577 1,177,858 4,137,858 1,031,245 887,858
(3,089,144)  (2,631,577)  (1,177,858)  (4,137,858)  (1,031,245) (887,858)
10,566 460,004 5,793 1,913,473 1,612,092 46,727
1,763,078 398,613 4,940,000 116,184,808 730,606 829,380
- - - 7,603,811 - -
- - - (44,605,672) - -
(860,740)
1,773,644 858,617 4,945,793 80,235,680 2,342,698 876,107
(24,149,130)  (25,007,037)  (9,897,957) 74,427,351 2,975,323 (4,147,566)
48,839,872 73,846,909 83,744,866 9,317,515 6,553,875 10,701,441
$ 24,690,742 $ 48,839,872 $ 73,846,909 $ 83,744,866 $ 9,529,198 $ 6,553,875
9.29% 9.47% 9.13% 12.98% 8.48% 8.45%

ditures for facilities and acquisition plus capital outlay))
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Assessed Value
(not including exempt property)

Real Property
Personal Property
Manufactured Structure
Public Utility

Total Assessed Value
Plus: Non-Profit Housing
Less: Urban Renewal Excess

Total Net Assessed Value

Total Direct Tax Rate per $1,000
Amount Tax Rate Will Raise
Less: Reduction and Adjustments

Total Taxes Imposed (Net Levy)

Schedule 6

SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
ASSESSED VALUES OF TAXABLE PROPERY WITHIN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19 BOUNDARIES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2021-22

2020-21

2019-20

2018-19

$ 6,196,820,848
180,091,824
51,648,112
127,604,200
6,556,164,984
2,892,336
(66,551,232)

S 5,986,415,563
173,980,397
48,681,872
127,865,600
6,336,943,432
2,808,094

(64,611,794)

S 5,792,034,187
167,624,022
46,505,060
119,384,100
6,125,547,369

(60,037,359)

S 5,561,104,447
164,748,391
43,234,341
122,503,200
5,891,590,379

(58,324,255)

S 6,492,506,088 S 6,275,139,732 S 6,065,510,010 S 5,833,266,124

0.5797
S 37,711,354
300,301

0.5849
S 36,783,232
314,381

5.8526
S 35,571,733
303,733

5.8382
S 34,125,588
313,275

S 37,411,053

S 36,468,851

S 35,268,000

S 33,812,313

Source: Lane County Department of Assessment and Taxation
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2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

2013-14

2012-13

$ 5,353,103,921
150,252,944
40,225,385
126,860,195
5,670,442,445

(40,188,337)

$ 5,141,443,545
139,178,421
40,345,145
119,577,500
5,440,544,611

(29,773,656)

S 4,996,121,173
130,903,115
38,430,068
118,254,700
5,283,709,056

(26,491,434)

S 4,848,549,927
137,164,636
37,041,185
112,307,757
5,135,063,505

(29,860,854)

$ 4,597,790,926
141,783,923
36,939,344
103,761,410
4,880,275,603

(19,019,901)

$ 4,541,739,621
140,004,057
38,393,292
98,032,300
4,818,169,270

(10,798,688)

$ 5,630,254,108 $ 5,410,770,955 $ 5,257,217,622 $ 5,105,202,651 $ 4,861,255,702 $ 4,807,370,582

5.9181 5.9181 5.8166 5.6478 5.6359 5.6472
S 33,183,464 S 32,059,502 S 30,610,270 S 28,851,420 S 27,403,776 S 27,151,549
331,461 366,070 400,003 427,558 754,114 742,462

S 32,852,003

S 31,693,432

S 30,210,267

S 28,423,862

S 26,649,662

S 26,409,087
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Schedule 7
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per 51,000 of assessed value)

2021-22  2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18
District Direct Rates
General Tax Permanent Rate 4.6412 4.6412 4.6412 4.6412 4.6412
General Obligation Debt Service Bonds 1.1554 1.2081 1.2114 1.1970 1.2769
Total Direct Tax Rate 5.7966 5.8493 5.8526 5.8382 5.9181
Overlapping Total Property Tax Rates
City of Eugene 8.03 8.06 8.01 8.13 7.96
City of Springfield 7.20 7.20 7.27 6.77 6.68
Eugene Urban Renewal Downtown 0.22 0.22 0.20 0.21 0.20
Glenwood Water 3.12 3.18 3.28 3.36 3.33
Goshen Rural fire Protection District 1.72 1.72 2.22 2.22 2.22
Lane Community College 0.96 0.96 0.84 0.85 0.85
Lane County 1.86 1.84 1.84 1.81 1.67
Lane ESD 0.22 0.22 0.22 0.22 0.22
Marcola Water 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40
McKenzie River Rural Fire Protection District 2.21 2.21 2.06 2.06 2.06
Mohawk Valley Rural Fire Protection District 2.29 2.30 2.32 2.32 1.91
Pleasant Hill Rural Fire Protection District 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10
Rainbow Water and Fire District 3.77 3.77 3.77 6.67 3.72
Shangra La Water District 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
South Lane County Fire & Rescue 1.50 1.77 1.76 1.78 1.80
Springfield Economic Development Agency 0.32 0.30 0.29 0.30 0.24
Upper Willamate Soil & Water 0.07 - - - -
Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District 3.07 3.07 3.07 3.07 3.07
Willamalane Park and Recreation District 2.24 2.27 2.29 2.30 2.33
Maximum code area rate per $1,000 20.19 20.67 20.67 20.13 19.96

Source: Lane County Department of Assessment and Taxation
Note: Overlapping Rates include levies for operating and debt service costs.
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2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13

4.6412 4.6412 4.6412 4.6412 4.6412
1.2769 1.1754 1.0066 0.9947 1.0060
5.9181 5.8166 5.6478 5.6359 5.6472

8.02 7.97 7.98 8.01 8.03
6.79 6.78 7.03 7.15 6.94
0.19 0.17 0.16 0.16 0.14
3.36 3.44 3.47 3.41 3.48
2.22 2.22 2.22 2.22 2.22
0.84 0.82 0.86 0.86 0.86
1.67 1.83 1.93 1.94 1.39
0.22 0.22 0.22 0.22 0.22
0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40
2.06 2.06 2.06 2.06 2.06
1.91 191 1.91 191 1.91
1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10
3.78 3.83 3.62 3.67 3.72
2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
1.80 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.03
0.21 0.21 0.22 0.18 0.15
3.07 3.07 3.07 3.07 3.07
2.35 2.34 2.37 2.45 2.01

20.11 20.12 20.38 18.34 17.14
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Schedule 8
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS FOR SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

Tax year 2021

Taxable Assessed

Ten Largest Taxpayers Value Rank
IP Eat Three LLC S 300,721,680 1
McKenzie Willamette Regional Medical Ctr 86,088,176 2
BRFI Gateway LLC 83,029,411 3
Rosboro Company LLC 33,356,530 4
Kingsford Manufacturing Co 33,902,441 5
Borden Chemical Inc 30,070,719 6
Countryside Brentwood LLC 26,088,967 7
Lumen Technologies Inc 24,644,000 8
Arclin USA, Inc 22,990,648 9
Northwest Natural Gas Co 23,926,000 10

Gateway Mall Partners -
Comcast Corporation -
Shepard Investment Group LLC -
Brentwood Estates LLC -

Trustserv Corporation -

Subtotal of Ten Largest Taxpayers 664,818,572
All Other Taxpayers 5,827,687,516
Total All Taxpayers S 6,492,506,088

Source: Lane County Department of Assessment and Taxation
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Tax year 2012

Percentage of Percentage of
Total Taxable Taxable Assessed Total Taxable
Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value
4.63% S 225,962,099 1 4.70%
1.33% 23,869,309 6 0.50%
1.28%
0.52% 27,360,281 4 0.57%
0.52% 22,826,469 7 0.47%
0.46%
0.40% -
0.38% -
0.35% 16,493,299 9 0.34%
0.37%
- 63,219,398 2 1.32%
- 35,556,700 3 0.74%
- 27,035,788 5 0.56%
- 20,015,932 8 0.42%
- 15,490,536 10 0.32%
10.24% 477,829,811 9.94%
89.76% 4,329,540,771 90.06%
100.00% S 4,807,370,582 100.00%
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Schedule 9
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS FOR LANE COUNTY
Current Year

Tax Year 2021
Percentage
of Total
Taxable Assessed Taxable
Ten Largest Taxpayers Business/Service Tax Value Value

IP Eat Three LLC Wood Products S 3,970,209 S 300,721,680 0.79%
Lumen Technologies Inc Telecommunications 2,441,271 161,201,000 0.42%
Verizon Communications Inc Telecommunications 2,436,865 151,053,000 0.40%
Northwest Natural Gas Co Natural Gas Utility 1,960,729 129,602,200 0.34%
Valley River Center Shopping Center 1,814,890 102,242,716 0.27%
Comcast Corporation Telecommunications 1,742,303 102,197,000 0.27%
Shepard Investment Group LLC Apartments 1,725,527 95,839,376 0.25%
McKenzie Willamette Regional Medical Ctr Healthcare 1,589,885 86,088,176 0.23%
Weyerhaeuser Company Forestry/Timber 1,525,715 164,817,242 0.43%
Emerald PUD Public Power Utility 1,486,206 135,776,806 0.36%
Subtotal of Ten Largest Taxpayers 1,429,539,196 3.76%
All Other Taxpayers 36,704,318,100 96.24%
Total All Taxpayers S 38,133,857,296 100.00%

Source: Lane County Department of Assessment and Taxation
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Schedule 10

SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 2021-22

2020-21

Net Taxes Levied for the Fiscal Year S 37,411,053

Collected Within the Fiscal Year of Levy

Amount S 35,760,177
Percentage of Levy 95.59%
Collections in Subsequent Year SO

Total Collections to Date
Amount $35,760,177

Percentage of Levy 95.59%

Source: Lane County Department of Assessment and Taxation
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$ 36,468,851

S 34,894,332
95.68%

$225,930

$35,120,262
96.30%

2019-20

$ 35,268,000

$ 33,653,154
95.42%

$411,906

$34,065,060
96.59%

2018-19

$ 33,812,313

$ 32,296,410
95.52%

$500,292

$32,796,702
97.00%



2017-18

2016-17

$ 32,852,003

S 31,361,690
95.46%

$530,724

$31,892,414
97.08%

$ 31,693,432

S 30,011,238
94.69%

$659,894

$30,671,132
96.77%

2015-16

$ 30,210,267

S 28,457,290
94.20%

$679,526

$29,136,816
96.45%

2014-15

$ 28,423,862

S 27,287,169
96.00%

$793,040

$28,080,209
98.79%
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2013-14

2012-13

$ 26,649,662

S 25,146,171
94.36%

$779,843

$25,926,014
97.28%

$ 26,409,087

S 24,880,078
94.21%

$820,148

$25,700,226
97.32%



Schedule 11
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19
Governmental Activities:
Publicly Sold
1997 Gen Obligation Refunding Bonds - S - S - S -
2005A Pension Bonds 31,700,000 35,900,000 39,690,000 43,105,000
2006 & 2007 Gen Obligation Bonds - - - -
2015 Series C & D Refunding Bonds 25,467,136 29,509,397 33,415,046 37,332,814
2015 Series A & B General Obligation Bonds 44,218,927 71,634,407 73,088,881 74,439,464
2015 Full Faith and Credit Bonds - - 3,154,000 3,391,000
2020 Full Faith and Credit Bonds 4,021,630 4,423,098 - -
2021 PERS Pension Bonds 104,285,000 - - -
2021 GO Refunding Bonds 23,255,000 - - -
Total Publicly Sold 232,947,693 141,466,902 149,347,927 158,268,278
Direct Borrowings & Placements
Qualified Zone Academy Bonds - 78,858 157,716 236,573
Qualified School Construction Bonds - - - -
2020 Limited Tax Gen Obligation Note 820,359 911,354 1,000,000 -
2022 Limited Tax GO Note 598,269 - - -
Financed Purchases 1,720,601 2,181,527 3,219,875 3,085,859
Leases Payable 17,000 - - -
Total Direct Borrowings & Placements 3,156,229 3,171,739 4,377,591 3,322,432
Total Outstanding Debt 236,103,922 144,638,641 153,725,518 161,590,710
Population - Springfield 62,256 61,851 63,230 62,979
Debt per Capita 3,792 S 2,339 S 2,431 S 2,566

Source: Population estimate from United States Census Bureau. Other information from School District records
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2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13
- S - S - S - s 3,094,628 6,023,144
46,165,000 48,895,000 51,320,000 53,460,000 55,335,000 56,970,000
- - 3,715,036 6,144,003 40,095,209 40,890,305
41,242,204 44,876,027 44,876,026 44,876,026 - -
75,647,881 76,976,593 77,928,016 78,190,478 - -
3,620,000 3,843,000 4,000,000 - - -
166,675,085 174,590,620 181,839,078 182,670,507 98,524,837 103,883,449
315,432 394,290 473,148 552,006 630,864 709,720

- - - - 3,000,000 3,000,000
3,672,938 2,275,297 2,274,995 1,705,412 1,335,837 701,437
3,988,370 2,669,587 2,748,143 2,257,418 4,966,701 4,411,157
170,663,455 177,260,207 184,587,221 184,927,925 103,491,538 108,294,606
62,353 61,893 60,870 60,200 60,200 59,500
2,737 § 2,864 S 3,032 $ 3,072 $ 1,719 1,820
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Schedule 12
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
RATIOS OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds

1997 Gen Obligation Refunding Bonds S - S - S - S -
2006 & 2007 Gen Obligation Bonds - - - -
2015 Series C & D Refunding Bonds 25,467,136 29,509,397 33,415,046 37,332,814
2015 Series A & B General Obligation Bonds 44,218,927 71,634,407 73,088,881 74,439,464
2021 GO Refunding Bonds 23,255,000 - - -
Total General Obligation Debt 92,941,063 101,143,804 106,503,927 111,772,278
Accumulated resources for repayment

of bonded debt 544,470 770,763 598,235 476,727
Net bonded debt S 92,396,593 S 100,373,041 S 105,905,692 S 111,295,551
Total estimated real market value

of taxable property S 11,931,912,514 $ 10,737,496,091 S 9,427,933,850 $ 8,667,723,306
Per Capita S 1,484 S 1,623 S 1,675 S 1,767
Per Student S 9,606 S 10,299 S 10,383 S 10,561
Ratio of net general bonded debt to

real market value 0.0077 0.0093 0.0112 0.0128

Source: Lane County Department of Assessment and Taxation
Accumulated resources for repayment of bonded debt consists of the portion of the

restricted fund balance in the debt service fund that is reserved for the repayment of the
principal portion of bonded debt.
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2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13

S - S - S - S - S 3,094,628 S 6,023,144
- - 3,715,036 6,144,003 40,095,209 40,890,305

41,242,204 44,876,027 44,876,026 44,876,026 - -
75,647,881 76,976,593 77,928,016 78,190,478 - -
116,890,085 121,852,620 126,519,078 129,210,507 43,189,837 46,913,449
336,435 136,188 - 240,963 3,306,124 3,307,674

$ 116,553,650 S 121,716,432 $ 126,519,078 S 128,969,544 S 39,883,713 S 43,605,775

$ 7,820,880,233

S 1,869
S 11,502
0.0149

$ 7,528,942,555

S 1,967
S 11,742
0.0162

$ 7,265,444,589

S 2,079
S 12,266
0.0174

$ 6,790,650,021
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2,142
12,584

0.0190

$ 6,790,650,021

s
s

663
3,841

0.0059

$ 6,790,650,021

S 733
S 4,161
0.0064



SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

Schedule 13

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES DEBT
As of June 30, 2022

Net Property-tax

Backed & Direct Percent

Debt* Overlapping Overlapping Debt

City of Eugene S 37,213,000 0.00% S 74
City of Springfield 10,912,000 84.79% 9,252,143
Goshen Rural Fire Protection District 74,710 38.96% 29,106
Lane Community College 219,475,000 16.27% 35,703,096
Lane County 302,263,289 16.51% 49,910,923
Lane County Housing Authority 8,183,487 16.51% 1,351,290
Lane Education Service District 5,467,639 16.55% 904,965
Mohawk Valley Rural Fire Protection District 275,000 52.13% 143,346
South Lane County Fire & Rescue 229,098 0.10% 224
Willamalane Park & Recreation District 10,300,000 83.86% 8,637,868
Subtotal, overlapping debt 594,393,223 105,933,035
Direct District net property-tax backed debt 92,941,063 92,941,063

Non-property-tax backed debt 143,145,859 143,145,859

Lease payable 17,000 17,000

Total direct debt 236,103,922 236,103,922

Total direct and overlapping debt S 830,497,145 S 342,036,957

*Net Property-tax Backed Debt is Gross Property-tax Backed Debt less Self-supporting Unlimited-tax
General Obligation (GO) bonds and less Self-Supporting Full Faith & Credit Debt. Appropriation Credits,
Conduit Revenue Bonds, Dedicated Niche Obligations, Other, Revenue Bonds, and any other obligations
issued for less than 13 months (E.g. Bond Anticipation Notes, Tax Anticipation Notes), lease purchase
agreements and loans are NOT included in Property-tax backed calculations.

The percentage of overlapping debt is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable
percentages are estimated by determining the portion of the overlapping district's taxable assessed value
that is within the school district's boundaries and dividing it by the overlapping district's total taxable
assessed value. These percentages are calculated by the State of Oregon Municipal Debt Advisory
Commission.

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the
District. The schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments
that is borne by the residents and businesses of the District. This process recognizes that, when
considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the
residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer
is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government.
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Schedule 14
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended

2022 2021 2020 2019
Debt Limit S 948,587,045 S 853,630,932 S 800,318,360 S 749,520,741
Total net debt
applicable to limit 92,396,593 100,373,041 105,905,692 111,295,551
Legal debt margin S 856,190,452 S 753,257,891 S 694,412,668 S 638,225,190
Total net debt applicable to
the limit as a percentage of
debt limit 9.74% 11.76% 13.23% 14.85%

! ORS 328.245 establishes a parameter of bonded indebtedness for school districts. Aggregates are
governed by real market values of all taxable properties within the District.

" For each grade from kindergarten to eighth for which the District operates schools, fifty-five
one-hundredths of one percent (.0055) of the real market value.

® For each grade from ninth to twelfth for which the District operates schools, seventy-five
one-hundredths of one percent (.0075) of the real market value.

Source: Market value per Lane County Department of Assessment and Taxation
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Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2022

Real Market Value

$ 11,931,912,514

Debt Limit (7.95%) * 948,587,045
Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit:
General Obligation Bonded Debt 92,941,063
Less: Amount Available in Debt Service Funds (544,470)
Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit 92,396,593
Legal Debt margin 856,190,452
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
S 689,084,003 S 621,759,979 $§ 598,550,933 S 577,602,845 S 539,856,677 S 534,219,716
116,553,650 121,716,432 126,519,078 128,969,544 39,883,713 43,605,775
$ 572,530,353 S 500,043,547 S 472,031,855 S 448,633,301 S 499,972,964 S 490,613,941
16.91% 19.58% 21.14% 22.33% 7.39% 8.16%
Allowable Percentage of Real Market Value:
A Kindergarten through eighth grade, 9 x .0055 4.95%
® Ninth through twelfth, 4 x .0075 3.00%
Allowable Percentage 7.95%
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Schedule 15
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
Last Ten Calendar Years
Lane County

Personal Income

(thousands of Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population dollars) Personal Income Rate*
2022 -1 -1 -t 3.9%
2021 383,189 21,131,525 55,146 6.1
2020 382,971 18,989,468 49,585 11.1
2019 382,064 17,559,531 45,960 4.1
2018 378,807 17,030,077 44,957 4.2
2017 375,689 16,273,772 43,317 4.4
2016 369,201 15,343,064 41,557 54
2015 362,257 14,666,799 40,487 5.8
2014 358,273 13,695,183 38,226 6.7
2013 355,654 12,849,433 36,129 7.9
2012 355,217 12,795,633 36,022 8.9

* Rate at June 30th, seasonally adjusted, State of Oregon Employment Department

' US Census Bureau midyear population estimates. 2022 population and 2022 income
information not available at time of printing.

Sources: Population, personal income and per capita information: US Census Bureau, Bureau of Economic
Analysis.
Unemployment rate information: Oregon Employment Department
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Schedule 16
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS FOR LANE COUNTY
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2021*
Percentage of

Employer Employees 1 Rank Total Employment Employees
Ten Largest Employers
PeaceHealth Corp 5,347 1 3.54% 4,212
University of Oregon 5,038 2 3.34% 4,847
Eugene 4j School District 2,347 3 1.56% 1,900
U.S. Government 1,813 4 1.20% 1,625
Oregon State Government 1,805 5 1.20% 1,100
City of Eugene 1,733 6 1.15% 1,427
Lane Community College 1,721 7 1.14% 2,000
Lane County Government 1,552 8 1.03% 1,151
Springfield School District 1,130 9 0.75% 1,500
McKenzie Willamette Medical 1,060 10 0.70%
Wal-Mart 1,050
Subtotal of Ten Largest Employers 23,546 15.61% 20,812
All Other Employers 127,293 84.39% 137,891
Total Lane County Employment 150,839 100.00% 158,703

Source: Oregon Employment Department; Eugene Area Chamber of Commerce
*2022 report not available at time of printing
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2013

Percentage of
1 Rank Total Employment

2.65%
3.05%
1.20%
1.02%
0.69%
0.90%
1.26%
0.73%
0.95%

DWW N O NP, N

[uny
o

0.66%

13.11%

86.89%

100.00%
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Schedule 17

SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

BY ASSIGNMENT/FUNCTION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time Full-time Full-time Full-time
Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent
Employees Employees Employees Employees
Assignment/Function 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19
Instructional Staff
Elementary teachers 228.34 224.34 208.97 209.84
Middle school teachers 102.58 101.61 95.94 95.13
High school teachers 119.37 114.26 121.46 118.18
Special services teachers 71.71 70.71 71.84 73.62
Other teachers 47.76 35.22 34.34 35.44
Other supervisory/confidential - 0.70 0.70 0.71
Classified assistants 259.70 276.56 264.71 256.82
Subtotal Instructional Staff 829.46 823.40 797.96 789.74
Support Services Staff
Guidance 17.30 17.08 18.34 17.94
Librarians/media specialists 15.62 14.06 14.05 10.40
Student services support staff 105.36 109.59 76.64 65.35
School administrators 31.50 32.32 27.50 27.50
School administrative support staff 78.69 77.48 76.87 61.94
District administrators 9.00 9.00 8.00 8.00
Other supervisory/confidential 26.80 27.15 26.10 25.80
District support 28.66 37.72 30.84 43.33
All other support staff" 165.04 165.04 156.48 156.73
Subtotal Support Services Staff 477.97 489.44 434.82 416.99
Community Services Staff
Nutrition services support 3.50 3.50 4.50 4.50
Cooks and nutrition Eas 39.61 42.18 42.25 42.49
Other supervisory/confidential 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Other community services staff 6.26 6.70 6.31 6.49
Subtotal Community Services Staff 50.37 53.38 54.06 54.48
Total FTE 1,357.80 1,366.22 1,286.84 1,261.21

T All other support staff include data processing, maintenance, bus drivers, and security.

Source: School District Records
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Full-time Full-time Full-time Full-time Full-time Full-time
Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent
Employees Employees Employees Employees Employees Employees

2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13

214.55 220.18 205.18 190.60 192.18 183.40
95.91 94.29 91.11 90.62 90.69 84.22
124.72 109.49 110.37 110.67 110.27 105.60
71.20 72.65 73.40 74.25 72.10 66.90
36.29 36.36 36.23 32.38 28.90 28.30
0.71 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 1.00
249.44 245.58 233.81 225.33 202.33 199.14
792.82 779.05 750.60 724.35 696.97 668.56
15.94 15.95 16.07 17.27 16.03 15.01
10.74 13.24 13.21 11.58 12.07 14.46
54.05 47.03 42.77 39.75 40.77 40.34
26.50 26.50 26.50 27.00 27.00 26.50
75.45 54.21 53.88 51.38 52.41 51.77
8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 7.00 7.00
25.30 27.00 26.00 21.00 23.00 22.00
30.03 27.74 30.18 33.68 32.61 42.58
149.23 149.73 148.09 147.50 146.16 139.59
395.24 369.40 364.70 357.16 357.05 359.25
4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.58
41.62 41.46 42.43 42.65 42.86 41.38
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
6.18 5.94 6.35 7.03 6.63 6.65
53.30 52.90 54.28 55.18 54.99 53.61
1,241.36 1,201.35 1,169.58 1,136.69 1,109.01 1,081.42
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Schedule 18
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
TEACHER BASE SALARIES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

District District Statewide  Statewide
Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum
Fiscal Year Salary BA Salary M+45 Salary BA Salary M+45
2021-22 S 38556 S 80,511 * *
2020-21 37,778 78,886 * *
2019-20 37,058 77,384 38,370 73,176
2018-19 35,979 75,130 37,698 71,997
2017-18 35,187 73,476 36,519 70,013
2016-17 34,413 71,860 36,097 69,518
2015-16 33,738 70,450 35,252 67,420
2014-15 31,881 69,067 34,302 65,966
2013-14 31,220 67,636 33,533 63,960
2012-13 30,559 66,204 33,395 63,719

Source: Coalition of Oregon School Administrators (COSA) annual salary survey

* Data not available at the time of printing.
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Schedule 19
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
HISTORICAL ADMw
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Willamette Academy

Springfield Leadership of Arts and Extended
School Academy Academics ADMw for

Fiscal District (non-  Charter Charter Total funding

Year charter) School School ADMw formula
2021-22 11,566.96 218.75 - 11,785.71 11,785.71
2020-21 11,476.97 236.00 - 11,712.97 12,532.41
2019-20 12,208.07 324.34 - 12,532.41 12,729.13
2018-19 12,421.37 307.76 - 12,729.13 12,729.13
2017-18 12,163.52 328.42 - 12,491.94 13,069.48
2016-17 12,365.27 346.12 358.09 13,069.48 13,069.48
2015-16 12,332.98 326.79 360.68 13,020.45 13,020.45
2014-15 11,993.65 310.38 365.41 12,669.44 12,669.44
2013-14 11,921.50 271.48 332.70 12,525.68 12,543.37
2012-13 11,939.19 241.84 295.47 12,476.50 12,482.05
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Schedule 20
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
OPERATING STATISTICS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Operating Percentage
Fiscal Year Enrollment Expenditures Cost per Pupil Change Expenses
2021-22 9,619 140,908,213 14,649 6.15% 140,966,084
2020-21 9,746 132,740,773 13,620 3.48% 147,456,147
2019-20 10,200 128,277,252 12,576 1.86% 140,422,892
2018-19 10,538 125,934,948 11,951 3.28% 133,292,966
2017-18 10,133 121,930,546 12,033 6.31% 133,997,711
2016-17 10,366 114,698,621 11,065 2.68% 123,986,148
2015-16 10,315 111,702,711 10,829 5.18% 138,466,801
2014-15 10,249 106,200,551 10,362 3.33% 89,070,796
2013-14 10,384 102,774,171 9,897 4.04% 100,350,688
2012-13 10,479 98,780,371 9,427 #REF! 97,663,803

* |In 2015-16, the District began participating in the Community Eligibility Program where all students in qualifying
schools receive free breakfast and lunch. Families are not required to report free and reduced status, therefore
the District does not have that data for the qualifying schools (6 elementary schools and 1 middle school).

The average has been calculated using only schools that did not participate in the Community Eligibility Program.

** Beginning in 2020-21, the District was eligible to participate in the Community Eligibility Program Districtwide.
All students are eligible for free meals both at breakfast and lunch.

Source: School District records
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% Student

receiving

Free or
Percentage Teaching  Pupil-Teacher Reduced

Cost per Pupil Change Staff Ratio Meals
14,655 -4.40% 569.8 16.9 100.00%
15,130 5.01% 546.1 17.8 100.00%
13,767 5.35% 532.6 19.2  56.66%
12,649 -0.53% 532.2 19.8  52.65%
13,224 8.07% 542.7 18.7 53.27%
11,961 -10.46% 533.0 19.4 52.81%
13,424 55.46% 516.3 20.0 53.57%
8,691 -11.24% 498.5 20.6  63.09%
9,664 2.75% 494.1 21.0 63.44%
9,320 HREF! 468.4 224 62.97%

169

* %

* %k

*

*

*



Elementary Schools and Programs

Brattain (1925)
Centennial

Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment

Douglas Gardens
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment
Goshen (K-8)

Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enroliment

Maple

Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment

Moffitt

Mount Vernon
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment

Elizabeth Page
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment

Ridgeview
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment

Riverbend
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment

Thurston
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment

64,868

50,321

51,110

41,706

58,000

38,283

67,915

58,000

43,674

Two Rivers Dos Rios Elementary

Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment

Walterville
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment

Yolanda
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Elementary Enrollment

Agnes Stewart
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Middle School Enroliment

Briggs
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Middle School Enroliment

Hamlin
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Middle School Enroliment

Thurston
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
Middle School Enroliment

Springfield
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):
High School Enroliment

Thurston
Gross Floor Area (sq ft):

70,389

22,668

45,121

94,000

93.303

123,291

72,212

250,829

290,210

Schedule 21

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
School Building and Student Enrollment Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year
2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
435 452 434 429 425 396 384 379 237 312
324 326 336 344 368 371 373 359 244 313
341 339 396 375 377 388 434 408 278 343
327 333 337 347 370 348 358 324 218 248
537 512 528 526 529 510 507 507 372 405
422 438 412 442 404 395 376 358 261 317
497 487 486 477 438 436 443 399 266 334
506 509 516 500 542 534 524 497 315 384
541 525 493 472 476 474 462 455 320 409
417 449 482 443 484 484 468 458 358 387
177 176 186 194 197 178 170 159 127 141
422 409 391 411 401 394 402 388 286 340
636 584 570 579 588 587 600 598 558 534
515 524 533 506 511 498 518 517 459 444
601 589 612 597 637 682 688 691 647 611
617 645 646 577 542 563 566 580 516 540
1,420 1,357 1,304 1,410 1,402 1,357 1,396 1,402 1,374 1,393
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Schedule 21

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

School Building and Student Enrollment Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

High School Enroliment

Gateways Learning Center
Gross Floor Area (sq ft): 7,236
High School Enroliment

Academy of Arts and Academics
Gross Floor Area (sq ft): 13,430
High School Enroliment

Willamette Leadership Academy
Gross Floor Area (sq ft): 26,073

Middle School Enroliment

High School Enroliment

Administrative Building
Gross Floor Area (sq ft): 59,143

Education Media Center
Gross Floor Area (sq ft): 18,600

Brattain House
Gross Floor Area (sq ft): 5,352

Warehouse
Gross Floor Area (sq ft): 10,000

Maintenance/Transportation Complex
Gross Floor Area (sq ft): 19,274

Gross Floor (sq ft) Summary
Elementary Schools

Middle Schools

High Schools

Charter Schools

Other Facilities

Total Gross Floor Area (sq ft)

Enroliment Summary
Elementary Schools
Middle Schools

High Schools
Alternative Education

Total Enrollment
Charter Schools

Total District Enroliment

Source: School District records

Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscal year

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
1,487 1,436 1,349 1,373 1,368 1,320 1,312 1,243 1,267 1,303
156 186 192 194 180 134 125 84 84 369

286 326 352 359 353 341 259 222 201 186

112 100 117 120 112 142 131 157 107 98

91 119 158 177 177 175 138 152 129 109
4946 4955 4997 4960 5011 4908 4901 4691 3282 3933
2481 2442 2478 2379 2390 2472 2503 2543 2287 2227
3440 3424 3355 3513 3480 3327 3230 3103 3055 3360
101 108 46 119 127 84 173 172 1358 306
10968 10929 10876 10971 11008 10791 10807 10509 9982 9826

489 545 627 656 642 658 269 309 236 207
10479 10384 10249 10315 10366 10133 10538 10200 9746 9619

Notes: Enrollment data is as of September 30 of each year
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon Department of Education
2021-22 Audit Revenue

Revenue from Local Sources
1110
1200
1312
1330
1411

1412
1500
1600
1700
1800
1910
1920
1960
1970
1980
1990
Total Revenue from Local Sources

Revenue from Intermediate Sources
2101
2102
2199
2200
Total Revenue from Intermediate Sources

Revenue from State Sources
3101
3102
3103
3199
3222
3299
Total Revenue from State Sources

Revenue from Federal Sources
4100
4200
4300
4500
4700
4801
4900
Total Revenue from Federal Sources

Revenue from Other Sources
5100
5200
5300
5400
Total Revenue from Other Sources

Grand Totals

Fund 100 Fund 200 Fund 300 Fund 400 Fund 600 Fund 700
28,941,900 7,338,989
140,598
350
1,374
131
(80,076) 38,386 39,504 4,949 15,543 5,170
53,932
963,566
49,916
300 62,065 55,143
940,843
38,684 2,971 2,356
10,193,912 21,598,043 650,000
1,093,328
101,143 1,278,293 17,573 300,670
29,003,806 4,623,898 17,572,405 77,665 21,916,612 655,170
122,658
1,510,840
41,984
630
1,675,482 630 - - - -
82,490,545
40,530
1,213,248
30,674 72,663
482,526
13,472,847 25,000
83,734,467 14,068,566 - 25,000 - -
49,086
86,523
1,113 17,552,652
308,189 10,671
409,924
386,142
460,123 18,333,506 - 10,671 - -
17,000 675,000 130,480,000
1,500,000 471,516
18,185 1,899,117
17,331,150 9,231,109 1,106,502 499,961 1,547,018 505,846
17,366,335 11,406,109 132,058,018 2,399,078 1,547,018 505,846
132,240,213 48,432,709 149,630,423 2,512,414 23,463,630 1,161,016
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon Department of Education
2021-22 District Audit Expenditures Summary

Fund : General Fund

Obj 100 Obj 200 Obj 300 Obj 400 Obj 500 Obj 600 Obj 700
Instruction Expenditures
1111 14,006,988 8,182,240 94,738 165,878 - - -
1121 5,992,476 3,358,100 56,443 108,824 - - -
1122 18,110 5,555 - - - - -
1131 7,862,379 4,139,195 84,542 155,543 - 339 -
1132 973,207 290,762 248,554 65,987 - 32,952 -
1140 161,123 131,301 - 3,506 - - -
1210 14,998 4,684 28 - - - -
1220 4,431,022 2,682,832 1,415,617 33,376 - 673 -
1250 3,484,467 2,080,705 353 3,815 - 455 -
1260 - - 136,898 - - - -
1271 40,509 12,705 - - - - -
1280 740,473 404,271 2,025,824 7,578 - 2,800 -
1291 1,441,980 800,630 3,340 7,677 - - -
1292 52,661 34,419 - 250 - - -
Total Instruction 39,246,243 22,135,149 4,066,337 552,434 - 37,219 -
Support Services Expenditures
2110 304,534 166,650 165,921 - - - -
2120 850,882 471,832 1,702 2,569 - - -
2130 707,440 413,338 133,917 20,729 - 419 -
2140 667,140 343,433 761 4,486 - 1,688 -
2150 1,022,415 537,490 16,081 23,279 - 1,534 -
2160 271,372 140,437 9,057 9,936 - 1,018 -
2190 427,203 214,849 7,046 12,549 - 595 -
2210 2,313,613 1,141,037 11,189 92,315 - 4,811 -
2220 433,452 289,798 357 70,306 - - -
2230 31,717 24,230 696 1,546 - - -
2240 289,537 97,769 51,166 3,023 - - -
2310 - - 76,290 1,146 - 21,347 -
2320 317,608 137,664 3,133 4,733 - 1,075 -
2410 5,526,329 2,983,046 54,057 187,377 - 31,761 -
2520 862,862 422,712 33,277 261,245 - 326,679 -
2540 3,921,039 2,508,484 2,813,308 801,449 12,000 517,513 -
2550 2,595,926 1,665,217 439,975 644,891 58,651 128,072 -
2570 111,151 61,223 220,744 541 - 999 -
2620 - - 95 - - - -
2630 152,157 78,821 25,442 55,191 - 763 -
2640 623,306 304,609 82,621 77,342 - 1,040 -
2660 963,412 496,752 553,058 573,548 - 6,000 -
2670 32,156 21,634 92 502 - - -
2680 42,836 11,943 461 990 - - -
Total Support Services 22,468,087 12,532,968 4,700,446 2,849,693 70,651 1,045,314 -
Facilities Acquisition & Construction Expenditures
4150 - - - 34,882 877,418 3,750
Total Facilities & Acquisition - - - 34,882 877,418 3,750 -
Other Uses Expenditures
5200 - 1,971,516
Total Other Uses Expenditures - - - - - - 1,971,516
Grand Total 61,714,330 34,668,117 8,766,783 3,437,009 948,069 1,086,283 1,971,516
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon Department of Education

2021-22 District Audit Expenditures Summary
Fund : Special Revenue Fund

Obj 100 Obj 200 Obj 300 Obj 400 Obj 500 Obj 600 Obj 700
Instruction Expenditures
1111 1,797,449 954,537 11,489 272,537 - - -
1113 10,680 3,322 4,188 48,030 - 1,216 -
1121 308,414 176,036 64,941 70,789 - - -
1122 34,990 11,276 75,001 33,151 - 22,073 -
1131 592,814 321,704 4,951 225,738 47,500 - -
1132 84,466 24,317 84,438 518,321 - 247,782 -
1140 314,302 153,790 4,014 19,882 - - -
1220 356,800 169,988 1,771,783 14,642 - 641 -
1250 268,155 224,104 - 31,527 - - -
1260 - - 32,868 - - - -
1271 5,976 1,755 462 330 - - -
1272 1,648,628 1,002,492 11,897 23,564 - - -
1280 - - 90,000 545 - - -
1291 29,032 10,911 4,573 39,643 - - -
1292 1,109 339 - - - - -
1299 7,392 607 2,438 141 - - -
1400 700,154 239,438 796,613 367,925 - 64,639 -
Total Instruction 6,160,361 3,294,616 2,959,656 1,666,765 47,500 336,351 -
Support Services Expenditures
2110 1,560,621 921,758 23,937 22,995 - - -
2120 151,779 81,419 434 48,856 - - -
2130 190,800 107,282 152,919 - - - -
2140 39,418 23,019 - - - - -
2150 32,204 16,497 - - - - -
2160 1,938 376 - 1,225 - - -
2190 120,511 58,583 3,480 76 - - -
2210 708,385 340,704 132,210 42,644 - 120 -
2220 13,319 4,168 - 23,390 - - -
2230 250 76 8,831 70,858 - - -
2240 250,376 75,458 153,551 3,331 - - -
2320 - - 35,051 33,503 - 10,000 -
2410 546,154 265,477 43,961 14,911 - - -
2520 91,480 737,925 38,010 1,114 - 1,093,758 -
2540 138,935 47,470 29,203 181,763 847,438 - -
2550 18,501 5,746 46 1,297 1,809,546 - -
2570 3,859 1,036 - - - - -
2630 1,000 310 - - - - -
2640 79,288 55,283 - 307 - - -
2660 7,425 2,165 62,632 966,567 70,744 - -
2670 500 41 - - - - -
Total Support Services 3,956,743 2,744,793 684,265 1,412,837 2,727,728 1,103,878 -
Enterprise & Community Services Expenditures
3100 1,519,127 981,564 86,213 1,934,749 65,598 57,417 -
3500 453,655 247,560 50,991 12,773 - 980 -
Total Enterprise & Community 1,972,782 1,229,124 137,204 1,947,522 65,598 58,397 -
Facilities Acquisition & Construction Expenditures
4120 - - 4,499 3,397 34,455 - -
4150 - - 393,240 15,027 4,221,859 12,462 -
Total Facilities & Acquisition - - 397,739 18,424 4,256,314 12,462 -
Other Uses Expenditures
5100 - - - - - 743,206 -
5300 - - - - - - 483,591
Total Other Uses Expenditures - - - - - 743,206 483,591
Grand Total 12,089,886 7,268,533 4,178,864 5,045,548 7,097,140 2,254,294 483,591
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon Department of Education
2021-22 District Audit Expenditures Summary

Fund : Debt Service Fund
Obj 100 Obj 200 Obj 300 Obj 400 Obj 500 Obj 600 Obj 700

Total Instruction - - - - - - R

Support Services Expenditures
2520 943,764

Total Support Services - - 943,764 - - - -

Total Enterprise & Community - - - - - - -

Total Facilities & Acquisition - - - - - - -

Other Uses Expenditures
5100 41,871,858
5400 106223075

Total Other Uses Expenditures - 106,223,075 - -

41,871,858 -

Grand Total - 106,223,075 943,764 - 41,871,858 -
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon Department of Education

Fund : Capital Projects Fund

Instruction Expenditures
1111
1121
1122
1131

1280

Total Instruction

Support Services Expenditures
2140
2410
2520
2540
2570
2630
2660
Total Support Services

Enterprise & Community
3100
Total Enterprise & Community

Facilities Acquisition & Construction Expenditures

4120
4150
4180
4190
Total Facilities & Acquisition

Other Uses Expenditures
5200

Total Other Uses Expenditures

Grand Total

2021-22 District Audit Expenditures Summary

Obj 100 Obj 200 Obj 300 Obj 400 Obj 500 Obj 600 Obj 700
10,686 3,333
7,285 2,363 58,508 77,740 11,082

21,000

17,971 5,696 79,508 77,740 11,082 - -
27,077 19,980 1,837,742 30,150

- - 27,077 19,980 1,837,742 30,150 -
17,971 5,696 106,585 97,720 1,848,824 30,150 -
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon Department of Education

Fund : Enterprise Fund

Total Instruction

Total Support Services

Total Enterprise & Community

Total Facilities & Acquisition

Total Other Uses Expenditures

Grand Total

2021-22 District Audit Expenditures Summary

Obj 100

Obj 200

Obj 300

Obj 400

Obj 500

Obj 600

Obj 700
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON

Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon Department of Education

Fund : Internal Service Fund

Total Instruction
Support Services Expenditures
2520
2570
Total Support Services
Total Enterprise & Community
Total Facilities & Acquisition
Other Uses
5100

Total Other Uses Expenditures

Grand Total

2021-22 District Audit Expenditures Summary

Obj 100 Obj 200 Obj 300 Obj 400 Obj 500 Obj 600 Obj 700
57,023 21,766,077 16,877 53,445
202,848 111,687 150,517 200,714 10,233 350

259,871 21,877,764 167,394 200,714 10,233 53,795 -
28,773

- - - - - 28,773 -

259,871 21,877,764 167,394 200,714 10,233 82,568 -
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19, LANE COUNTY, OREGON
Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon Department of Education
2021-22 District Audit Expenditures Summary

Fund : Trust and Agency Funds
Obj 100 Obj 200 Obj 300 Obj 400 Obj 500 Obj 600 Obj 700

Total Instruction - - - - - - R

Support Services Expenditures
2521 6,750
2700 52,996 399,803

Total Support Services 52,996 399,803 6,750 - - - -

Total Enterprise & Community - - - - - - -

Total Facilities & Acquisition - - - - - - -

Total Other Uses Expenditures - - - - - - -

Grand Total 52,996 399,803 6,750 - - - -
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OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Office of Finance and Administration
225 Capitol Street NE School Finance Unit
Salem Oregon 97310

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION, 2021-2022
School District Business Managers and Auditors:
This page is a required part of your annual audited financial statements. Please make sure it is included.

Part A is needed for computing Oregon’s full allocation for ESEA, Title | & other Federal Funds for Education.

A. Energy Bill for Heating - All Funds: Objects 325 & 326
Please enter your expenditures for electricity Function 2540 $1,411,109
& heating fuel for these Functions & Objects. Function 2550 $ 0’ ’

B. Replacement of Equipment — General Fund:
Include all General Fund expenditures in object 542, except for the following exclusions:

Exclude these functions: Exclude these functions: [s0
1113, 1122 & 1132 Co-curricular Activities 4150 Construction

1140 Pre-Kindergarten 2550 Pupil Transportation

1300 Continuing Education 3100 Food Service

1400 Summer School 3300 Community Services
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PAULY, ROGERS, AND Co., P.C.

12700 SW 72" Ave. Tigard, OR 97223
(503) 620-2632 (503) 684-7523 FAX
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

r_ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACTOUNTANTIS Y

December 1, 2022

To the Board of Education
Springfield School District
Springfield, Oregon

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Springfield School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 1, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control or on compliance. This report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

&

Kenneth Allen, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
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PAULY, ROGERS, AND Co., P.C.

12700 SW 72" Ave. Tigard, OR 97223
(503) 620-2632 (503) 684-7523 FAX
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

r_ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACTOUNTANTIS Y

December 1, 2022

To the Board of Education
Springfield School District
Springfield, Oregon

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Springfield School District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as
subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Springfield School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Springfield School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules,
and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on compliance based on
our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and
the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about compliance
with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and
the Uniform Guidance, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance
that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly,

this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
/w../ o le—

Kenneth Allen, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
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Springfield Public School
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Passed

Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor/ Pass Through AL Pass Through Through to
Program Title Organization Number Entity Number Grant Period Grant Amount Expenditure Subrecipients
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct Programs:

Indian Education - Grants to LEAs US Department of Education 84.060A Direct 711/19-6/30/21 39,150.00 1,314.17 -

Indian Education - Grants to LEAs US Department of Education 84.060A Direct 711/20-6/30/21 64,431.00 21,200.23 -

Indian Education - Grants to LEAs US Department of Education 84.060A Direct 711/21-6/30/22 63,877.00 64,008.35

Total Indian Education 167,458.00 86,522.75 -

Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies Oregon Department of Education 84.010 58372 711/20-9/30/21 3,993,564.00 750,625.54

Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies Oregon Department of Education 84.010 67082 711/21-9/30/22 3,772,555.00 2,5683,777.56

Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies Oregon Department of Education 84.010 65155 711/20 - 9/30/22 194,407.00 194,407.00

Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies Oregon Department of Education 84.010 60432 711/20 - 9/30/22 193,660.00 175,745.34

Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies Oregon Department of Education 84.010 68016 10/1/22-9/30/23 192,608.00

Total Title | Grants To LEAs 8,346,794.00 3,704,555.44 -

English Language Acquisition State Grants Oregon Department of Education 84.365 58507 711/20 - 9/30/21 103,384.00 7,528.17

English Language Acquisition State Grants Oregon Department of Education 84.365 67166 711/21-9/30/22 85,823.00 64,478.88 -

Total English Language Acquisition State Grants 189,207.00 72,007.05 -

Supporting Effective Instruction State Grant Oregon Department of Education 84.367 58866 711/20 - 9/30/21 521,240.00 232,208.99

Supporting Effective Instruction State Grant Oregon Department of Education 84.367 67516 711/21-9/30/22 388,572.00 163,007.14

Total Title 1A Grants to LEAs 909,812.00 395,216.13 -

Student Support and Academic Enrichment Oregon Department of Education 84.424 58676 711/20 - 9/30/21 249,507.00 160,776.09

Student Support and Academic Enrichment Oregon Department of Education 84.424 66872 711/21-9/30/22 286,357.00 55,506.17

Total Student Support and Academic Enichment 535,864.00 216,282.26 -

Education Stabilization Fund - COVID 19 Oregon Department of Education 84.425 64691 3/13/20 - 9/30/23 13,043,871.70 5,170,684.65 219,971.40

Education Stabilization Fund - COVID 19 Oregon Department of Education 84.425 64995 3/13/20 - 9/30/24 29,315,229.22 1,347,959.06

Education Stabilization Fund - COVID 19 Oregon Department of Education 84.425 64808 3/13/21-9/30/23 40,000.00 9,780.64

Total Education Stabilization Fund 42,399,100.92 6,528,424.35 219,971.40

Title | State Agency Program for Neglected and Delinquent Children Oregon Department of Education 84.013 15644 711/21-6/30/22 145,500.00 136,754.01 136,754.01

Total Title | State Agency Program for Neglected and Delinquent Children 145,500.00 136,754.01 136,754.01

Special Education Oregon Department of Education 84.027 15644 711/21-6/30/22 77,300.00 117,668.92 -

Special Education Oregon Department of Education 84.027 73238 711/21-6/30/22 2,197.88 2,197.88

Special Education Oregon Department of Education 84.027 60758 711/20 - 9/30/22 1,940,055.90 733,495.47

Special Education Oregon Department of Education 84.027 68490 711/21-9/30/23 447,868.00 59,859.76

Special Education Preschool Grants Oregon Department of Education 84.173 60583 7/1/20 - 9/30/22 20,396.84 $ 193.24

Special Education Preschool Grants Oregon Department of Education 84.173 69010 7/1/21-9/30/23 24,116.00 $ 24,116.00

Special Education Preschool Grants Oregon Department of Education 84.173 69254 7/1/21-9/30/23 9,971.00 $ 9,912.81

Total Special Education Cluster 2,521,905.62 947,444.08 -

Special Education - State Personnel Development Oregon Department of Education 84.323 38778 9/1/15 - 8/30/16 24,800.00 $ 28.13

Total Special Education - State Personnel Development 24,800.00 $ 28.13

Career and Technical Education -- Basic Grants to States Lane Education Service District 84.048 7/1/21-6/30/22 31,459.00 23,483.98

Total Career and Technical Education 31,459.00 23,483.98

Research in Special Education Oregon Universities Systems 84.324 3,000.00 1,246.71

Research in Special Education Oregon Universities Systems 84.324 7/1/15 - 6/30/17 4,000.00

Research in Special Education Oregon Universities Systems 84.324 711/16 - 6/30/18 12,575.99 -

Total Research in Special Education 19,575.99 1,246.71 -
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Springfield Public School
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor/ Pass Through AL Pass Through Through to
Program Title Organization Number Entity Number Grant Period Grant Amount Expenditure Subrecipients
Special Education - Educational Technology Media and Materials Oregon Universities Systems 84.327 7/1/15 - 6/30/16 5,472.00 - -
Total Special Education - Educational Technology Media and Materials 5,472.00 - -
Education Research, Development and Dissemination (503/ISLA) Oregon Universities Systems 84.305A 7/1/19-6/30/22 10,000.00 1,850.93 -
Education Research, Development and Dissemination Oregon Department of Education 84.367A 19171 11/29/21-6/30/22 13,764.19 13,764.19 -
Total Education Research, Development and Dissemination 23,764.19 15,615.12 -
Rehabilitation Services - Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States Oregon Vocational Rehabilitation Div 84.126 160752 7/1/21-6/30/22 802,646.61 186,986.81
Foster Care Title IV-E Oregon Department of Education 93.658 - 49,085.69
Total U.S. Department of Education 56,123,359.33 12,363,652.51 356,725.41
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed through Lane Transit District:
Federal Transit Formula Grants LCOG 20.507 LCOG 1/1/21-12/31/23 59,275.00 21,073.76
Federal Transit Formula Grants OoDOT 20.507 ODOT 1/1/22-12/31/22 62,346.37 -
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 121,621.37 21,073.76 -
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through Oregon Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
National School Lunch Program ODE 10.555 7/1/21 - 6/30/22 3,479,309.01 3,479,309.01
National School Lunch Program (covid payments) ODE 10.555 7/1/21 - 6/30/22 270,454.11 270,454.11
School Breakfast Program ODE 10.553 7/1/21 - 6/30/22 1,525,474.63 1,525,474.63
Commodities (noncash) ODE 10.555 7/1/21 - 6/30/22 386,142.47 386,142.47
Child and Adult Care Food Program ODE 10.558 7/1/21 - 6/30/22 48,811.62 48,811.62
Child and Adult Care Food Program COVID 19 ODE 10.558 7/1/21 - 6/30/22 28,915.89 28,915.89
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 5,739,107.73 5,739,107.73
Pandemic EBT Administrative Grants (COVID 19) ODE 10.649 7/1/21 - 6/30/22 5,814.00 5,814.00
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 5,744,921.73 5,744,921.73 -
FEMA - Storm Damages Dept of Military 97.036 10,671.42
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Passed Through Oregon Department of Education:
State Clean Diesel Grant Program Department of Environmental Quality 66.040 254,056.89
Total U.S. Department of Environmental Quality - 254,056.89 -
TOTALS 61,989,902.43 18,394,376.31 356,725.41
RECONCILIATION TO REVENUE:
Federal Revenue that are not Grants:
Federal Forest Fees 409,923.79
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL EXPENDITURES

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes federal grant activity under programs of the
federal government. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations, it is not intended to and does not present the net position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the entity.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the schedule represent adjustments or
credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. The entity has elected
to not use the ten percent de minimus indirect cost rate as allowed under Uniform Guidance, due to the fact that they
already have a negotiated indirect cost rate with Oregon Department of Education, and thus is not allowed to use the de
minimus rate.
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

SECTION I -SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? [ ] ves no
Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? [ ] ves none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statemetns noted? [ ] ves no
Any GAGAS audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
reported in accordance with section 515(d)(2) of the Uniform Guidance? |:| yes no
FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? |:| yes no
Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? |:| yes none reported
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance? |:| yes no
IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR PROGRAMS
AL NUMBER NAME OF FEDERAL PROGRAM CLUSTER
84.425 Educational Stabilization Fund
84.010 Title 1 Grants to LEA's
10.555, 10.553 Child Nutrition Cluster
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and B programs $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes |:| no
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SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

SECTION 11 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None

SECTION 111 — FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None

191



This page intentionally left blank

192



PAULY, ROGERS AND Co., P.C.

12700 SW 72" Ave. ¢ Tigard, OR 97223
(503) 620-2632 ¢ (503) 684-7523 FAX
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

Independent Auditors’ Report Required by Oregon State Regulations

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Springfield School District as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated December 1, 2022. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
Government Auditing Standards.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statues as specified in Oregon Administrative
Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal
Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and
disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295)
Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.

Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

Programs funded from outside sources.

Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).

Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).
State school fund factors and calculation.

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Springfield
School District was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon
Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of
Oregon Municipal Corporations except as follows:

e Expenditures exceeded appropriations by $58,630 in the enterprise and community services
category of the Grants and Contracts Fund and $165,541 in the ESSER Fund.
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PAuULY, ROGERS AND Co., P.C.

R e U A COUNTANIS Y 12700 SW 72nd AVe' ' Tigard, OR 97223
| (503) 620-2632 ¢ (503) 684-7523 FAX

www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the internal controls over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal
controls over financial reporting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and

the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
parties.

&

Kenneth Allen, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
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